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SENATOR DONALD T. DiFRANCESCO (Acting Chairman): If 
I could have your attention for a couple of minutes-- My name 
is Don DiFrancesco. I'm a State Senator. I'm in another 
meeting next door on ethics in government. As a member of the 
Commission on Sex Discrimination in the Statutes, I. wanted to 
at least make an opening statement on behalf of the Commission 
which reflects the feelings of the Commission as a whole in 
this area. 

Health issues have been in the forefront of national 
attention over the past few years. Health, as most of us know, 
has also become a particularly important concern in New Jersey, 
and the Governor's Commission on Health Care Costs has been a 
means to address problems arising from the ever-increasing 
costs of obtaining health care. Sex discr~mination in the 
health field and in the delivery of health care also presents 
what we believe to be an important area of study. 

Women often face additional barriers 
care system because of discriminatory practices 
women's economic status. The increasing 
obtaining adequate health insurance ·has taken 
hard toll on women, and access to low-cost 

in the health 
and because of 
difficulty of 
an especialiy 
prenatal and 

pregnancy care remains a problem. Women may also not receive 
the same health care options and quality of care as do men. 
Women are often not studied in certain areas of medical 
research, and existing medical models often do not include the 
exper~ence and needs of women. 

Many witnesses have come today to testify on the.se 
important issues. The Commission on Sex Discrimination in the 
Statutes hopes that the information from these hearings will be 
considered by the Governor in his study of health·care in New 

Jersey. 
Now, we have a witness list, and the first person on 

the witness list is Dr. Marsha Kleinman, from the New Jersey 
Psychological Association. Is that person here? 
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M A R S H A K L E I N M A N, Ph.D. : Right here. 

SENATOR DIFRANCESCO: There you are. You must have 

known that you were first. Do you have a prepared statement of 

any sort? 

DR. KLEINMAN: No. 

statement. It's in my head. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: 

transcribed, as you know. 

I don't have a prepared 

All right. It's being 

DR. KLEINMAN: Okay. 

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: But, this doesn't amplify your 

voice so that these people can hear, {referring to recording 

microphone) so if you can speak up, perhaps they can hear what 

you're saying as best they can, unless they want to move 

forward, and some don't. We can start. 

DR. KLEINMAN: Great. I'm glad to· be here this 

morning as a representative of the New Jersey Psychological 

Association. I'm a licensed clinical psychologist, and I would 

like to talk about the issue of domestic violence as a health 

care issue for women. 

There are many issues in domestic violence that 

concern me with regard to psychologists. One of the concerns 

is that there is no current specific training required for 

psychologists in the are~ of domestic violence. It's 

considered rather new. It's a new area. It's a new area of 

interest for people. 

What concerns me is that there are old beliefs and 

myths about women; about women as being masochistic~ about 

women as being hysterical; a lot of pejorative terms used about 

women, and when battered women come in for treatment, they are 

often reviewed and viewed in terms which. are not really 

appropriate. 

Let me address some of the concerns with health care 

about battered women and go through them, and then hopefully I 

can elaborate. One is that battered women are often likely to 
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be battered during pregnancy, so that you have issues of women 
coming in for health care and physicians picking up on this and 
intervening in some way. 

Two, I don't know of any studies, although I've looked 
to determine whether there's any correlation between any birth 
defects or birth anomalies and beatings that occur during 
pregnancy, since often the first pregnancy is the time when a 
woman is likely to begin being beaten, and the beatings 
escalate over time. There are statistics about what happens 
during the first, second, third pregnancies, etc. 

Another concern is that when battered women-­
Emergency rooms are the place where battered women are most 
likely to present. It's often the first place they go to. If 
emergency room personnel are not trained in the area of 
domestic violence, they often miss both the assessment and the 
referral and also, perhaps later, the important documentation 
that there has been domestic violence. 

The literature on domestic violence tells us that 
battered women often lie about how they got their bruises and 
how things happened. However, if they are asked directly and 
someone says, "Did your husband," or, "Did so and so do this to 
you?" they will answer, "Yes." You will get a direct answer. 
So the training of the emergency room personnel is a critical 
issue in determining the care and also intervening in 
prevention, because f.or almost every battered woman, you're 
talking about children, and the issue of children concerns me a 
great deal as it relates to battered women. So there's an 
opportunity to intervene, to give information, and to do some 
prevention with regard to children. 

The issue of domestic violence in psychologists: The 
literature also tells us that mental health professionals are 
often the last people to know that women they see in their 
office are being battered. This does not bode well for good 

treatment. If you do not know someone is being battered and 
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you do not have that context, you may see this person in 

treatment with their spouse or their boyfriend who may be the 

batterer. I would consider this inappropriate as treatment. 

They should not be seen together. 

There are also models of ~herapy considered to be 

appropriate models. They are training on these models which I 

would call -- which involve a complementarity -- and that means 

that if a woman says she is beaten, the question would be to 

the person who is beating her, and to her, "Well, what did you 

do to provoke it?" In other words, there's some 

interrelationship between what happened to you and what you did 

to provoke it. 

In the issue of domestic violence I think this is 

extraordinarily inappropriate, and in fact, would further serve 

to maintain this woman in an abusive relationship. So, the 

training of psychologists in the area of domestic violence is 

one that is dear to me. 

Another issue is the issue of children and what 

happens to them in homes in which there is violence. When I 

talk about domestic violence I'm not talking about homes in 

which women are thrown through windows, where they're stabbed. 

Domestic violence can be much more benign. There could be 

shoving, pushing, a slap, but it's always coupled with 

psychological abuse and emotional abuse. It is the emotional 

abuse that, really, women will tell you is the most disturbing 

and the most devastating to them, because it wears down their 

self-esteem, and it helps to maintain them in these 

relationships. It essentially helps the abuser to gain control 

and to gain power. 

An issue that's very dear to me at this moment is 

battered women and custody. I am involved with -- in fact, I 

am currently--

SENATOR DiFRANCESCO: What's that? Battered women in 

custody? 
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DR. KLEINMAN: In custody disputes. I was testifying 
this week. I'll be testifying in two weeks in another custody, 
with a battered woman. The statistics show that almost over 
70% -- close to 80% -- of battered women lose custody of their 
children, not because they're bad moms. 

The issue-- There is a tremendous myth in the court 
system. There is a myth that's going on that is very 
destructive and very distressing; and that is, as soon as a 
woman is in a divorce situation and she makes certain 
allegations either about sex abuse or child abuse, right away 
she's suspect. Unfortunately, rather than wondering why she 
left, and that this may be the reason she, in fact, had left 
the relationship, right away, it's she left and now she is 
trying to gain custody of her child by doing this. 

I've been involved in 
psychologists and social workers, 
extraordinarily unethically in 

cases where 
what I would 
this regard. 

I've seen 
call behave 

They do 
evaluations, and they know nothing about domestic violence. 
I've seen judges make what I would consider wrong decisions. I 
get phone calls from women. I get phone calls from attorneys. 
This week I've been on the phone almost every night late in the 
evening with a variety of cases, with attorneys calling me, and 
in trying to educate the judges about domestic violence. It's 
already in the Legislature. I think it's the Domestic Violence 
Act, Title 25, which says- that we recognize that there is a 
high correlation between spouse abuse and child abuse. But one 
of the problems is women often do not have the funds to hire 
counsel. This is a critical issue. 

Sometimes the counsel they get-- They find nice 

attorneys, nice people who will help them, who will defer 

payment or who will do it for limited payment. But the same 

attorneys who I would consider nice, good people, are not 
aggressive in the courtroom, and they are not represented in 
these cases. Generally my experience is that men who abuse are 
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very good at getting themselves a very aggressive attorney, 
someone who is going to fight for them, and they can afford the 
kinds of fees that are required to go through a lengthy custody 
battle. 

The issue of money concerns me -- well, the issue of 
custody concerns me a great deal, because I'm seeing women lose 

-custody of their children when there is, essentially, no 
allegation against them, there is no complaint against them, 
and the woman has made -- has called DYFS, has taken the child 
to the hospital, has done all kinds -of things to substantiate 
that there has been some child abuse. This issue needs to be 
looked at very, very, closely. If fact, one of the cases I'm 
involved in currently, this woman wrote a letter -- I think to 
Governor Kean, while he was still in -- asking for help because 
her husband is a recognized official of the State. 

The issue of money comes into play in other areas. 
Battered women often have difficulty with housing and in 
supporting themselves. 

Let me stop because I could talk, and I could go into 
depth on any one of these issues, and I would love to, but I'm 
trying to give you a broad overview of the kinds of 
what is going on. There is some-- There is 
literature about battered women in the court system. 
literature on battered women and testing, the 
psychological tests being used to make them -- for 
gain custody, to take custody away from them. 

issues 
a lot 

There. 
kind 

people 
There . 

and 
of 
is 
of 
to 
is 

literature about the statistics; there is tremendous 
literature. In fact, I am currently preparing some literature 
for the New Jersey Board of Psych Examiners to look into in 
developing criteria for psychologists to do custody 
evaluations. It's my belief that when involved in custody 
evaluation, someone should be able to identify if there is a 
likelihood of domestic violence and if there is a likelihood· of 
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sex abuse, and then someone who is an expert in these areas-­
That person should only be a qualified person who does an 
evaluation of those areas. 

I don't know if it's appropriate for me to stop and 
ask you whether there' s quest ions; whether you'd 1 ike me to 

explain what happens in areas of domestic violence or what · 

battered women are like and what happens to them? But let me 

stop and ask you if you have questions that I can then 
elaborate on. 

MS. SAMPlER!: I had three questions while you were 

talking. Considering the focus of this hearing, health issues, 

it seems to me you raised three pertinent points: The training 

of emergency room physicians, training for psychologists, and 

some kind of standardized evaluation concerning court ordered 

psychological evaluations in custody battles. I don't know 

where, beyond those three things, you see the Commission 

looking at this. There's certainly some things that you've 

brought to our attention, and I'm wondering if there is 

anything specific that you would recommend as we look at these 

issues? 
DR. KLEINMAN: I would recommend several things. I 

think I would recommend that as a part of routine training 

medical training and for health care workers and facilities 

that there be specific training -in the area of domestic 

violence; that there be: how to recognize a woman who may be 

battered, how to interview a woman who might be battered, how 

to interview the children, if necessary. It's critical. The 

woman needs to be interviewed alone. 
In the area of psychological training, I think that 

psychologists who work with families, with couples, with 

individuals -- that covers the whole range -- need also to look 
into the need to be trained and the need to have awareness of 

the issue of domestic violence. They need to know how to 

assess and they need to know how to interview, again; how to 
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elicit this information, and they need to know the appropriate 

standards for treatment and the appropriate ways to interview. 

In evaluations for custody, I'm concerned with several 

things: One, I'm concerned with funding for lawyers. I'm 

really very concerned that there should be a defense fund for 

attorneys for battered women. I would tell you right now that 

that concerns me more than anything, because when battered 

women are in the court system with children, you are talking 

about millions and millions of children who are being 

victimized by decisions that are being made by people who do 

not know anything about domestic violence. 

So, to have a legal defense fund, whether it was in· 

the private sector or not, how that came to be, I think is 

critical. 
A very critical issue is that judges need training. 

They're clearly uninformed and unaware, and making decisions 

out of, I believe, ignorance, not malice. 

I think that attorneys need training. I think that 

attorneys often don't believe the women who come in and they 

don't understand, and it's not until the case has gotten so 

complicated that they really see what's going on, and what this 

man is capable of. I think attorneys need training in the area 

of domestic violence. 

I'm not sure what else the Commission's looking into 
where I could be helpful to answer the last part of your 
question. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Okay. I have one last piece of that: 

With your association with the New Jersey Psychological 

Association, how can you see this being made part of licensing? 

DR. KLEINMAN: I don't think it wi 11 be made part of 

licensing. The licensing law is fixed and I think that the 

Board of Psych Examiners, which monitors and regulates 

licensing, is looking into the area of custody evaluations and 

criteria, and who does them. And they're -- the psychologists 

-- are currently reviewing this themselves. 
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MS. SAMPIERI: Okay. Thank you. 

DR. VAN JONES: I would like to ask another question. 
I'm sorry that I'm late. I got caught in traffic. 

My name is Dr. Van Jones and I'm from Rutgers 

University. I'm one of the Commissioners on the Commission on 
Sex Discrimination in the Statutes. 

I wanted to get a little more explanation about the 

defense fund. How do you see that as a solution to the 

problem, and also explain the connection with the public 

defender's office for those who either cannot, or can ill 

afford to pay their attorney fees? 

DR. KLEINMAN: The public defender's 

covers criminal trials. I'm involved with 
office only 

the public 
defender's office in Pennsylvania tomorrow with a battered 

woman who killed in self-defense, and I get involved in 

criminal trials of that kind. The public defender does not 

handle divorce and custody. 

Legal Services handles, but they often-- In a case 

where I was involved where a woman lost custody of her five 

children, Legal Services did not retain me, although they 

contacted me, because of funding problems. 

The concern is that battered women, if they lose 

custody, do not have money for an appeal. There's no money to 

get a copy of the transcript. The kind of money that these 

cases involve for legal costs are $50,000 or $60, ooo. I know 

people who have put time in -- myself included -- for free, 

when there have been children involved, and I ·know attorneys· 
who have put time in for free, but an attorney, unless the 

attorney is independently wealthy, can't afford to take the 

kind of time necessary to battle one of these cases, because 

generally men who batter, who fight for custody, are 

extraordinarily devious and clever. They have good counsel, 

and the woman is often--
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The other piece is that when a woman leaves a 

relationship, the battering goes on in one way or another. 

They may not be physically beaten, but there is ongoing 

harassment, and they are constantly in court. They often get 

frozen out with money, so that they have to stop going to 

court; they cannot fight back. They go pro se; many go pro se, 

or they give up the fight. There's no way to continue 

fighting. They've depleted family resources. Their homes have 

been mortgaged; the parents have mortgaged as much as they 

can. Often battered women in these relationships have no 

control over resources. Even if there is money, she has not 

had access to it; does not have a name on an account. So that 

without representation, she doesn't have a shot, and without 

good representation, she doesn't have a shot, and I'm very 

concerned, because we're talking about children, not just women 

here. It's the health care of children, because these children 

are-- I see grown adults in my practice who have come from 

these homes. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. That's it. Thank you. 

DR. KLEINMAN: Thank you. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. We'd like to call our next two 

people. I understand that you're working jointly. Dr. 

Kathleen Ruben, and Lucile Pfleeger? 

L U C I L E - H A R K N E S s· P F L E E G E R: Pfleeger. 

(pronounces name) 

DR. VAN JONES: Pfleeger, a double "e," Pfleeger. 

MS. PFLEEGER: Right. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. Welcome to the hearing. It's 

up to-­

KATHLEEN 

first. 

R U B E N, 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. 

Ph.D: Lucile is going to go 

MS. PFLEEGER: We're working together, and I'm listed 

as being from the Family Planning Services of Cumberland, 
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Gloucester, and Salem Counties, which I am. We are here to 
talk about-- We want this Commission to help us with a State 
ordinance to prevent the blockade of clinics, because these 
blockades are preventing women from receiving health care. 

I'm not going to read my first page. I simply outline 
why I'm interested in this and what my involvements over the 
years have been. I was a housing authority commissioner for 10 
years and worked with low-income minority families and their 
health problems. Presently I'm President of the Board of PASA, 
the shelter for battered women for Gloucester County. The 
testimony we just heard is of great interest to me. I'm a 
member of the Board of the Family Planning Services. I just 
said that. I'm also, right now, today-- I co-chair, with Dr. 
Kathleen Ruben, the Clinic Defense for South Jersey -- for the 
Alic·e Paul-South Jersey Chapter of the National Organization 
for Women. I'll start with my testimony. 

For several years I have volunteered on Saturday 
mornings to escort patients into the Cherry Hill Women's Center 
in Cherry Hill, New Jersey. Originally, only two or three 
volunteers were needed to shield the young girls and women 
patients from the demonstrators walking on the sidewalk in 
front of the clinic. 

In 1985 there was. an invasion of the clinic when 
several persons, mostly males, forced their way into the 
clinic. Health center employees suffered broken foot bones and 
broken ribs. The trespassers chained themselves to chairs and 
disrupted the operation of the clinic for several hours. 

In November of 1987, Randall Terry and "Operation 
Rescue" staged a trial siege, or blockade, at the Cherry Hill 
Women's Center in preparation for a week-long assault on New 
York City clinics. It took several hours for the police to 
carry away the demonstrators. Since then, the Cherry Hill 
Women's Center has had three major "hits" by Operation Rescue. 
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As a result of these assaults on the Cherry Hill 

Women's Center and other health centers, the defenders of 

clinics, under the leadership of NOW, have become organized. 

On each Saturday morning from 20 to 50 volunteers arrive at the 

Cherry Hill Women's Center at 5:30 a.m. and stay at least until 

10:00 a.m. to escort patients. If we have a major "hit," we 

alert our phone tree, and extra emergency volunteers arrive on 

the scene to assist. Our volunteers include teenagers and 

senior citizens, both male and female, who volunteer for this 

service. 

The leaders of the blockades are always 

participate, but they are given orders which they 

Most of the leaders of both the blockades and 

Saturday morning picketing are clergy. 

men. Women 

must follow. 

the regular 

For instance, two fundamentalist preachers routinely 

bring their youth groups -- preteens and teens -- to the Cherry 

Hill Women's Center on Saturday mornings to harass and annoy 

women, an early lesson in sexism. They risk the lives of these 

children as they purposely send them across the driveway as 

patients are making left turns, across two lanes of traffic, 

into the driveway of the Women's Center. I predict a terrible 

accident will happen because of this tactic. 

These clergy have been highly incensed when I have 

reminded them that clergy are one of the top four categories of 

men who beat their wives, and that their harassing of women 

patients expresses a need for them to dominate and control 

women. 

Catholic clergy and laypersons loudly recite their 

rosaries and vociferously accuse both patients and defenders of 

being "Agents of Satan." 

Women's Health Centers provide routine gynecological 

health care which includes pelvic examinations, PAP tests, 

breast examinations, sexually transmitted diseases testing, 

contraceptive services, pregnancy testing, counseling services, 

12 



and laboratory services, as well as first and second trimester 
abortion procedures under local or general anesthesia. 

Young girls and women seeking these gynecological 
services must enter the clinic while being assaulted by ugly 
posters and barraged by men with bullhorns who harangue and 
harass them. 

Women scheduled for abortions have been 
fast and are frequently feeling weak and queasy. 

required to 
On the days 

when the clinic is under siege women are forced to wait outside 
in their automobiles, sometimes for several 
pol ice to clear the blockade. Some become 
staff and volunteers attempt to comfort them. 

hours, for 
distraught, 

the 
and 

Some women are in the second day of a two-day process, 
laminaria, and must receive attention immediately or they can 
suffer severe adverse effects. On the days the clinic is 
blockaded. these women must be sent immediately to another 
facility several miles away, in Pennsylvania. 

In August of 1989, while giving instructions to one of 
these women, a trespasser who was harassing the patient, 
reported to the police that I had "touched" her. A policeman 
threatened to arrest me even though I was wearing a clinic 
escort sign and was assisting patients at the request of the 
Cherry Hill Women's Center. The trespasser was violating· the 
law by being on the property. 

During the April 29, 1989 blockade attempt, our clinic 
escorts were able to hold the door and were able to assist all 
patients in reachi~g the door even though the trespassers 
pushed, shoved, and kicked the patients, our volunteers, and 
the police -- all of us. During the invasion I was knocked to 
the ground, and later, when I was crushed against the door, I 
felt panic and und~rstood how it was possible for those soccer 
fans to be killed. Some patients were thoroughly terrorized. 

I 1eft the Cherry Hill Women's Center at 11:00 a.m., 
called the New Jersey State Police to report that the situation 
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at the Cherry Hill Women's Center was out of control, and asked 

for their assistance. We had previously had a conference 

concerning the clinic blockades with a representative of the 

State Police, at their request. I was told later that State 

Police are not allowed to provide assistance unless requested 

to do so by the municipality. 

We request this Commission to investigate the 

possibility of revising this regulation. We question why, when 

blockades occur, one municipality should be expected to assume 

the expenses of the police, courts, and jails, when Women's 

Health Centers serve women in all municipalities in all 

counties in large regions of our State? There are only a few 

of these health centers. 

Presently, there is no uniform law enforcement of 

existing ordinances against blockades. Women are discouraged 

by officials from filing complaints. They are told that the 

chances of successful prosecution are slim. I feel that a 

State ordinance is needed which would require police to arrest 

those who invade clinic property, before they have the 

opportunity to "seize" the door, and would require courts to 

levy and enforce strong penalties. 

We request this Commission to investigate the 

possibility of drafting an ordinance which would require 

Operation Rescue to notify the police as to the location of 
their proposed blockade, as was required by the police during 

their assaults in New York City. Much time, expertise, and 

resources are ~asted by the police· and the volunteers who 

defend the clinics because of having to be constantly ready to 

respond to a blockade or siege. 

We request ·this Commission to investigate the 

possibility of drafting State regulations which would prevent 

the harassment of Women's Health Center employees off the site 

and would prevent the targeted picketing of their homes. 
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Well, there's a little section in here about crisis 
pregnancy centers, and the fact they can advertise free 
pregnancy testing, and yet legal medical centers are not 
allowed to. But since we're talking about the blockades, I'll 
skip that for the moment. 

In summation, I feel that the blockading of Women's 
Health Centers, thus denying women access to legal health care, 
is discrimination against women. The First Amendment does not 
grant the right to be violent or intimidating in expressing 
one's opinions. 

Women are not offered equal access to medical 
facilities and basic health care. Poor women are denied 
medical care which is available for affluent women. 

In addition to opposing abortion', most of those, 
especially the male'S, ·who lay siege to women's health centers, 
also oppose birth control and sterilization. Yet, they do not 
harass or prevent men from obtaining vasectomies nor intimidate 
them when they seek routine urological health care. 

There is no segment of our society, other than women, 
which is denied access to health care and/or harassed while 
seeking health care which is their right. 

Thank you. 
DR. RUBEN: We'll hold the questions until after I'm 

finished. This is the same topic. 
My name is Dr. Kathleen Ruben, and I'm co-coordinator 

with·Lucile of the South Jersey Clinic Defense Task Force. 
My testimony· concerns the need for a State law which 

would guarantee women the right of equal access to medical 
care. A modified version of a Maryland statute which I have 
attached to my testimony. It would carry a mandatory fine of 
$500 for the first offense, $1000 for the second offense, 
and/or a term of imprisonment of up to 90 days for obstructing 
a person's passage to or from a medical facility. Passage of 
this law would be the first step in redressing the damaging 
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effects of discriminatory municipal law enforcement that has 
commonly been the response to violent demonstrations at New 
Jersey health care facilities that offer abortion services. 

There 
discrimination. 
protected under 

are many complex reasons for this 
Local officials may argue that protesters are 
the First Amendment. Anti-choice protesters 

who demonstrate at the clinics are, according to this argument, 
simply exercising the right of free speech as guaranteed by the 
Constitution, and must therefore be allowed to do so. This 
seems reasonable until one actually visits a clinic when it is 
under siege by Operation Rescue. The violent nature of the 
demonstration becomes obvious. Two hundred individuals, mostly 
men, trespass on clinic property, blockade the door, and 
assault escorts, patients, staff, and physicians. 

In light of this activity, the Supreme Court has 
indicated that the blocking of a clinic door is not a protected 
form of free speech. It upheld an injunction against this 
behavior that is in force in Georgia, and let a similar 
injunction stand in New York. The New York case calls for 
fines of $100, ooo for each offender and authorized collection 
through liens on income and bank accounts. It found that the 
blocking of clinic doors was not an acceptable form of 
communication in a democratic society, and 'that the civil 
rights of women were definitely being violated. The Court 
compared these women's rights to those of blacks who attempted 
to gain access to segregated establishments in the early days 
of the civil rights movement. Federal marshals, in those 
cases, were assigned to escort blacks into these buildings 
because of the volatile nature of the situation at that time. 

These volatile conditions affect all New Jersey women 
now who are seeking gynecological or abortion services at local 
women's health care facilities. I have had firsthand 
experience with the violence that has been focused on women who 
attempt to enter these clinics. As Coordinator of the Clinic 
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Defense Task Force, I have helped to organize teams of escorts 

to help women at the clinics. I have also conducted training 

sessions for teams in other parts of New Jersey and have spoken 

with clinic administrators throughout New Jersey. The story is 

pretty much the same; one or two groups of individuals travel 

from clinic to clinic and continue to disrupt service. 

It doesn't matter whether or not the woman is young or 

old, whether she's the doctor or the patient, whether she is 

there as a volunteer to help the clients, or whether she is 

just walking her dog. If she's in the vicinity of that clinic, 

she is a target for violence, harassment, and verbal abuse. We 

can't even imagine this happening to men on a routine basis. 

If priests or bishops were knocked down every time they tried 

to enter their church, we'd see quite a different response. 

Because the women involved are often most likely young and 

usually without money or influence, it's easy for people to see 

them as victims. 

The impact on these women is devastating. One woman 

who was nine months pregnant was recently surrounded by 

anti-choice individuals who tried to keep her from entering her 

private doctor's office in Willingboro for vital prenatal 

care. They asked her repeatedly not to kill her baby. She and 

her mother almost turned back. During other Operation Rescue 

attacks, individuals who are there to provide safe passage for 

clients are often pushed against clinic doors. 

Lucile went into what else happens there at the 

clinics. It's in my testimony; I wonit repeat it, but I have 

been there in the crush. I have been ribbed. People have 

poked me in the ribs; they have tried to strangle me. I have 

seen patients knocked to the ground. I will be passing around 

pictures where the administrator of the Cherry Hill Women's 

Cen-ter was grabbed by the hair and thrown to the ground. I 

could go on, but the violence there-- The doctors are 

attacked, and it's not a peaceful demonstration. There's no 

way that it can be described as a peaceful demonstration. 
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One woman, in particular, I will never forget. She 

was out in front of the clinic when it was very hot, and she 

was sitting there waiting to get in because she had had a 

laminaria in place and she had to get into the center. She 

couldn't go home. She couldn't go anywhere else. She was 

forced to stay there. 

She was out in the parking lot for over five hours 

with these individuals harassing her. She was afraid to go to 

the bathroom. She didn't have anything to eat or drink because 

she had to wait for her procedure, and when I finally went to 

her and tried to help her and took her to the bathroom, she 

told me that her friend had drank bleach because she wanted to 

abort so badly. I said, "Don't worry about it; you will get 

in. You don't have to make that decision." 

But we're talking about women who are desperate. 

They're not just there to get their teeth pulled. They're 

there for operations that are necessary. They have searched 

their souls, and they have decided that they are going to go 

through with it. 

And in the case of people who have laminaria inserted, 

they must have attention, or they risk infection and possibly 

death. 

It is vital that women have access to local clinics 

for routine gynecological services, prenatal care, and abortion 

services. Ninety-seven percent of all abortions are performed 

in local nonprofit and private clinics. Without these clinics, 

women would not have access to safe and legal abortion, 

irrespective of the laws safeguarding that right in principle, 

because they would not be able to afford hospital procedures. 

Only 13% of all abortions are performed in hospitals, 

in part because of the high cost of $1000 to $1600 per 

procedure. This low percentage also reflects the fact that 

most abortions are not required to be performed in a hospital 

because they're performed before 15 weeks gestation; 95.8% are 
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performed before 15 weeks gestation. While hospitals may 

accept Medicaid patients, only four clinics are able to do so 

because of the special licensing requirements. They have been 

repeatedly attacked by Operation Rescue. The ultimate goal is 

not to just harass the patients, but to close the clinics 

permanently, and if the clinics are closed, there's no place to 
go. 

Recently the u.s. Supreme Court determined that 

Operation Rescue was actually involved in a conspiracy to close 

these clinics, and found that the clinic which brought the case 

to the Court -- which was the Northeast Women' s Center in 

Philadelphia was entitled to triple damages under the 

Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organiza :ions Act. However, 

most Operation Rescue members have already transferred their 

assets and make it impossible to recover legal fees, which were 

in this case in excess of $150, ooo. This is the way that 

Operation Rescue wears down the individual clinic owners by 

involving them in lengthy and costly lawsuits, by harassing 

staff and physicians at their homes, at the clinics, and even 

in public restaurants; making normal life seem impossible fer 

those involved. 

In addition, demonstrations create noise, traffic 

hazards, and unsafe conditions for those who live in the 

neighborhood. Even though most individuals in the community 

support the clinic involved, they sti-ll yearn for peace and 

tranquillity. This actually has instigated a ground swell of 

·support for laws such as the one I am urgently asking you to 

support and to introduce in the Legislature. 
Local officials have also expressed frustration over 

this continued disruption in the communities. They are looking 

for help, really. Each time that the Cherry Hill Women's 

Center is attacked by Operation Rescue, it costs over $6000 in 

costs that are primarily police overtime pay. The perception 

is that this money and effort is largely wasted because nothing 

19 



is being done to deter the behavior and change the situation. 
It has led to a reduction in the police intervention in some 
communities. They simply can't afford to continue to send 
police out in these numbers every time the clinic is hit. 

Police complain that they literally break their backs 
and risk injuries to themselves time and time again and nothing 
ever happens to the individuals who break the law. Their cases 
take years to be heard, and when they finally are heard, the 
offenders get another warning and yet another token penalty, a 
token fine. This high cost of police intervention and the low 
police incentive due to uneven judicial enforcement may account 
for insufficient police protection 

However, a more insidious 
of adequate police protection 
involvement -- the follow-through 

at some New Jersey clinics. 
explanation of both the lack 
and the lack of judicial 
from the judges -- can also 

be explained in terms of bias, personal prejudice. People tend 
to view this issue as an ideological one rather than one 
concerned with the maintenance of law and order for the common 
good. The escorts, clinic staff, and patients are seen as 
forming one army or team, and the Operation Rescue trespassers 
are seen as forming the opposing team. These two armies are 
using the local clinic, according to this view, as a 
battleground where the battle over whether it is "right" or 
"wrong" to have an abortion will be fought. That leaves the 
police, the judges, and the town council members to base their 
action on their own personal bias and beliefs on the abortion 
issue, and the issue, really, of equal rights for women, and 
they simply root for the team of their choice. Since the 
clinic becomes a war zone, the normal laws that apply are 
suspended. 

Individuals who are assaulted during this time are 
actually told not to bother to file charges. I know this from 
personal experience. Operation Rescue members routinely file 
fake countercharges against the people who have filed assault 
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charges, and the judge who hears both of them apparently can't 
determine who is telling the truth, so they throw the case out 
of court. This happens time and again. 

I had a situation where I was knocked over and thrown 
to the ground. It happened to be in Philadelphia, but this 

happens all over New Jersey. Police told me, "Don't bother to 

file because nothing is going to happen." 

So, if there is no assault law enforced, and people 

aren't removing them because of the trespass law, well then, it 

is a lawless zone. You are protected by no laws there. We 

have to have something that comes from the State. 

Operation Rescue members are permitted, are allowed, 

to trespass on clinic property, as I pointed out, for several 

hours at some clinics, before police action is taken. So the 

current laws on the books which prohibit trespass and assault 

leave enough to the discretion of local police and officials to 

render them inadequate to mandate nondiscriminatory law 

enforcement in communities with women's health care 

facilities. Even though some progress has been made in 

communities such as Cherry Hill which has passed .an ordinance 

which prohibits blocking access to and egress from a health 

care facility, and in other communiti_es where injunctions have 

been obtained, enforcement is still uneven and inadequate. 

In Cherry Hill police protection has increased 

somewhat, and offenders have been given relatively serious 

fines with the risk of a suspended driver's license or a jail 

term for nonpayment. U~der the ordinance, police can take 
direct action to remove individuals who block clinic doors 

without a complaint filed by clinic personnel. This is very 
important. Police file the charges; they testify in court. 

This saves the clinic time and legal fees. They do not have to 

continuously pursue the endless court cases that come out of 

these actions. 
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However, offenders in Cherry Hill have yet to be 

sentenced under the new ordinance, apparently because of the 

description of medical health facility and its applicability to 

clinics and private doctors' offices such as the Cherry Hill 

Women's Center and other doctors' offices in New Jersey. This 

has become yet another excuse to continually debate the issue, 

even in Cherry Hill where the law was passed, and continues to 

postpone the enforcement of the ordinance and the passing out 

of these fines that are supposedly going to deter the behavior. 

The changes in Cherry Hill are the result of extensive 

lobbying, which is a continuing process. It requires an 

incredible amount of energy and perseverance. Even if it were 

possible for Lucile and I to mount a campaign in every 

community, it would take years to accomplish what would be 

accomplished by your group pushing for the enactment of a State 

law which we are proposing. 

Local response changes with the change in personnel 

and policy, and since personal bias plays such a prominent role 

in this area, the solution to this problem must not be left to 

local officials or ordinances. These ordinances do not bring 

the full range of legal remedies to bear in the case, and I'm 

told that the judge in Cherry Hill is hesitant to use the 

ordinance because he may not be able to suspend their driver's 

licenses, or whatever you can do with State ordinances, nor can 

council members, police, or judges be expected to c~:mtinually 

safeguard the civil rights of women at the clinics, especially 

since the personnel. does change and their views continue to 

change with them. 

In conclusion, inadequate police protection and 

inconsistent judicial enforcement have denied women equal 

protection under the law. These practices are discriminatory 

insofar as they fail to protect the civil rights of women who 

attempt to gain access to the medical facility of their 

choice. I am a woman among many who has been injured while 
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trying to gain access to the Cherry Hi 11 Women's Center and 
other centers for myself as an escort, as well as for the 
patient who I may be escorting at that time. 

I feel that the State of New Jersey has the.obligation 
to protect women like myself who may find themselves at a local 
women's health care facility for whatever reason. Women should 
be able to stand in front of· any private business in New Jersey 
without fear of bodily harm. And yet it . is a frightening 
experience to stand in front of a clinic before dawn, perhaps 
knowing that anti-choice demonstrators are converging on the 
clinic and that they will soon be attacking. The worse part of 
it is knowing that there may be periods of time during the 
siege when no laws are in force to protect you, and no police 
officer is there who would care to. 

We desperately need this law to remove the legal 
immunity now enjoyed by Operation Rescue members in various 
communi ties, and to provide impetus to local governments to 
clear protesters from private clinic property with all due 
speed, to arrest and charge all individuals who have 
trespassed, and to make sure that individuals who have impeded 
access to the clinic, or assaulted women, have been prosecuted 
to the fullest extent of the law. 

Thank you. Oh. And I have pictures here which I have 
Xeroxed and attached to your information. I need to have these 
two back, and this one the Commission members can keep. You 
wi 11 see that in the top picture that I would 1 ike to pass 
around initially, the administrator of the clinic is being 
harassed and she was thrown to the ground while she was telling 
the individuals that they were trespassing. She is required to 
do this by the police department. 

Essentially individuals block the clinic door, and 
they assault the individuals who are in the clinic vicinity. 

If you have any questions now, we'd be happy to answer 

them. 
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DR. VAN JONES: Do you have any other recommendations 

other than the law that you have just passed -- I think it was 

attached to your testimony -- about the Maryland, you know, 

about the regulation, the state regulation? Any other 

recommendations for the Commission? 

DR. RUBEN: Well, Lucile had mentioned that if there 

was some way of involving the State Police in monitoring 

this-- The municipalities definitely need help in enforcement, 

and for some reason they're unwilling --they're unable to move 

along in this area. And also, if there were a requirement that 

the individuals notify the police department ahead of time-- I 

mean, you can have as many laws as you like, but the 

enforcement is the important part of it. If the Commission 

took an active role in even making it known that the State of 

New Jersey wanted to see that clinics were kept open, that 

would be an incredible impetus in itself. It's all part of 

creating an atmosphere where people realize that we want to see 

these places kept open. 

MS. PFLEEGER: · The State Police contacted me 

personally because I write letters to the editor, and so we met 

at the Cherry Hill Women's Center. The cochair at the time, 

Vickie Gibson, who has been involved in this a long time, and 

the reason for talking to us was to-- He is supposed to 

prevent violence, and so he wanted to know if we are going to 

be violent. I said, "We don't plan anything. All we do is 

react. We're just there to protect the clinics." 

So that day when I left and called them, I understand 

that they did come down and they cruised past, but the 

regulations are that they are not allowed to -- unless invited 

by the municipality come in there and JOln in in 

protecting. You know, the police were there that day. My 

husband is not a very well person, and he was there sort of 

standing in the back line. He was just horrified to see the 

way those demonstrators were beating on the police. They were 
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beating on us. We were taking the young women over the top of 

the hood of a car and down in to get them into the door. I 

mean, it was a real battle that day, and here they were shoving 

and pushing the police. There should be some rule that they 

can call other municipalities or the police. I mean, the 

policemen I talked to indicated that they're willing to come 

help, but the law needs to allow them to come help. 

DR. RUBEN: Well, if you take it one step further, 

during the early -- as I said before -- civil rights movement, 

they had Federal marshals who assisted individuals in getting 

individuals into buildings, and I don't think it ' s so 

farfetched that we assign someone. from the State to go and 

monitor what's happening at the clinics. And, if necessary, 

assign individuals to help these patients get into the centers. 

You see, I didn't know whether that was possible under 

the State law, to get people to come to the centers. It may 

well be, I don't know. I didn't put that in my testimony but 

that would be a good--

MS. PFLEEGER: I don't know whether I stated it 

adequately, but you know, we were making a list of the places 

where there is free pregnancy testing. There's only a few, you 

know; there are only a few of these clinics throughout the 

State. Family Planning does-- There's only one Family 

Planning facility where 

Cherry Hill serves all 

abortions 

of South 

are done. So, 

Jersey. · There 

you know, 

is one in 

Atlantic City, but people come from all over, long distances, 

and yet the Cherry Hill police have to handle this. What we're 

trying to say here today is, we think it's a State function, 

that that municipality shouldn't have to bear the brunt of all 

that defense. 
DR. RUBEN: Nor will they. I mean, they, you know, 

need a little help in handling whatever they can handle. 

MS. PFLEEGER: Yeah, well, Kathy's-- We've been, you 

know, we've been to the Cherry Hill Council meetings time and 
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again, and of course, the other side comes and we propose an 
ordinance-- You see, they were picketing the Director's home, 
and terrorized her teenage daughter who happened to be there 
alone, and that ended up a tie. So there is no ordinance that 
prevents them from going and picketing her house. They see her 
on the street and they say, "We're going to come get you." 

DR. RUBEN: They followed her several times. 
MS. PFLEEGER: So, anyway, we go to the Council 

meetings and they did pass this last ordinance, but now we're 
finding it's not being very effective. I have in front of me 
the proposed one, the Senate bill, you know, nationally, that's 
pending. It's Senate No. 23?1. This would propose that it 
would be-- They'd be guilty of a Class "E" Federal felony, 
punishable by a sentence of up to three years and a fine of up 
to $250,000, in addition to restitution for any damages to 
property or bodily injury sustained by a victim. 

Now, that's pending. What we're saying is that we 
would like to see the State of New Jersey pass one. 

DR. RUBEN: Well, the only reason I didn't mention the 
Federal -- the one in Federal committee -- is because, judging 
from the atmosphere with the Federal government, with President 
Bush's vetoes of the various bills that come past, I think that 
that probably is not going to get very far. But, I think in 
the State of New Jersey, there's a chance that we might be able 
to do something, at least for the women-in New Jersey. 

MS. PFLEEGER: You know, I get up at 4: 15 in the 
morning and I have to drive up from Glassboro to Cherry Hill, 
and it's wonderful to see, 
police cars out there in the 
middle of this huge highway. 

sometimes five, six, seven, ten 
street, you know, right out in the 

They stay around and then when 
they're changing shifts, sometimes there are 10 or 12 cars, and 
then we stand there anxiously, you know. Here we are, old 
people, and we know that we have to get to that door and hook 
our elbows if they show up. Then the police cars start fading 
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away as they've changed the shifts, and then they wi 11 come 

back later on and they will park across, and-- But, they don't 

get out of their cars. We handle trying to keep the driveway 

clear, and so forth, so we're not saying that Cherry Hill does 

not give us any cooperation. They give us cooperation, but 

it's a lot to be asked of a municipality and a police 

department. 

DR. VAN JONES: Are there any questions? 

MS. SAMPIERI: I don't have any, thank you. 

MS. PERELMUTER: I just have one brief question, and 

that is: Do you have any idea what kind of effect the law has 

had in Maryland; what responses they've had; how it's worked 

out? 

DR. RUBEN: No. Unfortunately I don't have access to 

that information. I have one person who is a law student who 

has been helping me, but I really don't have access to that 

information. 

MS. PERELMUTER: Thank you. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay, thank you. 

MS. PFLEEGER: Thank you. 

DR. RUBEN: Thank you. Has everyone seen the photos? 

(no response) 

DR. VAN JONES: Our next two speakers are Joan Bertin, 

from the Women's Rights Project of the American Civil Liberties 

Union, and then we have 

from Columbia University. 

going to talk to us. 

Jeanne Stellman, Associate Professor 

I understand that the two of you are 

J 0 A N B E R T I N, ESQ.: We're 

order, though. Dr. Stellman is going to go 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay, fine. 

J E A N N E S T E L L M A N, Ph.D. : 

going to switch the 

first. 

Basically what I'm 

going to do is spend a few minutes talking about some of the 

background, technical and scientific issues that relate to 
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aspects of sex discrimination and public health in the 

statutes, and then Joan, who is the lawyer, will speak about 

the policy aspects of this. 
You don't actually need a professor to come down and 

tell you that women are different biologically than men; we all 

know that. The issue is: Do the biological differences that 

we know about, in particular with respect to toxic chemicals 

and to arduous environments and in the workplace-- Does that 

biological difference require different treatment, particularly 

in the workplace? 
First, let me go back and say that, in fact, I think 

you do need to relook at the question as to whether it Is 

significant; whether it is an interesting question to think 

about whether women are different from men biologically. It Is 

very easy to make that statement, but in fact, when you say 

women and men, for almost every biological function and every 

medical function, you are really talking about a distribution 

of traits. There is a distribution-- The simplest example is 

height. But, there is generally a normal distribution of 

traits, and by and large for most of these traits the 

differences within the sex are greater than the differences 

between the sexes . That was very much the basis for saying, 

"Well, you just can It make generalizations about who can lift 

what and who can work in which kind of strenuous environment." 
It is unquestionably true that women are childbearers, 

and men are not. But, it is also unquestionably true that 

there are two very important points with respect to women and 

childbearing that are all too often overlooked. The first very 
important point is that, although women are capable of being 

childbearers, women are not always childbearers. Women are not 

perpetually pregnant until proven otherwise, and in fact, in 

modern day America, pregnancy planning is an integral part of 

the life of certainly every working women, and on the average, 

women in the working classes, the middle classes and on up, 

have fewer than two children each. 
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In order to achieve having fewer than two children 

each, you must control your pregnancies, and birth control and 

pregnancy control are the modus vivendi in American society. 

Women, while they are capable of being childbearers, are not 

perpetual childbearers, and pregnancy is not a contagious 

disease. We are perfectly capable of controlling our own 

procreation. 

The second very important point that is all too often 

overlooked in the issue of women as childbearers, particularly 

in the workplace, and particularly with regard to restraint 

from different activities, is that women are not alone in 

procreation. It takes a man and a woman to create a child. It 

is unbelievable, but you do need a professor to come down and 

tell you that. I have now testified in many hearings to the 

fact that men and women both participate in the child-creating 

process. Yet, despite that fact, our society does not require, 

for example, the testing of drugs for male reproductive 

effects. Our FDA rules still only require testing for effec :s 

during pregnancy. There are-- Joan is going to talk to you 

soon about many instances in which impact on the males in 

different environments is completely overlooked. 

We have a genuine dearth of knowledge about male 

reproductive effects. We don't have an overwhelmingly great 

amount of knowledge about female reproductive effects, but we 

are burdened by a great deal of male mythology, I think the 

most serious of which is the concept of some kind of super 

sperm in which there is a selection process that only the 

swiftest and most fit sperm is the one that actually gets to 

fertilize the egg. We know that this is not true. 

We know two things: That sperm are exquisitely 

sensitive and spermatogenesis is exquisitively sensitive to 

many environmental hazards, and that for some environmental 

hazards for which a great deal of experimental data is 
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available, like for ion1z1ng radiation, spermatogenesis is 
about 10 times more sensitive in males than it is in females to 
damage from radiation. 

We have learned within the last few years -- I believe 
it was actually some experimental work done by a drug company 
in New Jersey -- that the actual fertilization of the egg 
appears to be controlled by the ova and not the sperm. It is 
not the sperm selecting conquering the ovum -- as we 
actually see illustrations of in textbooks, but in fact, there 
seems to be some kind of genetic control within the outer core 
of the ovum which actually turns on a mechanism within the 
sperm and allows it to penetrate the outer layer of the ova and 
fertilize the egg. So, the very concept which has allowed us 
to picture women as vulnerable and men as invulnerable in 
various environments is not based on real biological fact. 

There is also the fact that women are born-- When a 
baby female is born she has between 300,000 and 400,000 
egg-producing follicles. By the time she gets to be 40 that's 
down to about 25,000, and over the course of a lifetime the 
average woman only produces about 400 mature eggs. There is a 
selection process going on there. We don't know what that is, 
but the same arguments that can be raised for saying why men 
can be exposed to environmental hazards, because of selection, 
because of regeneration, those same arguments can, in fact, be 
made about the female. I don't know whether they are 
legitimate arguments in either case, but there are, easily, 
parallels. 

We are burdened in setting rules and setting statutes 
with a lack of knowledge, and that lack of knowledge persists. 
There was just a GAO report that shows that National Institutes 
of Health studies still routinely exclude females from studying 
the effects for various risk factors and various environments 
for women. They orient toward males. These are generally for 
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chronic diseases, heart disease, where we associate males with 

being at greater risk. So, women are routinely left out of 
these studies. 

Similarly for reproductive hazards, males are left 

out, and you will have study after study after study that look 

at the effects of environmental factors on females as if we 

were a nation of hermaphrodites, a nation where Immaculate 

Conception was the rule of the day. So, we have these two 

areas of great unknown, and there are many important questions. 

We know that mutagens can affect sperm. We know that 

sperm can become distorted, that men can lose functional 

abi 1 i ty. We don't know, however, whether funny looking sperm 

make funny looking babies. We don't have these critical 

answers. We don't really understand the maternal _embryonic 

environment. We have many, many, rules proposed, for example, 

about lead, and Joan will talk· about some of these, but we 

don't even understand the dynamic of transference between 

maternal environment and the fetal environment and the 

embryonic environment with regard to lead. 

We have very great difficulties separating out 

low-dose effects and high-dose effects. For things like 

infertility, about 80% of all causes of infertility are not 

known, rather than known. There is a concept of attributable 

risk, which is, how much of an effect that we perceive can we 

associate with a particular cause? My husband did a study at 

the American Cancer Society on attributable risk in breast 

cancer in which they took the known risk faetors: whether your 

mother had breast cancer, your aunt had breast cancer, diet, 

the different proposed risk factors, and looked prospectively 

among their breast cancer cases, and those known risk factors 

could only account for less than 70% of the breast cancer that 

was there. 

So, by and large, we have large areas of unknown and 

the question is: "Well, what do we do in that case?" I think 
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Joan will spend soffie 

develop two kinds of 

time talking 

policies: We 

about the 

develop 

fact that we 

a policy for 

workers, for nonfertile women, for areas in our society where 

we as a society have said risk is acceptable, and where there 

is a dearth of data in those areas, we allow the exposures to 

continue. But when we come to potential fetuses and potential 

embryos, then we develop a "no risk at any cost" attitude, 

overlooking completely the unreality, the lack of reality of 

taking such a position. For example, if we are to say women 

shall not be in such and such an environment, what is the price 

that is being paid? What is the result of the stress of losing 

your job, for example? What is the result of being in a weaker 

economic position, of being without health care benefits? 

Those are all costs that have profound public health effects 

and individual health effects which are not in general weighed 

in the calculation. 

We're also burdened with an awful lot of bad science. 

We have study after study in which people's pet ideas about 

what one ought to do, translate into papers. I edit the 

journal, "Women in Health," and it is always possible to get 

something published, someplace. We reject about 90% of the 

submissions that we receive for the journal, and they always 

end up being published someplace. Somebody will always 

publish. Once you get your act together to write a paper, you 

can find a home for it. 

looking at the early effects 

that says that drinking as 

We have a study, for example, in 

of alcohol on outcome, and a study 

little as .one drink a day affects 

the motor neuron behavior of infants. Well, it turned out in 

this particular study that it made a difference which of the 

electroencephalograph technicians observed the infants. So, in 

their list of variables they actually have the EEG technician 

as one of the predictors. What of the biological model? You 

can drink if you go to this technician because then your kid's 

going to be normal, but you can't drink if you go to that 

technician because then, effects are going to be observed. 
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That's absurd. That's absurd, yet we have in the 
Congress, pending legislation to warn against any alcohol 
consumption at anytime when pregnant. Now, certainly you are 

not going to harm your child by not drinking when you're 

pregnant, but there's more than the child that's involved in 

the pregnancy, and that is: there's the effect on the mother. 

We have placed an enormous amount of stress on women by these 

injunctions warning them about every single thing that they do 

with regard to their potential outcome. I'm a mother; I have 

two children. You spend enough time when you're pregnant 

worrying about every little thing to begin with, without 

getting a lot of gratuitous warnings not based on anything 

scientific about what you ought to, or ought not to do. I 

think we perform a great disservice when we take flimsy data 

and somehow incorporate it into our public health rules and our 

public health statutes and give that flimsy data some sort of 

credibility because we have incorporated it. 

Life is a risky business, and I very firmly believe 

that I have spent my life trying to- achieve standards in 

occupational safety and health and air pollution and for 

veterans that lower the risks and provide the benefit, when 

benefit and compensation are due. I do believe, however, that 

we have to look at a situation, and look at it fairly and 

squarely and look at the data; look at what we know and don't 

know and consider the rights and the health of women apart from 

any potential role they may have as potential bearers of any 

potential fetuses that they may chose to carry at some time in 
their lives, and that we not compromise health, well-being, and 

safety of mind for ephemeral data. 
We have a great deal of work to do to provide a safe 

and healthful work environment and a safe and healthful 

workplace for pregnancy and for maternal well-being. We have a 

great deal to do in terms of prenatal care and postnatal care, 

education and training and availability of nutrition, and a 
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minimization of an exposure to toxins, both for men and for 

women. Each of the things that we do consider should take very 

carefully into consideration the role of the male, the role of 

the female, what we know, and what we need to truly prevent, 

and we must also take into consideration what we know about the 

demography of childbearing in our society. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. Thank you. 

MS. BERTIN: I suppose the overarching theme that 

connects our presentations is the notion that perceived 

biological differences between· the sexes is profoundly 

important to the development of social policy about women. The 

emphasis here is perceived differences, because I think what 

we've come to talk about primarily today is the question of 

whether the actual differences are as important as they are 

perceived to be, and the extent to which those differences are, 

in fact, exaggerated in ways that do women a profound 

disservice. 

There are three elements in particular that I want to 

draw out of Jeanne's remarks: The first is that women are seen 

primarily as reproducers. The second is that men are omitted 

from the reproductive equation altogether, and the third -- and 

these are merely a matter of emphasis, because Jeanne mentioned 

them all -- i'S the different standard of care applied to the 

reproduction when you are talking about women, and that's the 

zero risk issue. 

There are two particular areas in which I want to talk 

about the policy implications of these assumptions that mold 

not only public thinking about women and their role in society, 

but also influence scientists who design and. conduct research, 

and other scientists who read and interpret research. Lest we 

think that somehow scientists are not affected by the 

prevailing mythology of our time, I think that that's an 

incorrect assumption, and they plainly are, and for that 

reason, as Jeanne indicated, we have a dreadful inadequacy in 
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our research information in regard to the effects of toxins on 

male reproductive outcome and male reproductive function. 

I was listening to a toxicologist describe the 

differences between the study protocols that are applied to 

studying female reproductive outcome, which are tremendously 

sophisticated, and Jeanne could rattle off, I'm sure, like 15 

different study protocols, and then she said, "Do you know what 

we do with sperm? We look at them under the microscope." 

That is a fairly drc:.matic representation of the 

difference in the level of the sophistication of our 

examination. It's also one of the reasons why good students 

don't go into male reproductive toxicology as much as they go 

into female: because it's not at the forefront of medical 

science. Nothing much is happening. I mean, I don't know when 

the microscope was invented, but surely it was a long time ago, 

and nothing much has happened since then. 

That's sort of a background. Now let me talk about 

where we see this playing out in the employment context and in 

the social attitudes towards women who use sometimes 

infrequently; sometimes, not so infrequently drugs and 

alcohol during pregnancy. 

First of all in the employment area. There are, 

abroad in the land and in the State of New Jersey, as you 

probably all know, employment policies which are called fetal 

protection policies -- a term that I think is a misnomer -­

which condition the employment of women on sterility. In other 

words, in order to achieve full employment rights in the place 

of employment, a woman has to be sterile. As a result of these 

policies, which as you may imagine, are purportedly to protect 

against injuries to a fetus should a woman decide to become 

pregnant, some women have submitted to sterilization 

involuntarily, and other· women have submitted to abortions 

involuntarily. 
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The abortion cases obviously occur in places of 

employment where employers do not allow pregnant women to 

continue to work. Those policies are slightly different, but 

they're simply a variation on a theme, which is that pregnancy 

is such a unique, unusual, bizarre, special -- I don't know 

what kind of term you want to apply to it -- situation that it 

simply can't be accommodated in the normal scope of things. 

It's sort of like the Victorian confinement. Women who are 

pregnant simply have to be removed because we cannot assure 

them the zero risk environment that they require. 

These policies are prevalent in multinational 

corporations, many of which do business in the State of New 

Jersey. There was a lawsuit against the American Cyanamid 

Company some years ago which gained some repute. DuPont is 

reputed to have such a policy: Monsanto, General Motors, the 

list is quite a long list. We never really know who is going 

to pop up with one next, and indeed, we are counseling a woman 

who lives in Trenton and who was fired by her employer when she 

became pregnant, even though she had a doctor's note indicating 

that it was his opinion and the opinion of a medical geneticist 

that her employment posed no risk to her pregnancy. Her 

employer, nonetheless, determined that it was too risky for her 

to remain on and fired her. She is now without health 

insurance. 

I probably don't need to say this in too great detail, 

but- I do want to point out that with regard to nontraditional 

employment, which is the area in which these so-called fetal 

protection policies are most prominent, the places where women 

haven't traditionally worked are the places where they are, of 

course, most expendable; that this form of employment is 

profoundly important to the families and the women themselves, 

where the women are unskilled. Unskilled women otherwise will 

obtain work as a waitress, as a checkout clerk in a grocery 

store, cleaning homes, or some other form of minimum wage or 
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subminimum wage employment. Of the women that we have 
represented challenging policies that have excluded them from 
high-paying factory, unskilled factory jobs, these women report 
that their income tripled. Some of them were on welfare 
previously, but even as to the ones who were employed, the 
availability of this kind of employment is the difference 
between poverty and escape from poverty, and that is, of 
course, why you will see women get sterilized to keep these 
jobs, because of the profound economic threat. 

I think that the ultimate problem is that policies of 
this sort don't offer true health protection. They don't 
protect fetuses because, as Jeanne pointed out, we need an 
expert to come and tell us that men participate in the process 
of creating fetuses, and as much to the point, they don't 
protect reproduction. They also don't protect parents, and 
it's very hard to imagine a good life for children if they have 
sick parents. 

There's a case in the United States Supreme Court that 
I'll tell you a little bit about in a moment, that's a real 
case in point. It involves exposure to lead·, and the 
documentation with regard to the effects of lead on males, 
females, and fetuses is vast. There's enormous literature 
about the effects of lead. It is a highly toxic substance. 
Every time a well conducted study is done at lower and lower 
exposure levels, there are findings of toxic effects at lower 
and lower exposure levels. In other words, the more we look 
the more we find out about the toxic effects of lead, and it 
has never really been exonerated. 
that at ambient air lead levels, 

In any respect, we now know 
that we -- all of us --

experience in this country, there's a. significant risk of 
cardiovascular illness created by lead in the air for white 
males, in particular -- probably all males, but the studies 
have been done primarily on white males. It was on that basis 
that the Environmental Protection Agency has moved to eliminate 

all lead in gasoline. 
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So, here we have this highly toxic substance whose 

properties have been well documented in the literature, and we 

have in the United States Supreme Court an employer who 

operates 17 battery plants around the country who is trying to 

justify the exclusion of all fertile women from working in 

battery plants on the basis of the proposition that the fetus 

is hypersusceptible. 

Well, the fetus is plainly not hypersusceptible. The 

question, however, is, as a matter of social policy will the 

United States Supreme Court, or Congress, or some other body 

such as the New Jersey Legislature, decide to protect fetuses 

more than anyone else? Plainly, because the protection of 

fetuses simply cannot be achieved at the expense of their 

parents, we would advocate again~t that. 

The case is going to the United States 

under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

the Pregnancy Discrimination Act 

Supreme Court 

as amended by 

the Federal 

Antidiscrimination Law. It may well solve some of these 

problems nationwide, but we think there's a very important role 

for the states to play; particularly states wfth strong civil 

rights records and histories, because it's not at all clear or 

even likely that the Supreme Court will invalidate these kinds 

of policies and this kind of an approach for all purposes.· 

Therefore, it's critically important that we have states fill 
the gap here, and that we have a State law that says, 

unequivocally, that workplace health and safety cannot be 

achieved on the backs of working women, but that this State, 

and other states, will indeed insist on providing a safe 

workplace for workers of both sexes, since workers of both 

sexes have families to support and ·are entitled to that as a 

matter of their own dignity, in any event. 

Let me now talk a little bit-- Just in terms of the 

employment stuff-- Your law against discrimination is 

certainly a good, strong law, and your history in this State is 
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a good, strong history. It may well be necessary, as it has 

been in other contexts, to provide further amendment of those 

statutes to make it clear that sterilization is not 

appropriately required as a term and condition of employment 

for anyone; that employers must make employment opportunities 

available to all persons regardless of their childbearing 

capacity or childbearing intentions, and that the State will 

assist employers in making workplace health and safety 

accommodations that will address the special health needs of 

any subset of the population, rather than resorting to the 

exclusion. I understand that you have prohibited the reliance 

on atypical hereditary cellular blood traits of individuals in 

this State, and similarly, you know, if those individuals 

required some additional public health perspectives to be 

directed at needs in the workplace, that would be an 

appropriate role for state governments. It's certainly a role 

in which the state governments can truly act as the laboratory 

for the Federal government by developing innovative approaches 

to the health needs of specific subsets of the population. 

While I think that -- and I think Jeanne wi 11 agree 

with me by and large, the assumption of fetal hyper 

susceptibility is an invalid assumption, let us assume that 

sometimes pregnant women need special accommodation in the 

workplace, or that men with a history of cardiovascular disease 

need special accommodation. Surely, we should be prepared to 

provide that accommodation in ways that do not cost people 

their jobs or require them to alter their bodies ~o obtain it. 
Now, the next area-- There was a point in time, I 

suppose -- I can't remember exactly when it ended -- when this 

employment stuff seemed to be a self~contained issue. I think 

that it isn't a self-c·ontained issue anymore and what has 

happened in the last two or three years is that we have somehow 

come to see pregnancy as a condition that is so vulnerable and 

so subject to terrible conduct by mothers, that women just have 

to be regulated in all that they do. 
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While I must commend the State of New Jersey for 
resisting the rush to legislate in ways that will control women 
in all that they do when they become pregnant, I'm sure that 
you will all hear much about this problem in the next few years 
and so I want to spend a little bit of time talking about 
public and policy approaches to the issue of -- to the problems 
of alcohol and drug use during pregnancy. 

The assumption, I think, underlying efforts in other 
states to control the conduct of women during pregnancy is that 
women must be forced to do virtually anything to enhance fetal 
interest, and of course, this is the same theme that's 
underlying the employment policies that I just mentioned. It's 
one of the themes that draws these issues together. The other 
themes that draw these issues together are the themes that Dr. 
Stellman mentioned, having to do with the way in which science 
is selectively used to justify punitive conduct towards women, 
but fails to address the equally adverse effects of alcohol and 
drug abuse on men and on families as family units. 

Again, we see the same tendency in this area, the 
tendency to assign to women the whole responsibility for 
reproductive outcome and to impose on women very rigid and 
traditional standards of maternal behavior. I suppose ~s good 
an example as any is the notion that it's not acceptable for a 
women to work in a battery plant, where she is exposed to lead, 
if she . is going to become pregnant, but it is acceptable for 
her to work in a hospital, where she is exposed to lots of 
infection, drugs, radiation, and a variety of other things. 
That's simply a reflection of what we're accustomed to seeing 
and where we' re accustomed to seeing women, and how we have 
come to define a woman's role in.our society. 

Similarly, ·I think it's important to understand this 
phenomenon. It's almost impossible to talk about drugs and 
alcohol right now, because we believe so profoundly as a 
society that they're bad, and I'm not suggesting at all that we 
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should encourage women to use them; that's certainly not the 
point. But on the other hand, we have courts that have removed 
a child from a woman's custody based upon a single toxicology 
test of the newborn's urine -- a single positive toxicology 
test of the newborn's urine. That test may reveal that a woman 
has, indeed -- if it's a valid test -- and there's a question 
about the validity, but even assuming that it's a valid test, 
that a woman has taken a drug or smoked marijuana at some time 
in her pregnancy, or I should say within the last two or three 
weeks, because that's the length of time that you can get -- or 
some drug that mimics these in terms of the results of the tax 
screening but tells us essentially nothing about that 
woman's ability to be a parent. What I suggest to you is that 
the screening test may be a useful test for public health 
purposes, but it becomes a very destructive approach when· it 
triggers the imposition of any type of criminal or civil 
penalties, including the automatic removal of a child, because 
-- and we know this is true -- it simply drives women away from 
health care providers, causes them to lie about their behavior, 
and causes them to fail to seek the help they need. 

The issue of the use and abuse of drugs during 
pregnancy is an extraordinarily complicated issue and the 
response to punish pregnant women is an extraordinarily 
simplistic one. Let me just mention a couple of areas of 
complexity that I· think need to go into the equation of any 
discussion about this issue: 

The first thing is that we know that pregnant women 
who truly need drug and alcohol treatment services simply can't 
get them in most localities in the country. I do not have 
statistics on New Jersey, and it may be that no studies have 
been done in New Jersey, but I do have statistics on New York 
and Los Angeles, and the rate at which women who are pregnant 
are turned away from drug and alcohol treatment services is 
astonishingly high. Indeed, we have a lawsuit pending against 
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four drug and alcohol treatment centers in New York City for 

their outright refusal to serve pregnant women. So, you may 

recall catch-22? Well, this is it, because at the same time 

that these women are turned away from drug and alcohol 

treatment services, there's every likelihood that they will be 

exposed to a mass screening program which will pick up any drug 

or alcohol use, and which will then report them to social 

services in some localities; and if not social services, it 

will certainly report them -- in other localities will report 

them to district attorneys for prosecution. 

Then there is the question that Jeanne and I insist on 

asking, sometimes to others' discomfort: What about Daddy? 

What does his use of drugs and alcohol portend for a pregnancy, 

for the outcome of that pregnancy, and for that child's 

subsequent development and existence? And why is 

simply don't attend to this issue and address it? 

it- that we 

We do know 

with · regard to women who are heavy users of alcohol 

heavy users of alcohol -- that not all of them have 

very 

fetal 

alcohol syndrome. Of those who do and those who don't, we 

simply have no way of predicting who's at risk and who's not. 

and many researchers have suggested -- although this has been 

silent in our public health policy -- that perhaps it is the 

fathers who could explain why some outcomes are bad and other 

outcomes are not bad. We simply must be looking at paternal 

behavior and requiring men to assume the same degree of 

responsibility that we require women to assume based upon the 

same level of suspicion about the likelihood that their 

behavior will cause injury. And here I must say that the 

literature exists to suggest that all of these agents have very 

significant effects on the male reproductive function. 

Whether, as Jeanne says, they then produce funny looking kids, 

we do not know, but we will not know unless we ask the question 

and do the research to find out. 
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Again, I think that it's important to have the 
skeptic's view of the data. We really do not assist women if 
we do not provide accurate information about reproductive risk, 
but if we simply are hysterical and are scared of everything, 
then all is lost; then nothing has any significance. Our 
information must be accurate and it must be rational to people, 
or they won't receive it. None of us can seal ourselves in 
hermetically enclosed environments when we're pregnant, and we 
know that. Therefore, life is a process for pregnant women of 
trying to figure out what you can safely do, what you can't, 
what's a sacrifice, what's not a sacrifice. Even with regard 
to hard drug use-- and there's every reason to believe that is 
bad for a human being, and, therefore, probably every reason to 
believe it is bad for reproduction -- we still know very, very, 
little about the real reproductive effects. 

I just want to mention in passing a little article in 
"The Lancet," a medical journal, in December of 1989. It's 
called, "Bias Against the Null Hypothesis, the Reproductive 
Hazards of Cocaine." It reports that notwithstanding that the 
studies were of equivalent methodological value or were as good 
-- shall we say, in the vernacular -- the studies that reported 
a positive effect on reproductive outcome from the use of 
cocaine were much more likely to be reported in a scientific 
journal than the studies that reported a negative effect, or no 
effect. In other words, they looked at a group of people who 
admitted to cocaine use; they verified the cocaine use and 
examined the reproductive outcome, and they found nothing wrong 
with the course of the pregnancy reproductive outcome. Those 
.studies didn't get published, whereas the studies that did find 
an effect did get published. Once again, the most that one can 
say for this is not that women should go and take cocaine, 
plainly, and not that anyone should go and take cocaine, but 
that we do need accurate data in order to provide rational 
information that makes sense to people, and that they will use 
in conducting their lives. 
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I think that all of this focus on drugs and alcohol 
has taken our eyes off the single most important element of 
insuring and promoting good reproductive outcome, and that is 
the socioeconomic factors. Nutrition, poverty, and education 
-- those are factors that we know, and we have known for years 
and years and years. They have dramatically negative effects 
on reproductive outcome, and those effects can't be sorted out 
from some of these other effects. But when we are looking at a 
population of women who use drugs and alcohol, how easy it is 
to forget about the fact that these are all terribly poor 
women, and that if we could attend in the first instance to 
their standard of living and to their educational status, we 
would dramatically improve the chances for their lives and for . 
their children's lives. 

Two more i terns : We can't seem to get away, in the 
enforcement of these social norms, from leaning more heavily on 
racial minorities, and therefore all of these . programs that 
have punitive elements to them fall much more heavily on women 
of color. The last item is this: In some of these cases 
plainly we deal with a problem of hard choices, of women whose 
lives are terribly compromised, and men whose lives are 
terribly compromised, and families which are at grave risk. 
But in terms of how we approach this and what we do about this, 
one of the other things that we lose sight of is that when you 
take a child away from its mother or father, that child is 
going to go into foster care. 

So, let us look very hard at our foster care system to 
make a decision about that; whether that's where the resources 
should go, if we're going to put any resources into anything, 
and indeed I would say that we would have a much better shot at 
improving the well-being of this next generation of children if 
instead of plucking them from their families and putting them 
in foster care, which is a system which we've really never been 
able to do very much with, we put our resources into providing 
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social service support systems for families at risk that truly 
enable people to get the education, get the health services 
that they need, care for their children. Because a women takes 
drugs doesn't mean she doesn't care for her children, I assure 
you. I have met many of these women, and they care very deeply 
for their children and want to do the best by their children 
that they can, but their resources are very limited. Let us 
assist them in improving their status so that they can provide 
some measure of decent loving care to their children, as 
opposed to having children become wards of the State. 

Thank you. 
DR. VAN JONES: Do you have any questions? 

(addressing other members of the Commission) 
Any recommendation to us, as Commissioners here, what 

we can do about the problem, all the problems that you 
mentioned, the sparse number of treatment centers and so on? 
Any recommendations to us? 

DR. STELLMAN: Well, you know, there was just a study 
which I haven't had a chance to read, which the NIMH 
National Institute of Mental Health did on dramatic 
improvement for low birth-weight children and their IQ by 
having the families visited on a weekly basis, taught something 
about how to raise children, and then provided with, in 
essence, a Project Head Start type of program, but at a very 
early age. At the Public Health School I was talking to a 
friend who used to be a public health nurse, and she said, "Oh, 
it sounds like they're rediscovering· that we publfc health 
nurses should be back on the job doing what we used to do." 

I think we have a lot of recovery to do from the last, 
sort of, decade of neglect, where many excellent programs were 
really -- had a lot of the heart taken out of them. But I 
really have to emphasize what Joan says: We have all these 
weak models of what we believe are external evils that are 
wreaking havoc on our children, when it's really the 
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comr.onsense social needs of maternal education, paternal 

education, early nutrition, loving environment, and a nurturing 

environment that appear to have the most profound effects, even 

in things like these alcohol studies. So it's--

MS. BERTIN: I have one concrete thing, you know-- We 

could use models of successful treatment programs that handle 

pregnant women. We definitely need treatment programs that 

provide residential care with child care facilities attached to 

them. I mean, if you have a woman who's pregnant who has got a 

kid in tow, she's not going to get treatment unless somebody 

can take care of her kid. So, an awful lot of treatment 

centers -- this is definitely true in the drug treatment area 

-- are geared toward the male addict, not the female addict. 

DR. STELLMAN: But, life doesn't begin at conception 

and end at birth, you know. The more important time is after 

the child is born. We're focusing in on pregnancy as if that 

were the most vulnerable period, but it's not. 

MS. BERTIN: No, but in the drug area it's the most 

undeserved period. It's the tim~ in a woman's life when she is 

going to be the least able to get services and it's also-- The 

woman who has children is going to find the services that are 

available are uniquely unsuitable to her specific needs. I 

don't deny that we need an expansion across-the-board, but we 

see a tremendous lack of services that are sui table for women 
who are either pregnant or have young children. In those 

programs, if we could find some model programs -- there are a 

few of them around-- They could· really be useful around the 
country in proving what people say, which is, it's just too 

hard to do this. We can't make the services available; it's 

just too hard. 

So, that's one area. For example, in our litigation 

in New York, we found a number of model services that we hope 

will convince the judge and the New York State Supreme Court 

that, of course, these treatment facilities could provide these 
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services to women; they've just elected not to. 
area in which I think we could--

DR. VAN JONES: Make a recommendation? 

That's one 

MS. BERTIN: Yeah. I also think that the same is true 
with regard to the occupational context, that State agencies 
and authorities could provide guidance to employers -- specific 
guidance to employers -- with regard to handling special health 
needs in the work environment. I don't want to focus only on 
pregnancy, because I don't think it's unique to pregnancy. 

DR. STELLMAN: Well, and the more we learn about even 
adverse outcomes-- This study for the National Institute of 
Mental Health was on low-birth-weight, at-risk children, it was 
after they were born. The pregnancy is a very, very small part 
of this environment. The fact is, if you have a very toxic 
environment, the chances are more than likely that you're not 
going to have a successful pregnancy to begin with. That 
either from the male or female, you're going to have a 
spontaneous abortion -- a stillbirth. The number of adverse 
outcomes, birth defects, is relatively small compared to the 
huge social needs that we have for children and families and 
mothers and fathers and their roles in those capacities, which 
is where, I think, the effective discrimination lies. The lack 
of social support once you've had that child is just 
overwhelming, even for professional women. So I've never 
understood how women who could -- how working-class women have 
been able to cope, if it's hard enough when you have the money 
t6 buy services to be able to function. 

That seems to me to be the ultimate discrimination 
against women; that now we have an economic mandate to have all 
of our social roles, without any economic or social assistance 

to enable us to carry them out. 
MS. BERTIN: I suppose as President Bush prepares to 

veto the FMLA we could start thinking about building that from 
the ground up, as opposed to having it mandated from the top 
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down. Although, once again, it provides on the Federal level 

no economic support for women or men, but it at least secures 

employment, which is a big problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: You may wish to contact 

Assemblyman Kenny, who is the Chairman on the Alcohol and Drug 

Policy Committee. You may want to contact him, perhaps, to set 

up testimony· for that Committee. 

There are questions about whether or not there should 

be or should not be notices concerning fetal alcohol syndrome 

or other things that may not necessarily apply. But you may 

want to contact the Consumer Affairs Committee that I sit on 

before we start doing more notices. 

DR. STELLMAN: Well, the interesting thing-- Joan and 

I wrote an op-ed that appeared in The New York Times on these 

issues, and we've been besieged with letters from women who 

said thank you very much. You know, from highly literate women 

who were saying, "During my pregnancy I spent all my time 

wondering," or-- I had one of our student's mothers who gave 

birth to a child with bad teeth who sat down and reconstructed 

her whole alcohol imbibing. This was a woman who drank maybe 

three glasses of wine during her whole pregnancy. She went and 

looked up when teeth were formed and whether it was the glass 

of wine that had done this to her child's teeth. 

Now, I don't think that she was particularly 

neurotic. I think she is actually quite typical of the 

pressure that we're putting on women in terms of the concepts 

of excessive vulnerability and-- It's a slippery slope. We 

don't want to start adopting the arguments that have been used 

historically for not controlling environments, but on the other 

hand, we don't want to set up conditions that are unmeet able, 

and that are unrealistic and unfair to women. 

MS. BERTIN: Right. And it creates such a burden of 

gui 1 t on women, unreasonably, and makes them think that they 

cannot manage their lives in a rational intelligent way without 
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the fear of, if they don't conform to a zero risk model, they 

are going to do something terrible, and that's just not 

rational. 

DR. STELLMAN: But the problem we face as parents, as 

well. I mean, I still remember the time I whacked my kid once 

-- I hope that's not illegal in New York--

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Only if it's done with an ax. 

DR. STELLMAN: --and every time he does something 

wrong I say, "Well, maybe it was that time that I hit him," you 

know. I think that we become a little bit absurd in the way we 

conduct our affairs. 

MS. BERTIN: My personal position wouldn't be total 

opposition to warning signs and public health messages. We 

surely have to have them, but we need to have them be much more 

accurate, much more rational. The kind of thing that conforms 

·to a reasonable way that you would conduct your life, and not a 

set of unreasonable expectations. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: But, there's a difficulty in 

that. I mean, most of the notices are basic. You can talk to 

the restaurant owners, and I think they would be ecstatic to 

hear your testimony. There's just so much you can put on a 

poster in a restaurant, in the doorway, next to the cigarette 

machine, whatever. It's not a reading room. I mean, it's 

there for a quick, "This is possible." 

MS. BERTIN: Right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: "You should be careful. Go see a 

doctor." :Et 's probably as much as you can put on a notice 

document that-- where there's relative access by the public. 

I mean, you can go too far, or it can be too much of a scare 

not a scare tactic, but--

MS. BERTIN: Well, it was intentionally intended to be 

a scare tactic it was intentionally intended. And, of 

course, the population of women it reaches are the women who 

probably don't need its message. 
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DR. STELLMAN: It's preaching to the choir, in many 
ways, with many of these.. There's no good evidence that these 
warnings actually affect the behavior of those who really need 
the warnings, and we've spent an enormous amount of time doing 
this without any adequate indication, for example, that the 
cigarette warnings actually affected behavior as opposed to the 
general change of society's attitude, in which smoking has 
become unacceptable rather than acceptable. It's no longer 
glamorous. We don't see that, and it's not clear that the 
little warning on the cigarettes-- That's part of the 
symptomatic of the change of societal norm, but it's not clear 
if that warning has, in fact, done anything, or that if you-­
In polls, most people can't even tell you what the warnings are. 

So, we've done-- We convince ourselves of many 
things. I'm not saying that we shouldn't warn. One effect of 
the warning has been that the tobacco companies have 
successfully been able to fight lawsuits by saying that they 
have warned. They love the warnings. They don't fight the 
warnings anymore, at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Well, they do. They are fighting 
the warnings in one of our committees. But, obviously if the 
warnings are on there, that just helps them out in stopping 
liability. 

DR. STELLMAN: You know, these are all complex issues, 
and sometimes we take 
we've effected a change. 

DR. VAN JONES: 

very simpleminded approaches and think 

Okay. 
any more questions for you, 

No more. I don't think we have 
Joan and Jeanne. Thank you for 

your testimony. 
ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: You may want to contact the 

Committee because-- Consumer Affairs has been doing notices 
and labeling, and that's the appropriate Committee. I mean, 
the restaurant owners would embrace you. 

DR. STELLMAN: I don't--
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ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: What they said was, "We don't need 

these posters in here, because no one's going to change their 

behavior. There's not enough information on them, and it's 

another poster." And it scares people off from obviously 

drinking, which thereby supposedly reduces their business. 

It's a two-edged sword. 

becoming 

gotten a 

DR. STELLMAN: I don't think we're interested in 

spokesmen for the alcohol industry, although we've 

flurry of interest from our op-ed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Your responses and basis for lack 

of warning, or more tempered warning, or more accurate 

warnings, are exactly what they say. 

MS. BERTIN: Well, you know, it is sometimes possible 

that they are right, but perhaps for the wrong reason. 

DR. STELLMAN: ·one can't be responsible for one's 

bedfellows. 

MS. BERTIN: I mean, the other thing is that, you 

know-- My own feeling about it is that, I would go away as a 

critic, if the warning were a fair warning. I suspect if the· 

warning were a fair warning and were a gender-neutral warning 

and said, "Warning, alcohol is a reproductive toxin for men and 

women," then I would suspect that we would have a much more 

balanced response to that. "Well, of course, that must mean 

excessive alcohol. It surely doesn't mean just one drink." 

Nobody ever suggested that, but because of its limited focus on 

pregnancy and because of our willingness to see pregnancy in 

the way that we see it as a State in which the zero risk is the 

only acceptable model, the assumptions that are drawn from the 

message are quite different. 

DR. STELLMAN: That's exactly the point. It's not the 

point against warning people; it's against singling out 

particular phases of the biological cycle and zeroing in on 

women, and especially if they are already very worried about 
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everything and saying this is it. This is the time that you 
have-- If you take care of not drinking now, then drinking 
isn't a problem. That's the implication. 

And drinking during pregnancy-- First of all, one 
drink a day is not established, but secondly, at these levels 
males have altered spermatogenesis. You know, why shouldn't 
they be worried while they are sitting at that bar? Why should 
just the women be? 

MS. BERTIN: Yeah. And why should we not be raising 
I mean, I think warnings help to the consciousness overall? 

raise a general level of consciousness about certain adverse 
things. Why should we not be raising the consciousness of our 
society that these effects o~ male spermatogenesis may well 
contribute to the 60% or 70% of birth defects of unknown 
origin? Most birth defects, we simply don't know how they have 
occurred, but we do have biologically plausible explanations 
for assuming that--

DR. STELLMAN: Where we've bothered to get data on 
relative susceptibility, spermatogenesis is much ·more 
vulnerable to adverse effects than female reproduction. With 
radiation-- One out of three Down's syndrome cases we know for 
sure comes from paternal origins. It's not just tired old ova 
which are producing Down's children. 

MS. BERTIN: But I'll tell you, that's what I was told 
when I, you know, being an old mother, went in. 

DR. STELLMAN: An elderly-- Elderly pregnancy; that's 
what it's called. 

MS. BERTIN: I mean I was an elderly pregnancy, and 
they said, "Well, that's your old ova." 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: Mature pregnancy. 
DR. STELLMAN: No, no. The word is "elderly." elderly 

pregnancy. 
MS. BERTIN: I was an elderly prima gravita, but 

anyway. But we've--
DR. VAN JONES: Thank you. 
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Okay, I guess we're ready to start with our next 
speaker, Dorothy Roberts, a Professor from the Rutgers Law 
School in Camden. 
D 0 R 0 T H Y R 0 B E R T S, ESQ.: Actually I'm an 
Associate Professor at Rutgers Law School in Newark. 

DR. VAN JONES: In Newark, okay, very good. Let me 
erase this. 

MS. ROBERTS: My areas of expertise -- the courses 
that I teach -- are in civil liberties and criminal law. I am 
especially interested in the reproductive rights of women. of 
color. For the past year I have been conducting research and 
writing on the topic of the prosecution of women for giving 
birth to drug-exposed babies, so I will be covering some of the 
ground that the prior two witnesses testified about. But 
hopefully I'll give another perspective on the issues and 
expand on some of the points that they made. 

What I would like to focus on are two related 
subjects: The constitutional issues raised by the 
criminal ization of women who use drugs during pregnancy, and 
also a topic that was mentioned before, the scarcity of 
treatment for pregnant drug addicts. 

A growing number of women across the country have been 
charged with criminal offenses because they gave birth to 
drug-exposed babies. At least 50 so-called "fetal abuse" cases 
have been brought nationwide. Women who use drugs while 
pregnant have been cha.rged with crimes such as distributing 
drugs to a minor, child abuse and neglect, and manslaughter. 
In July 1989, Jennifer Clarise Johnson, a 23-year old crack 
addict in Florida, became the first woman in this country to be 
convicted of a crime for exposing her baby to drugs while 
pregnant. Johnson was charged with two counts of delivering a 
controlled substance to a minor when her two children tested 
positive for cocaine at birth. Because the Florida drug law 
did not apply to fetuses, the prosecution based its case 
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against Johnson on the 60-second period that a cocaine 

metabolite passed through the umbilical cord after the infants 

were delivered. In other words, they had to show that the 
cocaine was passed to a live born child, so they based it on 

the transfer of blood through the umbilical cord before it was 
clamped after the babies were delivered. 

Since Johnson's conviction, several other women have 

been convicted of crimes for using drugs during pregnancy. As 

far as I'm aware, there have been no such prosecutions in New 

Jersey, but I still think it's important for you to t~ink about 

it because 18 states have prosecuted women for using drugs 

during pregnancy. There's legislation being passed in states 

across the country, and I think it's important that you're 

prepared if such proposals are raised in New Jersey. I think 

they would be extremely unwise,. and let me give you my reasons 

for saying that. 

In my opinion, one of the most critical facts about 

the prosecutions is the identity of the women who have been 

charged with crimes. The overwhelming majority are poor and 

black, and I strongly believe that you cannot analyze this 

issue without looking at the racial and economic factors that 

are so prominent in these prosecutions. A memorandum prepared 

by the ACLU Reproductive Freedom Project reveals that of 46 

defendants where they identified the race and ethnic 
background, 33 were African-American, 10 were white, 2 were 

Latin, and 1 was Native American, so 33 out of 46 defendants 
were ·black women. It appears that virtually all of the 

defendants are poor. 
The disproportionate impact of the prosecutions on 

poor black women can be seen most clearly in the states that 

have initiated the most cases. In Florida, where two women 

have been convicted for distributing drugs to a minor, 10 out 

of 11 criminal cases have been brought against black women. 

Similarly, 18 women in South Carolina have been charged since 
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August 1989 with either criminal neglect of a child or 

distribution of · drugs to a minor. Seventeen of these women 
were black. 

This discriminatory enforcement is the result of 

several factors. It Is not that poor black women abuse drugs 

more than other women. That Is not the reason that they're 

being prosecuted in such relatively great numbers. It has to 

do with the identification of women who use drugs, and that 

depends on the ability of the government to detect them, 

obviously. Health care professionals report to government 

authorities black women who use drugs during pregnancy more 

readily than they report white women. This has been borne out 

in a recent study that was published in "The New England 

Journal of Medicine." Researchers studied the results of 

toxicologic tests of pregnant women who received prenatal care 

in both public health clinics and private obstetrical offices 

in Pinellas County, Florida. The study found that despite 

similar rates of substance abuse along racial and economic 

lines, black women were 10 times more likely than white women 

to be reported to public health authorities for substance abuse 

during pregnancy. 

Even apart from the racist dec is ions of health care 

professionals, poor black women will end up .as the primary 

defendants because they are the most closely moni tared by the 

government. Because poor black women are in closer contact 

with the government_ through public hospitals, welfare agencies, 

and probation officers, their drug use is more likely to be 

detected and reported. 

This disparate detection and reporting can clearly be 

seen in the screening practices of hospitals. The government's 

main source of information about prenatal drug use is the 

reporting to child welfare authorities of positive infant 

toxicologies by hospitals. Such testing is implemented almost 

exclusively by public hospitals that serve poor minority 
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corrununities. Private physicians tend to refrain from testing 

their patients for drug use because they have a financial stake 

in securing their patients' business and referrals, and because 

they are socially more like their patients. 

Moreover, the hospitals that perform drug-testing 

administer the tests in a manner that further discriminates 

against poor black women. One of the typical criteria 

triggering an infant toxicology screening is the mother's 

failure to obtain prenatal care, and poor women are more likely 

to fail to obtain prenatal care than wealthier women. Many 

hospitals have no formal screening protocols at all and just 

rely on the discretionary screening of hospital workers. That 

allows them to use their biased attitudes about poor minority 

women; their belief that they're more likely to use drugs than 

other women, and therefore they should be tested and then they 

don't test other women. These women then are, again, more 

likely to be reported to government authorities. 

I believe that these prosecutions punish women for 

having babies. I take this position for several reasons. The 

first reason lies in a technical analysis of the basis of the 

criminal charges. That analysis leads to the conclusion that 

it is the choice of carrying a pregnancy to term that is 

penalized. At the outset, it is important to recognize that 

the prosecutions are based on the woman's pregnancy, and not on 
her illegal drug use by itself. The defendants are not charged 

with using drugs. They are charged with violating criminal 

·child abuse or drug distribution statutes, crimes that relate 

to the fact that they are pregnant. The mother's otherwise 
illegal conduct only subjects her to the charges of child abuse 

and drug distribution if she is pregnant at the time she used 

the drugs. 

What I'm saying is, you can't just say these women are 

using illegal drugs, therefore it is all right to prosecute 

them. That's not the basis of the prosecution. They are 
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charged with crimes that very often hold greater penalties than 

just the crime of drug possession, and very likely if these 

women were not pregnant at the time they used the drugs, they 

never would have been arrested in the first place. 

The real basis for the criminal charges is illustrated 

by the only definite means of avoiding prosecution. When a 

drug-addicted woman becomes pregnant, she has only one avenue 

to escape criminal charges. If she aborts the fetus, she will 

avoid prosecution. If she decides instead to carry the 

pregnancy to term, she faces the threat of criminal 

conviction. Thus, she is penalized for choosing to have the 

baby rather than choosing the alternative of abortion. 

A second more fundamental reason for my position that 

these prosecutions constitute punishing these women for having 

babies is the suspect nature of the government's asserted 

justification for prosecutions; its concern for the welfare of 

potential children. The selection of poor black wo~en as the 

primary objects of prosecution . renders questionable any state 

interest in the welfare of fetuses in general. What I'm saying 

is, if the government was interested in ·protecting fetuses in 

general as a class, then you would expect that the policy would 

be more fairly applied. It's very difficult, I think, to 

justify a policy that just singles out a certain class and race 

of people to punish, and not everybody who causes harm to 

fetuses. 

A second reason that I say this is the historical 

neglect of blac~ children's condition in this country. When a 

society has always turned its head to the inadequacy of 

prenatal care available to these women, its current expression 

of interest in the health of unborn black children must be 

viewed with suspicion. The most telling evidence is the high 

rate of infant death in the black community. In 1986, the 

mortality rate for black infants was 18 deaths per 1000, more 

than twice that for white infants. And in some areas of New 
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Jersey it is just as high as that, which, by the way, is higher 

than the death rate in some so-called undeveloped countries. 

The main reason for this despicable rate of infant mortality is 

poverty and the inadequacy of prenatal care. I'd like to 

reiterate something that Joan Bertin said, which is we have a 

lot of information about what causes high infant mortality and 

low birth weight. It's, as I said, poverty and inadequate 

prenatal care. That's what states should be focusing on, not 

putting women in jail or punishing them in other ways. We 

should be focusing on what we know is going to benefit the 

outcome -- reproductive outcomes -- and that's improving access 

to prenatal care. 

All right, let me move on to the lack of treatment for 

pregnant drug addicts, which is something, again, that Joan 

Bertin testified about, but I would like to give some more 

facts about the lack of treatment. Again, if the State's aim 

were truly to protect the health of children, of drug addicts, 

we would expect the government to provide adequate facilities 

for drug treatment and prenatal care. Instead, a drug addict's 

pregnancy serves as an obstacle to obtaining these services. 

Let me just repeat that because I think it's an 

important point: Not only does the government not provide 

extra care for pregnant drug addicts, the fact that a drug 

addict is pregnant is an obstacle to her obtaining care. 

The needs of pregnant addicts have been virtually 

ignored by drug treatment programs. Treatment centers either 

overtly refuse to treat pregnant women or are effectively 

closed to them because they are ill-equipped to meet their 

needs. Most hospitals and programs that treat addiction 

exclude pregnant women because they are harder to treat -- so 

they say -- and their babies are more 1 ikely to be born with 

health problems requiring costly care. It is feared that 

treating addicts with high-risk pregnancies would sap a 

disproportionate share of the program's resources and subject 
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it to obstetrical malpractice suits. For the same reasons, 

prenatal care clinics often turn away pregnant women who are 
addicted to drugs. 

In addition to this all-out exclusion of pregnant drug 

addicts, there are several barriers to pregnant women who seek 

to use the centers that will accept them. Most drug treatment 

programs are based on male-oriented models that are not geared 

to the needs of female addicts. The lack of accommodations for 

children is one of the most significant obstacles to treatment 

for women. Most clinics do not provide child care and 

residential programs do not admit children. Treatment programs 

have traditionally not provided the comprehensive services, 

including prenatal care, gynecologic care, contraceptive 

counseling, appropriate job training, and counseling for sexual 

and physical abuse, that the women need. Predominantly male 

program staff and clients are often hostile to women clients 

and employ a confrontational style of therapy that makes many 

women uncomfortable. Moreover, waiting lists make treatment 

useless for women who need help during the limited duration of 

their pregnancy. If a woman is five months pregnant and 

there's a six-month waiting list to get into the program, it's 

not going to do her any good, at least for the term of her 

pregnancy. 

The lack of facilities 

cities illustrates the problem. 

for pregnant addicts in two 

Again, Joan Bertin alluded to 

a study that was done in New York. Let me just give you the 

figures that Dr. Wendy Chavkin found when she surveyed 78 drug 

treatment programs in New York City: 54% just all out denied 

treatment to pregnant women; 67% refused to treat pregnant 

addicts on Medicaid; and 87% excluded pregnant women on 

Medicaid addicted specifically to crack. These are the very 

women who are most likely to be prosecuted; 87% of the 

treatment centers in New York City would not admit them. Less 

than half of those programs that did accept pregnant addicts 

59 



provided prenatal care and only two provided child care, 

meaning that out of 78 centers, there were really only two that 

were accessible in the real sense of the word to poor pregnant 

drug addicts, addicted to crack. ·similarly, female drug 

addicts in San Diego must wait up to six months to obtain one 

of just 26 places in residential rehabilitation programs that 

allow them to-live with their children. 

I am aware of no studies of the availability of 

treatment for pregnant drug addicts in New Jersey. That might 

be something-- I don't know the full scope of your mandate, 

but that might be something you want to look into 

investigating. What is the status of treatment for pregnant 

drug addicts in New Jersey? I have reason to believe that the 

situation is no better here than it is in other states. A 1979 

survey by the National Institute on Drug Abuse found only 25 

drug treatment programs across the country that described 

themselves as specifically geared to female addicts. 

A third reason for viewing the prosecutions as 

punishing women .for having babies -- and I think this may be 

the most compelling reason for rejecting prosecutions as the 

solution to the problem of drug exposed babies -- is that there 

is ample evidence that they will not achieve the asserted goal 

of healthier pregnancies. Indeed, they will lead to just the 

opposite result. Charging drug-addicted mothers will often 

penalize the very women who seek prenatal care or drug 

treatment and discourage others from doing so. It is those· 

pregnant addicts who seek help from public hospitals and · 

clinics who will be detected and reported to government 

authorities. The women least likely to be punished are those 

who remain anonymous. Thus, the threat of prosecution will 

deter pregnant drug addicts from obtaining treatment for fear 

that they will be turned in. 

The Jennifer Johnson case -- the one I mentioned to 

you -- the first women who was convicted of a crime for 
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exposing her children -- her babies -- to drugs while pregnant, 

really in my mind gave the message that if you seek help, 

that's going to be used against you in a trial. 

If you look at the evidence that was used against her, 

the state's entire proof of her criminal intent were her 

efforts to get treatment. The prosecutor's theory was that her 

concern showed that she knew that her cocaine use harmed the 

fetus. The main piece of evidence was that while she was 

pregnant and had just gone through a cocaine binge, she called 

an ambulance to get her and take her to the hospital, and she 

expressed to the hospital workers that she was afraid that the 

cocaine -- the crack -- was going to hurt her fetus. That was 

the very evidence that the prosecutor used to prove her 

criminal intent; that she knew that this was going to harm her 

fetus, therefore she purposely caused injury or transferred the 

drugs to her fetus. 

Many health care experts have observed that cases like 

these make women wary of providing physicians with important 

information, and indeed, of seeking critical health care at 

all. There has been testimony before other government 

commissions, affidavits in cases like the Johnson case~ of 

health care workers who have said-- Women have called up and 

said, "I'm not going to come back because I'm afraid that I'm 

going to be turned in." 

In the Johnson case the key witnesses against her were 

her obstetricians who testified, you know, "She told me that 

she used crack during her pregnancy. She told me that she was 

concerned about the fetus." That was all used as evidence 

against her, and I'm sure that if she had it to do all over 

again she might have avoided ever going to a hospital or ever 

talking to a physician, or at least being honest with a 

physician about her drug addiction. 

All right, now I'd like to turn to some constitutional 

challenges to the prosecutions. There are, I think, a number 

of them. I'm going to focus on three: 
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Understanding the prosecution of drug-addicted mothers 

as punishing them for having babies transforms the 

constitutional issue. The question is not whether the State 

can justify limiting women's already illegal conduct during 

pregnancy to protect the fetus. It is whether the government 

may punish women for continuing a pregnancy, which is a 

constitutionally protected decision. 

In the Johnson case, for example, the prosecutor, in 

his oral argument, framed the constitutional issue as follows: 

"What constitutionally protected freedom did Jennifer engage in 

when she smoked cocaine?" And, of course, you don't have a 

constitutional right to smoke cocaine, but that was not what 

the issue was in this case. Johnson was not convicted of using 

drugs. Her constitutional right to smoke cocaine was never at 

issue. Johnson was prosecuted only because she chose to carry 

her pregnancy to term. Had she smoked cocaine during her 

pregnancy and then had an abortion, she would not have been 

charged with a crime. The proper question, then, is: "What 

constitutionally protected freedom did Jennifer engage in when 

she decided to have a baby, even though she was a drug addict?" 

I would submit that even though she is a drug addict, 

she still has constitutional rights. She still has the right 

to decide to carry a pregnancy to term. 

I would like to present three constitutional 

challenges· to the prosecution of drug-addicted mothers that 

focus on punishing women- for the status of being pregnant. As 

I said, there are other constitutional challenges as well,· but 

I will focus on those that deal with the punishment of the 

status of pregnancy. The prosecutions violate the Eighth 

Amendment's prohibition against cruel and unusual punishment. 

They deny women equal protection of the law, and they infringe 

on women's right to reproductive autonomy. 

Punishing drug addicts for having babies violates the 

Eighth Amendment of the Constitution because it constitutes 
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cruel and unusual punishment. The Supreme Court in Robinson 

v. California, that was decided in 1962, held that a statute 

that criminalized the status of being a drug addict violated 

the Eighth Amendment. This was a statute that not only 

punished the act of using drugs or the act of possessing drugs 

or distributing drugs, but just being a drug addict, and the 

Supreme Court focused on the punishment of a status, and held 

that that was unconstitutional. The prosecution of 

drug-addicted mothers punishes women because of a combination 

of two statuses: drug addiction and pregnancy. Defendants are 

not charged simply for using drugs, but for the biological 

consequences of drug use that can occur only if they also 

happen to be pregnant. An addict who discovers that she is 

pregnant cannot definitely avoid punishment unless she undoes 

her pregnant status by aborting the fetus. 

It was especially clear in the Johnson case. Part of 

the theory of the Robinson case as it 's been interpreted by 

sutsequent cases, is that you only can be punished for an act, 

you can't be punished just for being something; the status. In 

the Johnson case, if you remember, I explained that she was 

charged for transferring drugs through the umbilical cord after 

the babies were born. Well, that was not a voluntary act on 

her part. That was a biological function that resulted from 

pregnancy. Her act was using drugs which happened perhaps, you 

know, a couple of days before. I think in that case, because 

of the strange theory the prosecutor developed, it's espec~ally 

clear that she's being charged not for any volitional act, but 

for her status. 
The second argument is that prosecuting drug-addicted 

mothers violates sex equality norms. I'll elaborate, again, on 

what the prior witnesses testified about, this focus on women 

as being -- having all the responsibility for reproductive 

outcomes. Punishment on the basis of pregnancy affects only 

women. Since only female drug addicts can become pregnant, 
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laws that allow for their punishment alone, or that punish them 
more severely than male drug addicts who engage in the same 
conduct, have the effect of discriminating against women. Such 
laws also impose controls on women's lives that are not placed 
on men and thus limit women's ability to function equally in 
society. I think that was clearly shown in the laws that limit 
them in the workplace. Men do not have those kinds of 
restrictions, and clearly, if a woman is fired from her job or 
cannot get a job because of her potentially pregnant status, 
it's a clear example of how these kinds of laws restrict women 
iri ways that discriminate against them based on their sex. 

Laws that restrict women on the basis of reproductive 
capacity have historically served as the primary justification 
for denying women equal treatment under the law. I think based 
on this historical background, we should be especially 
concerned about applying them today. 

Moreover, women have been the only targets of 
prosecution for fetal abuse, even though certain conduct by men 
can harm the fetus. Conduct that causes genetic damage to the 
sperm can result in miscarriage, birth defects, neonatal death, 
and early childhood illnesses. Physical abuse of pregnant 
women by men can cause fetal injuries or death. I was thinking 
during the testimony of the prior witnesses, that maybe one of 
the greatest effects of alcohol is that many men who are drunk 
beat up their pregnant wives and girlfriends, and that is a 
great cause of fetal injury as well. I think we. should be 
concerned about that kind of effect of alcohol, as well as the 
effect on the pregnant women. 

Male exposure of pregnant women to harmful substances 
such as secondary cigarette smoke may cause damage to the 
unborn. An example of the discriminatory focus on women's 
conduct is the 1987 case in California of Pamela Rae Stewart. 
This is one of the first woman to be prosecuted for prenatal 
drug use. The charges were eventually dropped against her 
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because it was held by the court that the California child 
neglect statutes did not apply to fetuses. But she was charged 
and prosecuted for this crime when her child died shortly after 
birth, and part of the charges were that she failed to follow 
her doctor's orders to refrain from sexual intercourse with her 
husband. Now, her husband was aware of the doctor's orders and 
he initiated the sexual intercourse, but, of course, he was 
never prosecuted. He was equally as guilty of this fetal abuse 
as she was, but the whole focus was on the mother. 

Finally, punishing drug addicts for continuing a 
pregnancy also violates their right to reproductive autonomy. 
In my mind this is the strongest constitutional argument 
against punishing pregnant drug addicts. The decision to bear 
children has been acknowledged in num.erous Supreme Court cases 
as being at the very heart of choices protected by the right of 
privacy. The Court, in Eisenstadt v. Baird, which struck down 
a statute that prohibited the distribution of contraceptives to 
unmarried persons, recognized the vi tal nature of the freedom 
to choose whether to give birth to a child. Quoting the 
Supreme Court opinion: II tf the right of privacy means 
anything, it is the right of the individual, married or single, 
to be free from unwarranted government intrusion into matters 
so fundamentally affecting a person as the decision whether to 
bear or beget a child. II Once it is established that the 
decision to procreate is entitled to this high level of 
constitutional protection, it follows that the government may 
not unduly burden this choice. Convicting a woman ·of a crime 
because she is pregnant is perhaps the most direct and heaviest 
of governmental burdens on the decision to bear a child. 

In conclusion, I'd like to say· that a policy that 
attempts to protect the health of future children by denying 
the humanity of their mothers will inevitably fail. The 
tragedy of crack babies is initially a tragedy of 

crack-addicted mothers. It is only by affirming the dignity of 
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these women that the health of their babies will be ensured. 

The first principle of the government's response to the crisis 

of drug-exposed babies should be the recognition of their 

mothers' worth and entitlement to autonomy over their 

reproductive lives. A commitment to guaranteeing these 

fundamental rights of poor women of color, rather than 

punishing them, is the true solution to the problem of damaged 

babies. 

Thank you, and I'd be happy to take questions, if you 

have any. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: What type of statutory protections 

do you think would be necessary, whether it's to limit rules of 

evidence or limit what can be turned over by a doctor? 

Prosecutions in most cases are .only tempered by the sense of 

morality that an individual county prosecutor has -- or 1n 

attorney general. In some situations you may not even need a 

statute, but for those situations where those who wish to gain 

some type of national 

as well, this is only 

because this might get 

MS. ROBERTS: 

notoriety upon an issue perhaps they see 

one individual. "I'm going to prosecute 

me on Ted Koppel." 

Yes, well, it's worked. It worked last 

night. If you saw Ted Koppel, there was a prosecutor from 

South Carolina on last night. He was prosecuting pregnant drug 

addicts. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: There's a real danger, because 

someone else in a higher court may even accept the p~emise 

somewhere else in the country, that this is a viable 

prosecution. Even though nothing may have arisen at this point 

in time in New Jersey, I think it's an area where we need 

statutory protection to guard against abuses that may occur in 

the future. I don't want to wait for any spiraling effect. 

Sometimes these things are self-perpetuating, and it can be in 

a local newspaper one day and "Time" magazine the next day. 
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That is a danger that shouldn't be visited on any woman or male 
in the State, and that the full protections of Roe v. Wade and 
everything since--

I would like to see any suggestions that you may have, 
or anyone else in the constitutional law field may have to 
draft legislation. 

MS. ROBERTS: Well, first, let me agree with you 
wholeheartedly that what we're seeing is prosecutors in little 
towns -- Rockford, Illinois and Pinellas County, Florida, and 
South Carolina -- which are being raised to national prominence 
because they've instituted this policy of dragging women -­
sometimes literally -- out of the hospital to be arrested 
because there's some evidence of drug use. They can use 
statutes that are already on the books like drug distribution 
statutes and child abuse statutes. 

One thing, I think, that we have to be careful of are 
legislative efforts to make it easier for prosecutors. Some of 
those efforts have been to specifically insert the word "fetus" 
in child neglect statutes and child abuse statutes and 
manslaughter statutes to make it easier for prosecutors to 
prosecute fetal abuse cases. One thing is to pe aware of that 
and to try to avoid that. 

Now, as you mentioned, the prosecutors can take 
statutes that are on the books, as in the Jennifer Johnson 
case, and come up with theories like she transferred the drugs 
through the umbilical cord, getting around the problem of using 
a statute that was not at all intended to prosecute a woman who 
used drugs during pregnancy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: There's a doctor in Boston who was 
prosecuted several times in the '70s, and they used an 1896 
statute to-- Since you couldn It impact on a woman because of 
certain rights, they went after the doctor. I forget what the 
doctor's name was, but it was a national cause celebre because 
they were prosecuting him, I think, for homicide, for 
performing an abortion, I believe, after the first trimester. 
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It's that kind of prosecutorial creativity; simply, 
there should be statutory temperament of that. 

MS. ROBERTS: Yeah. Well, I suppose there could be 
some way to make clear that these statutes are not intended to 
apply to fetuses. Maybe there's some way to add wording to 
them. I'm not as familiar with the legislative process as you 
probably are, but some way to clarify that these are really 
distortions of the intent of the statute. 

Secondly, there may be some way to strengthen the 
doctor/patient privilege. I assume there wasn't very much 
argument in the Jennifer Johnson case concerning that, and I'm 
not really sure how it is that a doctor could divulge all these 
confidences of a patient except there may be an exception 
because it was in connection with a crime. There may be ways 
to strengthen the privilege so that pregnant women can be 
assured that if they confide in a doctor because they want help 
for their pregnancy and/or their addiction, that this is not 
going to be used against them in court, and there could be 
evidentiary rules that are enacted to make that clear. 

Another--
ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: There may have been a difference 

between the communication aspect between the patient, a1;1d the 
physical result, physical testing. 

MS. ROBERTS: Well, there were both though. You see, 
some sta.tes have enacted statutes that require doctors to 
report positive toxicologies either to child welfare 
authorities or to prosecutors. That's one issue which can be 
challenged as well. That does not have to be a law. They 
could be considered confidential. 

But then, there's also the issue of a doctor divulging 
confidential communications, and that was done in the Jennifer 
Johnson case. The doctors testified as to what their patient, 
Jennifer Johnson, told them about her drug use during pregnancy 
and also about her concern for the fetus. I think it's 
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outrageous that a doctor would get on a stand-- Obviously he 
was compelled to testify, so I'm not blaming him personally. 
But just that this could happen, that a doctor would get on the 
stand in a criminal trial and testify against is patient, 
using her concern for her fetus against her-- S , it's-- I 
would want to be on the lookout for laws that w uld make it 
easier for doctors to testify and also give thes results to 
prosecutors, and maybe also to strengthen evidentiary laws, to 

I 

make sure that these confidences are kept confident'al. 
I'd also just repeat what Joan Bertin sa d about the 

importance of making sure that drug treatment are 
really open to pregnant women; that they are ced not to 
exclude pregnant women and also that they are mad accessible 
in the sense of child care and the kinds of servic~s-- It may 

I -

also be that pregnant drug addicts need treatment centers that 
are exclusively for women, because many do feel uncomfortable 
in treatment where there's one or two women surrou~ded by men, 

especially since in most of these cases these wom1'n have been 
subjected to physical or sexual abuse. That's very common 
among drug addicts and this kind of counseling has to. be 
incorporated into the treatment, as well. 1 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: It's going to raise more and more 
interesting questions because we have, as part of the Drug and 
Alcohol Committee, the issue of health insurance, requiring the 
health carriers, 'the HMOs, to provide health i~surance for 
treatment for drug abuse. In many instances it's a ready there 
for alcohol abuse, but they create two different se tions. The 
problem is, when you-- The confidentiality aspect is going to 
be interesting in that context, where you submit y ur form and 
you're seeking help for drug usage. I mean, the si ple fact of 
usage means possession, and possession is a crimi,al offense, 
and you are certifying at the bottom that thefe are the 
treatments being rendered to you on the days that *,ou went for 
them, and it creates a-- I 
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MS. ROBERTS: A chilling effect? 
ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: --catch-22, as referred to earlier 

in the--
MS. ROBERTS: That's right. Even more so for pregnant 

women. If there's-- In a town where the prosecutor has said, 
"We're going to prosecute any woman who uses drugs during 
pregnancy," they're even more likely to be afraid to sign up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN COHEN: I don't think we need any Scopes 
trials on this in New Jersey. 

response) 
DR. VAN JONES: Okay, any more questions? (no 

MS. ROBERTS: Okay. 
DR. VAN JONES: Okay, thank you. 
We will reconvene at 1:30. 

(RECESS) 

AFTER RECESS: 
DR. VAN JONES: Good afternoon. I want to welcome you 

to the hearing before the Commission on Sex DiscrimiiJ,ation in 
the Statutes, and I want to welcome you all. 

This afternoon our first speakers will be Amy Bahruth, 
Staff Representative and Health and Safety Coordinator from CWA 
1031, and Vince Trivelli--
V INC EN T T RIVE L L I: Trivelli (pronounces name). 

DR. VAN JONES: Trivelli, okay. I'm known to do 
that. Par for the course. Legislative Political Coordinator 
for CWA, District 1. 

Welcome, and who is going to go first? 
AMY J. BAH RUTH: Okay. I'm going to go first, 
presenting testimony for my Local, and also for Local 1033. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. 
MS. BAHRUTH: My name is Amy Bahruth and I'm a staff 

representative for the Communications Workers of America, Local 
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No. 1031. I would like to thank you for this opportunity to 

present testimony about the health hazards of VDT use. Local 

No. 1031 represents State workers at the nine State colleges 

and the Department of Higher Education central offices. Local 

No. 1031 primarily represents women clerical workers, so the 

health and safety problems associated w.i th computers is very 

real to our members. 

Over the past few years, computers have become the 

norm in State offices, virtually replacing the typewriter. In 

fact, with row upon row of computer terminals, many State 

offices now look like computer assembly-line operations. 

However, even though the clerical support staff needs to learn 

new skills to be able to use the new technology introduced, the 

State's position is that the computer has merely replaced the 

typewriter and made clerical jobs easier. So, clerical jobs, 

especially data entry jobs, remain underpaid and undervalued. 

More and more of our members spend their entire day, 

or a good portion of it, sitting in front of a VDT screen 

punching in data at a high stroke rate or producing reports and 

other documents. Some departments in State service go to the 

extreme of disciplining workers if they don't make their quota 

of strokes in a given hour. 

incentives to workers who go 

Other departments offer bonus 

above and beyond the required 

stroke rate, which inspires most workers because they need to 

compensate for the low salaries. 

Various health problems have been associated with the 

use of VDTs, including: visual problems; muscle and joint 

problems; repetitive motion injuries, such as carpal tunnel 

syndrome and tendinitis; and job stress. In addition, 

questions have been raised about reproductive risks and about 

the effects of low-frequency radiation. 

The most common complaint from VDT operators are of 

visual problems. Prolonged attention to visual detail with 

limited eye movement in a restricted visual field can cause 
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eyestrain and other problems. 
to look back and forth from 
strain. This is especially 

Tasks which require an opera tor 
screen to text can produce visual 
true if the display has light 

letters on a dark field, which is the reverse of print on most 
documents. In addition, eyestrain is caused by too much light 
in the visual field of the operator and by reflections. on the 
screen. Symptoms of visual problems include: itchy eyes, 
burning sensations, eyestrain, headaches, blurred or double 
vision, and changes in vision prescriptions. Severe eye 
discomfort may not go away within a short period of time 
following work and may even be present at the start of the next 
day's shift. Data suggests that some types of VDT work produce 
greater levels of visual complaints than traditional office 
work, because of the special visual demands of VDT work. 

Muscle and joint problems are also a major concern for 
VDT operators. Because the body is designed for movement, a 
fixed position is more tiring than moderate movement. When the 
body is still, circulation is slowed, and as a result, fewer 
nutrients are delivered to the muscles, and fewer wastes are 
removed from the muscles, blood vessels, and spinal discs. The 
result can be muscular pain and, in some cases, injury. When 
workstations are poorly designed, which is the case in most 
State offices, posture is poor and strains are placed on 
particular groups of· muscles. We are already seeing the 
indications of a severe health problem in our members as many 
VDT operators suffer from stiff neck and shoulders; shoulder 
pain; back pain; hand cramps; swollen muscles and joints; sore 
wrists, pain down their arms; loss of strength in their hands 
and arms; and loss of feeling in their fingers. 

Many of these symptoms are early warning signs ·of 
repetitive motion injuries, also known as cumulative trauma 
disorders. These injuries are associated with three 
occupational conditions: awkward postures of the wrist or 
shoulders, excessive manual force, and high rates of manual 
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repetition. Specifically, carpal tunnel syndrome -- CTS --

which is becoming a common problem with VDT operators, seems to 

emerge from repetitiveness of the task more often than from 

force. Simply defined, carpal tunnel syndrome is when the 

nerve that runs down the forearm to the hand to allow finger 

movement is squeezed or pinched as it passes under the wrist 

into the hand. The tendons for flexing the fingers, the median 

nerve and blood vessels pass through the carpal tunnel, and if 

any of the tendon sheaths become swollen in the cramped carpal 

tunnel, the median nerve may be pinched. This pressure on the 

median nerve is what creates the numerous symptoms I mentioned 

before. 

With the number of VDTs used in the workplace expected 

to grow in the 1990s to over 80 million, the number of workers 

adversely affected by carpal tunnel syndrome and other health 

problems will certainly mushroom. We are already seeing the 

impact of this new technology from the statistics of 

occupational illnesses and injuries compiled by the Bureau of 

Labor Statistics. The latest report indicates that workplace 

injuries caused by repetitive motion have increased sharply, 

and experts called the rise of computer technology a major 

factor. The report also says repetitive motion disorders 

accounted for 48% of all workplace illnesses last year, up from 

38% in 1987 and just 18% in 1981. 

The CWA has surveyed its membership about repetitive 

motion injuries in the public sector in New Jersey and the 

preliminary results are frightening.- Testimony will be 

presented as to specific examples, but suffice it to say that 

State workers are getting injured because of their job at an 

alarming rate. 

Many job stresses often associated with VDT work have 

also been identified. Psychological stress can worsen the 

effects of physical stresses by causing muscles to tense more, 

or by leading to increased headaches and fatigue. These 
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stresses include excessive work load or work pace, machine 

monitoring, not enough job control, or minimal decision-making, 

job insecurity, and lack of social supports. 

Finally, concerns about reproductive risk have been 

raised by several clusters of miscarriages and birth defects 

among VDT operators. A study conducted at the 

Kaiser-Permanente Medical Care Program in Oakland, California 

in 1988 concluded that women who used VDTs for more than 20 

hours each week in the first three months of pregnancy suffered 

almost twice as many miscarriages as women doing other types of 

office work. Three possible causes of potential reproductive 

problems have been suggested: radiation, psychological stress, 

and awkward work postures. 

Several countries recognize the importance of 

providing a healthful work environment for VDT operators and 

have mandated ordinances governing such things as workstation 

design, lighting, vision care, and breaks. In the United 

States, nine states have VDT ordinances, guidelines, or 

executive orders, and Suffolk County in New York State has a 

legally binding regulation. In New Jersey, the Department of 

Health has developed the most comprehensive guidelines in the 

country which cover work environment, such as lighting, glare, 

and noise; VDT design; VDT workstation equipment, including 

specifications of chairs and tables; vision care requirements; 
job design considerations; and training for both operators and 

supervisors. These guidelines are meant to be a preventative 
measure and the New Jersey Department of Health believes that 

successful implementation of these guidelines will help avoid 

the health problems associated with poor VDT working conditions 

as well as increase operator satisfaction and productivity. 

However, the guidelines are just that. They are not 

enforceable as a standard by PEOSHA. 

Currently, CWA is working on getting the New Jersey 

Department of Labor to promulgate these guidelines into an 
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enforceable 

legislators 

provisions 

legislative 

detail. 

standard. In addition, CWA 

in developing a VDT bi 11 which 

in the guidelines, which Vince 

and political coordinator will 

is working with 

would include the 

Trivelli, CWA's 

discuss in more 

Thank you, and now I'm going to move on to 1033's 

testimony. 

This is testimony from CWA Local No. 1033. They 

represent over 7000 State workers in the Trenton area who work 

for approximately 10 departments. 

Our Local represents one 

video display terminal operators, 

Division of Motor Vehicles and 

these, over 90% are women. 

of the largest groups of 

over 600 employed by the 

the Taxation Division. Of 

At the Division of 

continuously input information 

registrations, and suspensions. 

simultaneously fielding telephone 

while also inputing data. They 

Motor Vehicles, operators 

to process licenses, 

Many of these operators are 

inquiries from the public 

are secretly monitored by 

management which contributes to their stress. 

At the Division of Taxation, operators keypunch tax 

returns and checks all day and are on a quota system which 

requires a minimum .of 8500 keystrokes each hour. 

We recently conducted a survey of Taxation VDT 

operators of which 250 were returned to our Local. The 

responses revealed 

regular neck or 

the 

back 

following symptoms: 

pain; 

shoulder pain; 76% experience 

79% experience 

hand or wrist 

experience vision problems such as headaches, 

watering, and itchy eyes. 

89% experience 

regular arm or 

pain; and 85% 

blurred vision, 

Over the years, union representatives have attempted 

to correct these glaring health problems with Taxation 

management. Even though research has shown that more frequent 

breaks, proper lighting, adjustable tables and chairs, 
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antiglare screens, and footrests are remedies to this health 

hazard, Taxation management has been unwilling to spend money 

to prevent the adverse health effects on their employees. 

We wonder whether this situation would continue for so 

long if these operators Nere primarily men? 

The short-term costs of these standards is nothing 

compared to the State's expenses involving lost time and 

medical bills resulting from these symptoms. There are several 

Taxation employees who have suffered permanent damage to their 

hands and wrists as a result of prolonged VDT operation. 

Employers must be held to a uniform standard for VDT 

operators, and there should be strict government enforcement of 

these standards if we are serious about protecting the health 

of millions of American women. 

MR. TRIVELLI: Let me just put this into a little 

perspective: The CWA represents in New Jersey about 70,000 

people. We represent them both in the public sector and in the 

private sector. We represent AT&T, New Jersey Bell, as well as 

State workers and a good number of local government workers. 

There are many issues which the union brings to the 

workplace. We need to deal with this; we need to deal with 

that. Now, the question of VDTs and the health effects on the 

membership has really come from the other direction. We've 

been getting it in New Jersey and around the country, frankly, 

saying that something needs to be done. You go to meetings and 

you see people who raise their wrists because they've had 

operations to try to relieve the pain and suffering they get 

from working on the VDTs. These VDTS have worked their way 

into so many jobs now. 

We have, as Amy mentioned, in New Jersey, tried to -­

begun to do a few things to try to correct it. We've come here 

today to really urge you to support this. 

First are the guidelines that she mentioned: Under 

the Public Employee OSHA Law, you've got a situation where 
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you've got a very tangled bureaucracy, and you've got three 
departments which need to pass on regulations before they 
become law, before they become regulations. We have pushed 
this State, through the Public Employees OSHA Law, to issue VDT 
guidelines for many, many years. Finally, at the very end of 
the Kean administration, Dr. Coye of the Department of Health 
put out a draft regulation, basically as a guideline. It is a 
very comprehensive document, as Amy has mentioned. 
lot of areas very well. The problem is that 

It covers a 
it's only a 

guideline. It suggests that this happens, and it asks that 
they do this, and make a lighting change, and these types of 
things. It has no force of law. She was unable to get the 
past administration to take that document and turn it into a 
regulation which would have the force of law. So, we do have 
these guidelir3s, but they do not have the force of law, and we 
are trying to make this new administration look at that and 
make those into law. 

What we've also done is come to the State House and 
sa.id that we've asked for a long time to do it through the 
regulatory process, and maybe it's now time to do it through 
the legislative process. Assemblyman Tom Foy has a bill -­
A-3015 -- which. has some portions of the regulations in it, not 
all of them. He and Assemblyman Lou Gill have agreed to 
amendments which would take the document -- the guidelines 
change them into legislative language and amend that bill to do 
that. They're talking about having hearings on it, probably in 
the fall when the Legislature comes back after this budget mess. 

They deal with a lot of issues that are not dealt with 
in the original bill. They deal with changes of lighting and 
VDT exhaust. They deal with noise; they deal wit~ equipment 
changes; they deal with training; and they deal with changing 
the job tasks, so you can get at some of the problems 
associated with the VDT in the workplace. Also, they extend it 
to both public workers and to private workers. The guidelines 
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only apply -- if they apply at all -- to public employees, not 
private employees. There is no outstanding regulation for 
private employees, and it's time that there is. 

The other area that I want to just comment on briefly 
is the area that again, Amy mentioned quickly of 
electronic monitoring. I was counsel to the Labor Standards 
Subcommittee of the House of Representatives in a for mer 1 if e,­
and there were a number of hearings that were held by the 
Education and Labor Committee in Washington down there on the 
problems of VDTs. Now, there are some bi 11 s being cons ide red 
down there on VDTs and on the problems of monitoring. What we 
learned in those hearings, and we see it more and more now, and 
two things: One, is that work in front of VDTs has almost 
become piecework; that the faster you work, the more you make, 
and if you don't work at a certain rate, you get disciplined 
for it. How they know that is through extensive electronic 
monitoring of the employees. 

We've seen situations where employees are, in fact, 
locked into the machine in the morning and then unlocked to go 
to the john at the coffee break time and that sort of thing. 
Their entire life is governed by the machine. It records every 
aspect : how fast, how slow, how hard they push on the keys . 
Every aspect of their life is determined by that machine. They 
are disciplined for not meeting certain standards. They lose 
pay for not meeting certain standards. 

The stress involved in that is tremendous. As I say, 
every qspect of their workin9 life is monitored by the machine 
if they are on the VDT. Then we have people who work on VDTs 
who are operators, who are not only seated in front of a VDT 
and are monitored based on how much they put into the keyboard, 
but a.re also monitored through the telephone conversations that 
they have with the outside world. You've got supervisors 
listening in to how quickly they are able to answer the 
question and respond; you know, deal with the VDT at the same 
time and get on to the next question. 
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The stress involved with that is dramatic. It causes 
all sorts of problems for people. It exacerbates other 
problems -- heart problems and other sorts of problems, and we 
believe that that aspect -- the monitoring aspect -- has to 
stop as well. 

Assemblyman Schwartz has a bill A-210 in the 
Assembly -- which there have been public hearings on already, 
two days long of public hearings in front of Assemblyman 
Patera's Assembly Labor Committee. 
should be ready relatively soon, 

The transcripts of those 
and I would urge the 

Commission to get a copy of those, because there was extensive 
testimony on the psychological and other problems related to 
the stress of the monitoring in front of the VDTs by several 
qualified doctors. I would urge you to get those because it 
is-- I mean~ you talk to people and you can't believe the 
amount of stress that they have. I mean, they have to answer a 
call within six seconds. They have to look up the number. 
They have to do a whole series of things, and their entire life 
is monitored. 

We are also moving that bill, A-210. The reason, I 
think, that we are here, is that if a male works in front of a 
VDT, they have the same problems, but unfortunately, the way 
that the society has worked out, it's not· been work that has 
been highly valued, I would say, and a vast majority of the 
people we have in the private sector, such as AT&T or New 
Jersey -Bell operators or information people, or when you work 
for the State or counties who work in front of VDTs-- The vast 
majority of those are women. And I think that Amy's right, 
that if these problems had been associated with men, there 
would have been corrective action. As I say, we had hearings 
on similar issues to this in the early '80s in Congress, and 
here we are today still talking about it. We believe the time 
for talk has really passed, and we need action by the 
administration and by the Legislature on these issues. I' 11 
answer any questions, and I'm sure Amy will, as well. 
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DR. VAN JONES : Is there any support service? You 

talked a lot about the psychological counseling, the stress, 

and stress-related things. Do they have any sort of support 

service? 

MR. TRIVELLI: Well, some of our employers and 

employees do have employee assistance programs, but none that 

are directed, specifically, at these kinds of stress-related 

problems. Because of this, in fact, in the bill that I 

mentioned -- in Mr. Schwartz's bill -- there is a requirement 

that if you are going to do any kind of electronic monitoring 

-- and the bill, I neglected to mention, limits it to a very, 

very small amount -- you have to set up an employee assistance 

program to assist people with stress-related problems, because 

it creates tremendous stress. 

The bill, just briefly, 

monitoring can go on. Whenever 

everybody has to know. It's also a 

public doesn't know they are being 

allows says 

there is any 

privacy issue, 

listened to. 

no secret 

monitoring, 

because the 

If you call 

the Division of Taxation now and you talk about confidential 

tax information, a supervisor -- and more than one supervisor 

-- can be listening in on that conversation, which is none of 

their business. So, we believe it's a civil right, as well, 

but it limits it to the first six weeks; no secret monitoring, 

and notice monitoring for the six weeks for training purposes, 

but certainly not for discipline or anything else, and then 

once a year for a month with a fair sample, again not for 

discipline, just for training and quality control type things. 

We would prefer to see it totally abandoned. Frankly, 

the employer community is not supportive of that idea, but like 

I say, the stress is amazing, and Assemblyman Schwartz's bi 11 

has a provision about employee assistance programs for stress. 

DR. VAN JONES: Any other recommendations for the 

Commission that we should consider in this whole area? You 

mentioned a couple of bills that we could watch. Anything else? 
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MR. TRIVELLI: 
think about it. 

Not at the moment, but I' 11 certainly 

MS. SAMPIERI: Can you give me an approximate time 
when the hearings were held on A-210? 

MR. TRIVELLI: 
MS. SAMPIERI: 
MR. TRIVELLI: 

Within the last two months. 
Okay. Thank you. 
Probably within the last month, maybe. 

The budget time sort of destroyed my-- I've been here too many 
days. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Thank you. 
DR. VAN JONES: Okay, thank you. 
Our next speaker will be Barbara Price, from the New 

Jersey Coalition for Battered Women. Oh, I went ahead of 
myself. Linda Greene. Sorry, Linda. 
L I N D A I R E N E G R E E N E, ESQ.: I'm Linda 
Irenegreene. I'm an attorney here in New Jersey. I wear 
several hats, but the major hat that I wear is I function as a 
consultant to midwives and midwifery organizations. I have 
been counsel to the Midwives Alliance of North America, which 
is an international umbrella organization of all midwives. I 
currently represent the Midwives Alliance of New York State, 
and act as a consultant to individual attorneys throughout the 
United States and Canada on midwifery cases that become issues, 
largely regulatory cases, although I have participated in some 

criminal cases. 
I have witj me today a midwife who is going to speak 

with you anonymously because she practices here in New Jersey 
without a license, and obviously, we do not wish to subject her 
to any surveillance or any liability because of her willingness 
to talk to you about her profession. I also have brought with 
me copies of the current regulations, N.J.A.C. 35:2.6 et. seq., 
and the American College of Nurse-Midwives, New Jersey 

Chapter's, proposed modifications to the regulations. 
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From an organizational perspective, what I'd like to 

do is first remind you of what the current law is in New 

Jersey. Secondly to point out what's good and bad about the 

current regulations and the proposed modifications, and then to 

talk a little bit about the state of the practice of midwifery 

-- the reality of the practice of midwifery in the State of New 

Jersey. I encourage you to stop me and ask me questions, 

because I probably could go on too long. 

There is a statute on the books in New Jersey-- 45:10 

-- which enables something called a lay-midwife in this State. 

I'm not quite sure that we have any notion of what those words 

mean because it would seem to me that if you go to school and­

you have been granted a license and you are a professional, 

there is nothing "lay" about you, but, that's old terminology 

that has hung around. Chapter 45:10, among its many 

provisions, provides FOr the educational path to getting such a 

license. That educational path consists of 1800 hours in a 

school, and the terminology in the statute is, "accredited in 

its own jurisdiction." 

We have made some efforts· in the State of New Jersey 

through the Board of Medical Examiners to have them administer 

something called an examination -- and we've been very open 

about what such an examination might be -- to people who cou_d 

meet that requirement. They have been -- I use the word 

advisedly -- "recalcitrant." We had a great deal of difficulty 

getting them to acknowledge that such an exam could exist, or 

would exist, or that they could prepare one. 

Then they finally prepared one and would not certify 

anybody' s education to take it. What has happened is that 

those people who were willing to attempt to do that have left 

the State. Some of them continue to practice without a 

license, but most of them have gone elsewhere to practice their 

profession, so you get a drop-off of this group of highly 

qualified professional midwives unavailable, despite the fact 

that they can apparently meet the requirements of the statute. 
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Certified nurse midwives are qualified to practice in 
the State of New· Jersey by virtue of their certification from 
the American College of Nurse Midwifery. There is a school in 
New Jersey at the University of Medicine and Dentistry in 
Newark, that gives a certificate program to people who are 
already R.N.s. There are -- at last count, I think -- 17 other 
schools in the United States, only two of which combine getting 
an R.N. and a C.N.M. -- a registered nurse degree certificate 
and a certified nurse midwifery certificate. The balance of 
them make you a certified nurse midwife at the end of their 
program, having already gotten an R.N. or a B.S., a bachelor's 
in nursing. A couple of programs are master's programs where 
you actually end up with a master's of science in nurse 
midwifery, so that there's that spectrum of kind of education 
for certified nurse midwives. In New Jersey they are 
recognized, essentially, by virtue of having that certificate 
current, and of having a current R.N. in New Jersey. 

When I went into practice in 1978, if you called the 
Department of Health in New Jersey they told you that there 
were 18 licensed lay-midwives in New Jersey. My last call to 
the Board of Medical Examiners to get that information was, "We 
don't know, and we wouldn't tell you anyway. " I said, "But it 
seems to me that's public information." 

"Well-- But-- ·You know-- Since we don't give them 
out anymore, they're not really okay." 

"But there were licenses, right? If people renew them 
properly under the law, you supposedly can use them?" 

Clunk. That was the response that I got from the 
Board of Medical Examiners of the State of New Jersey. 

I admit that I did not pursue that because my sense 
was that that gut reaction through the phone was exactly 
accurate. That's exactly how they're functioning. I then 
began to speak with the midwives in this State who, of course, 
I have intimate contact with because of the profession that I 
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am in, and because they come to me when they get in trouble. 

What I discovered was that those 18 licenses were all very, 

very old. They predate 1959, which means anybody who still 

holds one is probably 90, and beyond that, that the number of 

people practicing as midwives without licenses in this State· 

has diminished, and diminished, and diminished, so that when I 

went into practice in 1978 there were probably 15 to 25 

unlicensed midwives providing midwifery care to women who 

wanted to birth at home and could not secure the services of 

anybody with a 1 icense to do it, or who went to these women 

because they knew they were professional and qualified and 

wanted to have them. 

That number is down to four, and the reason I know 

that is because I went around the State calling all the. people 

I know to find out who is still practicing. I also just 

returned from the North Atlantic Regional .conference of the 

Midwives Alliance of North America, which is a very good place 

to be in touch with these people. 

So, we have a situation of two different groups of 

midwives -- three really -- licensed and unlicensed quantities 

called lay-midwives in this State, and certified nurse 

midwives. All of whom practice under a set of regulations, or 

within the ambit of a set of regulations pas.sed in 1983. 

There was much turmoil at the time of the passage of 

those regs. Public hearings, hundreds of people, and they 

finally came up with a set of regs that essentially creates a 

world in which once you are a midwife you can practice under 

pretty much not 100% but pretty much the same 

conditions. You can attend births anywhere; home or at a 

birthing center or in a hospital, according to the regs, except 

we all know that somebody who is not a nurse is not going to be 

able to practice in a hospital under these rules. Except for 

the ability under protocols of a nurse midwife to prescribe and 

give certain medications. Largely because she's a nurse in 
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this State, the rules are essentially the same. They attend 

normal births. A nurse midwife is given the opportunity to 

comanage an increased -- a high-risk birth. And that has been 

the situation under which people have been practicing since 
.1983. 

As I travel around the country I kind of use New 

Jersey's current regulations as a model of almost being where 

we'd like to be, and then comes a proposal to change them. 

There are some wonderful changes in the proposal. They give 

midwives prescriptive power. They give them the opportunity to 

do what they are trained to do; to say that you need pi tocin 

during this birth, that we need to do an episiotomy, and we 

need to use xylocaine to make it more comfortable; to prescribe 

things for an ordinary urinary tract infection under protocols, 

pre-, antinatal, and postpartum -- the things that midwives can 

do, are trained to do, know how to do, and safely do. 

But, another thing they do is that they lose this 

thing called a lay-midwife. She's gone out of these 

regulations, as if the statute no longer existed; as if there 

is no other way to get to be a midwife. . The reality in our 

world is that there are all different ways to learn how to do 

something, and once you l~arn your profession, you can be 

accountable, your skills can be measured, and you can practice 

that profession. You can be regulated. 

You will hear from a practicing midwife in this State 

that regulation is what they are willing, and want to have. 

They do not want. to practice outside the law. They do not want 
to look over their shoulders to see who's coming down the 

pike. They want to comfortably be able to say to a client 

famiiy, "This birth no longer belongs at home. Let's call the 

doctor," openly and comfortably, and consult with the doctor 

and perhaps go to the hospital, or perhaps have the doctor say, 

"Wait a little while. This is what I think is happening." 
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They can't do that. Not only can't they do that, but 

certified nurse midwives who choose to practice at home can't 

do that, either, because the physicians in this State won't 

back them. They won't acknowledge that birth at home can be a 

safe and wonderful experience. There is this requirement for 

written protocols that continues from the old regs to the new 

new proposal -- without acknowledging that docs won't do it. 

For reasons that have to do with status, that have to 

do with malpractice insurance, that have to do with peer 

pressure -- we could go on and on -- that have to do with 

economic competition, every baby that is born without the 

attendance of an obstetrician is-- Pick your dollar number: 

$1000, $1500, $2500? Without that money to the hospital that 

desperately needs that easy money for normal births, we're 

creating or continuing a situation where we are requiring 

something we can't get. 

Let me tell you some of the things that I know about 

why and how you can't get it. I represent a certified nurse 

midwife practice in the northern part of this State. In order 

to get hospital ·privileges and a good collaborative 

relationship with a reputable physician, they have to agree to 

never do a home birth in New Jersey; not, "with another 

doctor," not under "unsafe conditions," never, if you want to 

maintain your relationship with this hospital and this 

physician, will you do a home birth. That has happened twice 

with two certified nurse midwife practices that I represented. 

One in the last two years, and one about four y~ars ago; with 

reputable hospitals and reputable doctors. That's economic 

competition and fear. 

We need as we look at the statute and at the rules, to 

make provisions for families to get the services that they want 

and for professionals to practice under the conditions to make 

that possible. 
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What are some of the things that they can do? We have 

in the proposed statute in New York State what we call 

"institutional backup," where a family can arrange with the 

local hospital to provide their backup care; not only can they, 

but that the local hospital must accept them. So that if they 

have an emergency room and they have an obstetrical ward, if 

there is a need for a transport, which is transfer in labor, or 

a transfer, which is transfer of care before labor, or 

collaboration, that hospital is available. 

In addition, we need to have not written protocols 

between the midwife and the physician, but collaborative 

agreements that are either between the midwife and the 

physician, which would be wonderful -- and all midwives want 

them, but you can't get them -- or between the family and the 

physician, so that the client family can go to the obstetrician 

and say, "I would like to come to you in the first trimester 

and in the last trimester to have you check up on things. I 

would like you to know that my baby is going to be born at 

home. I would like you to know the name of the midwife so if 

she needs to call you, you will feel comfortable, and I will 

pay you a fee for that service." 

Currently what we have is the client family going to 

the local obstetrician and signing up fraudulently, and saying 

"I'm going to come here for prenatal care, and I will go to 

your hospital where you have privileges,- and I will register." 

And then she disappears, because really what she needs is the 

lab work so that her midwife can practice safely. And what her 

midwife needs is for her to get the prescriptions that she 

can't write. 

That' s not the way it ought to be. We ought to be 

providing solid, safe health care under a reasonable scheme of 

regulation, so that I don't have to represent people who broke 

the law, because essentially the representation that I do is 

not for bad outcomes, but for what I call, "mere presence" 
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cases. Somebody finds out there was a midwife there, and they 

go to prosecute her. This doesn't make any sense. I don't 

have to make a living that way. I' 11 throw away these cards 

and say I won't represent midwives any more. That would be 

fine with me, if we could have a reasonable regulatory scheme. 

Please, ask me questions. 

DR. VAN JONES: What is the cost of the birth, you 

know, for a midwife? You gave us the data for the hospital, 

$1000, $3000. 

MS. IRENEGREENE: It varies. Unlicensed people, 

obviously, do not charge as much as people with a license. 

They have that sense-- You can ask the midwife who is going to 

talk to you about their fees. Certified nurse midwives, those 

few who do births-- I mean, there's one certified nurse 

midwife who practices in this State, minimally, at home, 

without backup, and there are a couple of private practices 

with hospital privileges. The private practices with hospital 

privileges get somewhere between $2300 and $2700 for 

everything. That's all the postpartum, antipartum care, the 

birth, postpartum, whatever. I've heard fees that range from 

$900 to $1700 under other kinds of conditions. 

I don't know what Family Born, which is the birth 

center down on the shore gets, but they used to get around 

$2800 complete, including the birth-center birth. Fees range 

all over the place. In New York State, they range up to $3000 

for a midwife-attended birth in a hospital. Of course, if it's 

a home birth, there is no hospital bill. The transport rate is 

very low for most midwives, largely because they spot problems 

very early. There is a much lower cesarean rate; the midwives 

I represent have a cesarean rate anywhere from 2% to 6%. The 

State average is way, way up, almost at 20%. The national 

average is way over 25%, so that we're looking at good health 

care. We're looking at what people like to call "intuitive 

health care." I think it's experiential. If you do this long 
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enough, you begin to spot what the problems are. 

at a group of professionals who want to 

profession, many of whom practice it even if 

them a license, because there is a demand. 

MS. PERELMUTER: Can you talk a little 

We're looking 

practice their 
you won't give 

bit about other 
states and their regulations of midwifery 

-- if you know if the percentage of births 

off when they instituted regulations, 

information? 

and what percentage 

in hospitals dropped 

and that kind of 

happens 

MS. IRENEGREENE: Interesting. 

is that the data that's 
One of the things that 

kept for home birth, 

categorizes it very often when it's underground, as an 

emergency. They hide behind, II The _ baby got born too fast , II 

okay? So that it's not real clear how the changes-- However, 

I can give you some hard statistics. 

In the State of Washington, which has a school of 

midwifery where you do not have to be a nurse, there is a 10% 

nonhospital birth rate with licensed professionals attending 

the birth. Now, in Washington naturopaths can attend births, 

midwives can attend births, certified nurse midwives can attend 

births. In Oregon they have a very, very, high number of 

births outside of hospitals. Oregon midwives are governed by 

their state organizations' regulations. There is no state 

regulation of midwives. 

There are 17 states that regulate the practice of 

midwifery for those who are not nurses. Of those 17 states, 

about a half dozen have a didactic school requirement, New 
Jersey being one of them with that 1800-hour requirement, and 

45 test, and the balance have a -- what I call -- a mixed 

requirement, a combination - of practical experience, 

demonstration of skills through an examination, observations, 

chart review, etc. New Mexico has the most extensive 

examination of apprenticeship training of all of the states. 

New Hampshire has a certification process after apprenticeship 

training. 
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I do not pretend that there is any relationship 

between the practice of midwifery and maternal care in the 

State of New Hampshire and the State of New Jersey. A rural 

state with a very low population is not the same. I do not 

propose that it is, but that gives you an idea of the spectrum. 

Some states have reciprocity, and I suggest that if we 

were looking at writing really good regulations, we would build 

in a way to have a person who is a professional in another 

state with this set of skills to be able to come into the State 

of New Jersey and in the same way that a C.N.M. can practice, 

if I am a certified midwife from Washington, I should be able 

to be a certified midwife in New Jersey, given that there could 

be a review of the regs. I've written model regs and model 

legislation which I would be delighted to make available to you. 

The point is that we have to get unstuck from the 

notion that the only way to get to be a midwife is to be a 

certified nurse_ midwife. Certified nurse midwives have 

wonderful training. Please do not think that I am here to 

denigrate that training; I'm not. There are other ways to 

arrive at the same level of professionalism and skill. 

I heard you ask the question before, "What can the 

Commission do?" 

DR. VAN JONES: Yes, the recommendations. 

MS. IRENEGREENE: I would like to offer to participate 

with the Commission to write proposed regulations. The statute 

does not need to be changed. The regs need-to be looked at so 

that they reflect the intent of the statute, and the Commission 

could do a wonderful service for this State, to propose 

modernization of the regulations. 

MS. SAMPIERI: I heard you mention twice the word 

"apprentice, " or "intern, " in connect ion with this. Is an 

apprenticeship--

MS. IRENEGREENE: Absolutely. Not only is it, it is 

in actuality. Most of the midwives who practice in the United 
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States, no matter how they got to be there, have apprentices 
working with them. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Either a formal or an informal--
MS. IRENEGREENE: Right. In New Mexico, it's very 

formal. In some other parts of the country, it's less formal. 
The state organizations that are highly sophisticated and have 
certifications and regulations have a process of apprenticeship. 

In New York State we are in the process of proposing a 
program -- which is essentially a university without walls -­
toward a .midwifery degree which would embody the general 
education that you don't have to get in a classroom. If you 
want to sit at your dinning room table with the midnight light 
and learn anatomy, physiology, and the nursing skills, and take 
an exam, challenge a program, why not? This is a very 
complicated world and women, by and large, have three jobs, not 
one. If that's the way to go to school, then we need to 
acknowledge it and use it, because we don't want to lose those 
skills. 

MS. SAMPIERI: I have one last question: Are any of 
the forms of midwifery in New Jersey covered by any of the 
health insurance programs? 

MS. IRENEGREENE: Certified nurse midwives get 
third-party reimbursement for antipartum care and birth. They 
get it in a highly varied way. They get a scheduled fee which 
is less than what ~bstetricians get from some of the insurers. 
From some of the other insurers they just-- You submit a bill 
and they get 80% of it, like any other bill. It's varied. 

Some of the states, now that they are licensing 
midwives 1 and certified nurse midwives, having been regulated 
for a very long time, are beginning to look at third-party 
reimbursement and how those formulas are arrived at. 
Obviously I in those more sophisticated places the push is to 
have the same level of reimbursement as physicians. The same 
services are provided. If we would get through this 1 we need 
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to build into it not only institutional backup, not only client 
backup, but the requirement that a family that is insured can 
use their insurance, and it doesn't make it more expensive to 
have a midwife-attended birth. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Thank you. 
DR. VAN JONES: Another question that is sort of 

related to this: The physicians' assistant, I think it's--
MS. IRENEGREENE: Physicians' assistant, yes. 
DR. VAN JONES: Have you done any collaboration, 

because they seem to have the same kind -- you know, similar 
problems of the barrier, competition--

MS. IRENEGREENE: Okay. I have informally worked with 
the physicians' assistants in New York State. I have formerly, 
worked with the physicians' assistants in California and in New 
York State, and in fact, many of the midwives who belong to the 
Midwives Alliance of New York are physicians' assistants who 
practice midwifery. It was the route they chose in order to 
legally practice their profession when they couldn't get to be 
midwives without being nurses. I'm sure you know that 
historically there is a whole negative thing about being a 
nurse because of the subordinating profession that nursing was, 
and hopefully will not be any longer. 

DR. VAN JONES: Thank you. 
MS. IRENEGREENE: Let me introduce you to a person 

whose name yo~ are not going to know, and I hope that you 
understand that we do not wish to expose her. 
A N 0 N Y M 0 U S M I D W I F E: Shall they ask me-­

MS. IRENEGREENE: Why don't you speak. 
MIDWIFE: I 'm here today because I have worked with 

pregnant families for 40 years, and have come to the absolute 
conviction that the female body is so wonderfully designed to 
give birth, that we really owe it to women to give them back 
their birthright. I believe that many of the midwives, both 
certified nurse midwives and the lay midwives, feel much the 
same way. 

92 



Linda had said that there are four practicing 

lay-midwives in the State of New Jersey right now. I'll tell 

you that's not nearly enough. We get calls from distant parts 

of the State; these four are primarily in the center, the 

mid-portion of the State. 

not one south and east 

northwestern corner. 

There' s no one down south, there' s 

of Trenton, no one up in the 

There is one certified nurse midwife who will attend 

home births right now. She does one a month; not enough. 

There is a greater and greater call for families who want to 

have their babies at home because they want to have-- They 

want that birthright. 

We have had as clients M.D.s, psychologists, people 

very high in the educational system. We've had truck drivers 

and carpenters, and managers of businesses; everybody, clear 

across-the-board. 

We absolutely do not like working outside of the law. 

It is not a comfortable feeling. One does not like to have to 

park their car three blocks away when they go to a birth 

because they think there may be somebody who is unhappy about 

this. 

We are professionals. We're experienced 

professionals, and we'd like to be recognized as such, and we'd 

like to practice and do those things which are within the law 

and which are for the safety of our clients. 

If you all meet everyday, you probably didn't see 

Geraldo's program yesterday at 4:00. 

DR. VAN JONES: What was the topic? 

Home birth, or out of 

They quoted from at 

MIDWIFE: It was on birth. 

hospital birth, versus hospital birth. 

least four states, the statistics of birth. 

The program was pretty good, actually. 

obstetrician who was. speaking for hospital birth was good. 

The 

He 

was not down and out, stamping his feet and screaming, but it 
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was well presented. They, of course, as Geraldo does, invited 

from the audience a number of different people to talk about 

their births. But I liked the fact that they put some real 

statistics out there. The doctor had said, "Oh, the AMA has 

proven that home birth is twice as dangerous as birth in the 

hospital," when the statistics really do not prove that at all; 

much to the contrary. The people who stood up and spoke had 

quite a few things to say about that, too. 

DR. VAN JONES: What were some of the recommendations 

at the end? You know, what were the issues, and what were some 

of the recommendations? Did they talk about that? 

MIDWIFE: No. 

DR. VAN JONES: Some of the solutions? They just gave 

you the story? 

MIDWIFE: Yeah. I think they were really encouraging 

women and families to find out. Even the obstetrician said 

that you can have as good a birth in the hospital as you can -­

these things, which people, women, call "good birth" at 

home, and more and more hospitals are changing. I'm not too 

sure about that part, but it's true; you can. Women can have a 

really good birth in the hospital, but boy, they have to fight 

for it for nine months and maybe not always with a guarantee at 

the end. But there are no guarantees in life at all, so 

they're not looking for a guarantee. 

The f ami 1 i es that we ' ve worked with have been 

extremely responsible families. They absolutely understand 

what they're undertaking. They have made it their business to 

become well-informed, and they have a very strong conviction 

that as the parents, they are responsible for this unborn child 

and this born child, and that they need to have the choice of 

things to be done or not to be done to them. This is one·of 

the reasons why many people are opting for home birth; so that 

they can maintain that choice. 
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MS. SAMPIERI: When there were statistics given on 

yesterday's program, did anybody indicate where the statistics 

had come from? 

MIDWIFE: Oh, yes. North Carol ina has a very good 

study. The interesting thing about most of these studies is 

that they did not set out to prove that home birth was safer 

than hospital birth, or vice versa. They compared such items 

as-- Hemorrhage is always a good one to talk about. There 

were many more episiotomies done in the hospital than there 

were at home, but it really shows that generally you go into 

the hospital and if they're going to take these accountable 

things they may say to you, "Well, let us just do this one 

thing." And one thing becomes two things, and then two things 

become four, and four become eight, and eight become 

sixty-four, and it just multiplies until the woman, the family 

has lost it and no longer has any control -- I don't like that 

word· "control" -- but doesn't have any say-so about her own 

body and her own baby. 

There are certainly at home, far fewer episiotomies, 

and far, far, fewer instances of hemorrhage, because things 

that are done with women at home do not create hemorrhage. For 

the most part, hemorrhage is a created situation. If it's not, 

there are those very rare instances where it is not 

recognizable in advance and it just happens. You don't find a 

reason for it, and it's handled the same way as it would be in 

the hospital. I was a little amused yesterday to hear one 

woman say, "I'm much safer in a };los pi tal because I know if 
there is a problem they can handle it immediately." Now, I've 

worked in hospitals, and I know "immediate" can be anywhere -­

seldom five minutes, but more like 45 minutes in which 

length of time that woman could be from home to hospital, if 

that was the care that she needed. 

Certainly, we don't do cesarean sections on the 

kitchen table anymore. I think that in the county in which I 
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live -- and I sort of work in about four or five counties -­

the cesarean rate is over 30%, which is way too high; way, way, 

way, too high. Just seldom, whether we-- You know, everyone 

is screened, is talked about, they're discussed, they 

themselves discuss that they are low risk. The majority of 

women are low-risk people, and when you find somebody who 

doesn't fall into that category, then that's probably not 

appropriate to be done at home, and they recognize that and 

they accept it. 

DR. VAN JONES: What about malpractice insurance and 

all that -- that whole category, because that's been the school 

of thought regarding C-sections -- that it's safer. A lot of 

doctors wi 11 say that it's safer, you know, if they have a 

difficult birth; a C-section is about the best thing to do and, 

you know, afraid of--

MIDWIFE: . There's one study that asked the 

obstetricians to list the 10 top reasons for doing a cesarean 

section. Number one was fear of malpractice, and number seven 

was safety of the baby. Something's wrong there. 

MS. IRENEGREENE: Dr. Jones, there were two very 

important articles, and I will try to find them for you and 

send them to you,· but I can identify the authors for you. One 

was by Dr. Ruth S. Hubbard, from Harvard, on the efficacy of 

cesarean in which she did an extensive and exhaustive review of 

the literature on cesarean section and found that not only was 

it more dangerous, but that the intervention when not necessary 

. caused problems both with the baby and with the mother. The 

other was by Janet Gallagher, who is a lawyer currently working 

for the City of New York, but who was Director of Very Special 

Women in the Law Program at Hampshire College in the Consortium 

In Amherst, Massachusetts. . Janet also looked at the efficacy 

of cesarean from the point of view of forced cesareans. 

What she found was that when the hospital feels out of 

control is when they demand that they be allowed to do a 
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cesarean, so that the notion of fear of malpractice is a 
fabricated one. I believe the doctor believes it. I do not 
think that they make it up, but it has been imposed on the 
doctor from the outside. The doctor has been taught that birth 
is not normal, and therefore in order to protect this abnormal 
happening, there must be a major intervention. 

We have a lot of educational work to do, and licensing 
midwives is not going to solve that problem, but it certainly 
takes -- allows those people who want to be outside that 
institutional system and · to protect themselves from 
interventions they don't need, to have that option. I think 
that's the important perspective. 

DR. VAN JONES: Are there any more questions? (no 
response) 

Thank you. 
MIDWIFE: Thank you. 
MS. IRENEGREENE: Thank you. 
DR. VAN JONES: We'll take a 15-minute break and then 

we'll resume. Thank you. 

(RECESS) 

AFTER RECESS: 
DR. VAN JONES: Hi, Barbara. 

B A R B A R A P R I C E: Hi. 
DR. VAN JONES: I'm glad you could come this afternoon 

for the hearing on the Commission before Sex Discrimination in 
the Statutes. We would like you to begin. 

MS. PRICE: My name is Barbar:a Price, and I'm the 
Executive Director of the New Jersey Coalition for Battered 
Women. I would like to give testimony today on the detection 
and treatment of domestic violence by health care professionals. 

I would like to talk to you today about two different 

women from New Jersey who each entered the health care system 
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in different ways. The first woman is deaf. She is deaf as a 

result of repeated blows to her head during 30 years of abuse 

by her husband. In spite of multiple admissions to the 

hospital and emergency room, there is no indication in any of 

her medical records that she was ever questioned about the 

possibility of abuse. There are, however, comments by nurses 

about an adoring husband, always at her bedside hovering around 

her. While he was present she never spoke up, and since no one 

separated her from him to ask questions about her injuries, the 

abuse continued. He was·finally prosecuted and is now serving 

time in prison. 

A study done at Yale-New Haven Hospital reported that 

one out of five women treated for injuries in hospital 

emergency rooms was abused. Other studies indicate that 40% of 

all emergency injuries are a result of domestic violence. 

Another young woman suffered two miscarriages at 28 

weeks of pregnancy as a result of premature labor. She was 

constantly abused by her husband during her pregnancies. She 

also never missed any . of her prenatal visits to her 

obstetrician who never recognized her abuse. Again, her 

husband was present for all her doctors visits and the doctor 

never separated her from her husband to ask about her injuries. 

The same Yale-New Haven Hospital study reported that 

28% of pregnant women are battered, while a Texas study 

reported 25%. The March of Dimes considers this an important 

issue, and has produced a video titled, "Crimes Against the 

Future," and training material for nurses on how to detect 

domestic violence during pregnancy. The video discusses March 

of Dimes research that indicates battered women are four times 

more likely to deliver low birth-weight babies than 

non-battered women. Low birth-weight babies are at 40 times 

more risk of dying and having other handicaps than 

average-weight babies. Also, miscarriages are doubled among 

battered women. 
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How is all this missed when the majority of battering 

injuries are to multiple sites, especially the head, neck, 

face, throat, chest -- especially breasts -- and abdomen? What 

happens when a woman goes to her doctor or the emergency room? 

A battered woman seeks care for an injury. She is 

more likely than a non-battered woman to exhibit signs of 

depression, anxiety, family, marital, and sexual problems, and 

somewhat vague medical complaints. She is then treated for her 

symptoms, not domestic violence. She is often given 

tranquilizers to calm her down. The results are a feeling of 

isolation because her underlying problem has not been 

recognized and the medication may also lower her abi 1 i ty to 

react. 

These feelings of 

psychosocial problems such 

disorders, and suicide. 

alcohol-addicted women and 

isolation can than lead to other 

as addiction, phobias, panic 

Studies indicate that 53% of 

70% of women cocaine users are 

abused. Seventy-five percent to eighty percent of drug and 

alcohol abuse started after battering began. 

One in four women who have attempted suicide were 

battered within a few days of that incident, and usually 

attempted suicide with the drugs prescribed to calm her down. 

Why does this occur? It is the result of a lack of knowledge, 

lack of suspicion, and lack of separation of the woman for 

treatment from the batterer by health care professionals. 

I don It mean to paint a bleak pictu~e; progress is 

being made. The hospital training done by Courtney Esposito 

from the Division on Women and the work of Dr. Howard Holtz, of 

the New Jersey Coalition for Battered Women and his associate, 

Cathy Furniss, of the Governor Is Advisory Council on Domestic 

Violence, have gone a long way toward making a difference in 

New Jersey. 

Physicians are interested in learning about this 

problem. After the publication of a recent article by Dr. 

99 



Holtz, he received 50 requests from doctors for protocols on 

detection of domestic violence. However, more needs to be 

done. Research by Dr. Holtz shows that less than half of U.S. 

medical schools include domestic violence in the curriculum. 

Physicians and nurses need to screen universally for domestic 

violence, and receive training on what to say if they get a, 

"Yes" answer. 

Unfortunately, with recent budget cuts at the State 

level, the hospital training that has been done by the Division 

on Women will be virtually impossible to continue. The New 

Jersey Coalition for Battered Women and its member 

organizations will see no increase in funding this year, which 

will make it difficult to maintain current programs, let alone 

pick up the programs eliminated by the Division at the Division 

on Women. 

Mandating that domestic violence be included in the 

curriculum of New Jersey medical and nursing schools would be 

helpful, but doesn't cover people already in the field or those 

from out-of-state institutions. The State of New Jersey has 

been a leader in the area of domestic violence legislatio-n and 

service, and we need to decide if we want to continue that 

conunitment to violence-free lives for our citizens now and in 

the future. 

Thank you. I'd be glad to answer any questions, if I 

could. 

DR. VAN JONES: Do you have any reconunendations, or 

anything of that sort that the Conunission should look at 

regarding those issues that you just raised about battered 
women? 

MS. PRICE: Well, I think it is important-­

OR. VAN JONES: It's very bleak. 

MS. · PRICE: I think it' s really important to have 

training in domestic violence in medical schools so that new 

physicians coming out get the information they need in order to 

100 



be able to recognize abuse when they see it. We, obviously, 
need to continue the training programs that are already in 
place, and I'm not sure how that's going to happen at this 
point. 

I also think it's important-- One of the things in 
the March of Dimes film shows a Houston hospital prenatal care 
clinic, where they screen universally for domestic violence, 
both when the patient arrives and after delivery. I think that 
would be a wonderful means of helping women. It ' s done in a 
very nonthreatening way. They're told that everyone is 
screened for it; it's just like you take a blood test, you have 
a urinalysis, you get your pregnancy test, and you answer some 
questions about domestic violence. They ask them if they know 
about it, are they aware of. it, are they in that situation, and 
then they provide information for them. 

I'm not talking about a system that we have where 
physicians are required to report child abuse. That would not 
work in domestic violence because that would be threatening to 
the woman; if it was reported, then you could jeopardize her 
situation. But just the fact that health care professionals 
who are usually the people who see these women the most often 
would be able to screen for it and at least provide 
information, even if it's only a card or a phone number ·that 
they could carry around-- At the point that they feel 
comfortable about making that phone call, or getting help, they 
could get it. Right now that doesn't always happen. We try to 
provide information at hospitals, but that"' s assuming that the 
people who are encountering these women are going to do that; 
are going to, one, recognize domestic violence, and two, offer 
them the information. 

MS. FRANCIS: I have a question: I wasn't here 
before. I'm Roberta Francis and I'm incoming Director of the 
Division on Women the Senate willing -- next week. I 
appreciate some of the comments you made about fiscal cuts 
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jeopardizing some of what the Division has done. Do you have 

any other direct comments on that, and also, could you describe 

the other agencies in State government that deal with the 

issue? Do you have any ideas about better coordination of 

effort within State agencies? 

MS. PRICE: Mostly the organizations that are dealing 

with domestic violence at a State level are the Division on 

Women and their Section on Domestic Violence. The Division of 

Youth and Family Services, which funds the Coalition and all 

its member organizations, has a section on domestic violence. 

They have one person who is sort of a technical assistant too, 

and available for technical assistance beyond each person's 

contract administrator, who really just handles fiscal 

responsibilities. That person has been taken off domestic 

violence at this point. She's been put onto dealing with child 

care in DYFS, so I would say that at least 75% of her job now 

has become child care and only about 25% is domestic violence. 

Also, domestic violence -- the area in DYFS that funds 

domestic violence -- is not a line item in the budget. It's 

just part and parcel of the whole amount of money that goes-­

! think it would be really important to make it a line item in 

the budget under DYFS so that that money would be committed, 

given the budget cuts and the deficit, and we've had some lack 

of funds that have normally been distributed -- have just kind 

of gotten absorbed this year. Everybody's facing that problem, 

but it wouldn't be as easy to absorb if it was _a line item in 

the budget and not just, you know, whatever. I think that goes 

for the Division on Women, as well. I'm not sure how it is in 

their particular area of domestic violence, but I know that 

they had requested a larger sum of money for training. From 

what I understand, it was, like, $119,000 that they requested, 

and they've been getting somewhere around $83, ooo to $89, ooo. 
What is being proposed is $20, 000. So, that's a major cut in 

training. 
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The training that the Division on Women 
primarily hospital training, and police training. 
really in jeopardy at this point. We're hoping it's 
be restored, but I don't know what's going to happen. 

does is 
That's 

going to 

But those are the two primary organizations that have 
funding for domestic violence, and the funding through DYFS is 
basically to fund the shelters and services of the New Jersey 
Coalition and its member organizations. 

We're hoping that the marriage license tax will be 
passed. It's pending, and that will help raise revenues. It's 
a way of raising revenues without allocating more money in the 
budget, which we all understand is a major problem right now, 
so we're not asking for that. But if we could just pass the 
marriage license tax, that would be a significant amount of 
money that would come to the shelters. It would also help fund 
new shelters, because when the tax was originally put in, it 
was only funding the current shelters. Three or four shelters 
have opened since then, and it's been very difficult to fund 
them through the marriage license tax because it originally 
didn't cover them. 

MS. FRANCIS: That would go from $5 to $25? 
MS. PRICE: That's right. 
MS. FRANCIS: That's a user fee from what I understand? 
MS. PRICE: Right. 
DR. VAN JONES: Has there been any movement toward 

helping the man, the batterer? 
MS. PRICE: 

programs. 
A number 

We have batterers' 
Coalition, 
batterers. 
Alcoholism 
together to 
We have a 
legislation 

and a number of our 

of our programs do offer 
a batterer network in the 

shelters offer counseling for 
There's also a ·group working with the Division on 
and · Drug Abuse, and the Coalition is working 

come up with domestic violence resource centers. 
proposal that will be eventually introducing 

to propose some sites -- probably in the north and 
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the south, maybe in three regions of the State -- for pilot 

programs that would be-- They would work, more or less, like 

the alcohol resource centers work now for driving under the 

influence, and if a person was found to be a batterer, he would 

be required to go to these resource centers for help. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Are you aware of any studies that have 

been done associated with the costs? You gave some pretty 

significant figures in terms of one in five women treated in 

the emergency room being a victim of some kind of abuse. Has 

there been any study that you are aware of on the costs to both 

society and to any private insurers and private parties? 

MS. PRICE: I'm not aware of any specific studies. 

There have been estimates made that, based on the number of 

people reporting, then you have this number who normally go, 

that it would be this kind of, you know, but-- They're just 

estimates based on the numbers of people, rather than actual 

dollars or studies that I'm aware of. I haven't seen anything 

specifically. 

MS. SAMPIERI: The Commission has--

MS. PRICE: But, obviously the costs have got to ·be 

really great. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Yeah. The Commission has tried to 

shake loose some kinds of figures in terms of not only 

emergency room visits, but the cost of missing time at work and 

what happens to the children and what happens in family therapy 

costs and the rest of it, to give some sense of the economic 

cost to society of not really tackling this. 

MS. PRICE: I haven't seen any studies specifically 

done. Usually what you find is something mentioned here or 

there, you know, and you'd have to really pull different pieces 

from different studies that have been done. But I haven't seen 

a study done specifically. I know there is someone in Chicago 

who is doing a study right now, following women who were 

battered during pregnancy and their children who were born 
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afterwards, for five years, to see the effect that this 

long-range -- over the long range -- that the battering during 

pregnancy has had. I guess we'll be hearing about that within 

the next few years. 

MS. SAMPIERI: Thank you. 

DR. VAN JONES: Any other questions? 

MS. FRANCIS: I just have one more about the statutes, 

since obviously our directive is to look at sex discrimination 

in the statutes. My sense, from the beginning of the '80s when 

we passed our domestic . violence bill-- Around that time, we 

were considered in the forefront nationally in dealing with the 

issue. Do you have some comment about whether we have 

maintained that ground, or have lost some of that ground? How 

the current amendment to that bill might affect this? Are we 

staying abreast of what we need to in our gene·ral domestic 

violence legislation? 

MS. PRICE: I think we are if the amendments go 

through that have been proposed to the Domestic Violence Act. 

Unfortunately, there have already been amendments to the 

amendments which will not put us in the forefront, but which 

will put us behind, I think. 

MS. FRANCIS: Could you be specific about those? 

MS. PRICE: The one specific amendment that the Senate 

Judiciary applied-- Well, they put on two: One is that and 

we had asked that-- The current law says that a victim 

perpetrator would have to be of the opposite ~ex, and 

amendments eliminate that phrase, "opposite sex." 

allows anyone who has been domiciled together or 

relative, or that kind of a relationship that if 

and the 

the new 

So, it 

a blood 

there's 

domestic violence, that's considered domestic violence. The 

Senate has put back in "opposite sex. " Their reasoning being, 

while it has never been said publicly, although it has been 

said privately, they do not want to condone homosexual 

relations. 
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In putting back in "opposite sex," however, they are 
overlooking the fact that elderly people who are abused by the 
same sex, caretaker, or disabled or handicapped people who are 
abused· by their caretaker -- same sex, caretaker -- will not be 
covered. Neither will be college roommates. There are a whole 
host of people who will not be covered by this bill. 

We've had a recent situation in New Brunswick -- in 
that area where a gentleman who is not specifically 
classified as retarded -- his IQ is just over the line -- has 
been living with a family for about 25 years. He works on 
their farm; 
works there. 

they've been taking care of him, as well as he 
This is his home. He's being abused. There is 

nothing we can do for this man under the current law because he 
is being abused by a same sex person who is not related to him 
by blood. It is not a homosexual relationship; he is working 
on this farm. The Association for Retarded Citizens can't help 
him because he is not classified retarded; his IQ is just a 
little too high. Of course, we are trying to do something for 
him. We're trying to have him retested to see if we can prove 
his IQ is lower, and then they'll have to handle it, or 
whatever. But, I mean, it's really a sad situation. That's a 
prime example of the kind of person who will not be protected 
if that amendment goes through the way it is. 

And then, of course, the other thing that they have 
put- on is the amendment that there will be a notification on 
temporary restraining orders that if you file false charges of 
domestic violence, that would be considered · perjury. It's 
perjury now to file false charges on anything, but there is 
some feeling that there are a lot of women out there rampantly 
filing false charges of domestic violence, and that just isn't 
the case. My concern is that we have not really determined 
what false charges will be considered. If a woman files a 
temporary restraining order and then doesn't follow through out 
of fear or threats or whatever to get a permanent restraining 
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order, is that considered false charges? What if the judge 
finds that there is no domestic violence, and there are plenty 
of cases where judges have found that in spite of contrary 
evidence? Does that mean it's false charges and she has to go 
to jail? A man does not have to go to jail now if he hits his 
wife, but if she files false charges, she would? 

MS. FRANCIS: Just to clarify that point: Those words 
are not required on any of the other documents where it would 
be perjury to file false charges? It's only in domestic 
violence--

MS. PRICE: It's perjury to file false charges on any 
document that you file, with, you know, bringing charges 
against anyone. But this specifically will put it on this 
particular form, which is really an insult to women that they 
would lie more than men, and men file false charges as well. 
Hopefully, it will have a deterrent effect on them, as well as 
it would on women. 

MS. FRANCIS: Just to reiterate: If those two Senate 
Committee amendments were taken off and the bill moved as it 
was originally proposed, you would say that it would keep New 
Jersey close to the forefront? 

MS. PRICE: I would definitely say that. You have to 
realize that oth'er states have recognized homosexual marriages, 
even. So, I don't see why this has anything to do with that. 
We're just trying to protect as many citizens as we can ·under 
this particular law. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. Thank you. 
We'll take a five-minute break, and then we'll resume. 

(RECESS) 

AFTER RECESS: 

DR. VAN JONES: We see our guest has arrived. Hi. 
Welcome to this afternoon's hearing before the Commission on 
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Sex Discrimination in the Statutes. We're so glad that you 

came to talk with us today. 

Your name is Dr. Arlene Bardeguez? 

A R L E N E D. B A R D E G U E Z, M.D.: Bardeguez. 

(corrects pronunciation) 

DR. VAN JONES: Bardeguez. Okay, and welcome. 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Thank you. Good afternoon. First of 

all, thank you for inviting me to participate. It's really a 

great experience for us because we might be able to share some 

information that will be helpful for you. 

DR. VAN JONES: Excuse me. I don't know if they can · 

hear you in the back. Can you hear her . in the back? ·.o 

audible response) Maybe if you moved a little closer to tile 

microphone. 

MS. PERELMUTER: The microphone is just for the 

transcriber. 

DR. VAN JONES: Oh. It's for tpe transcriber. 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: I'll try to project. Basically my 

testimony is going to be in · reference to the human 

immunodeficiency virus infection in women and how that affects 

some of the studies on New York State. 

DR. VAN JONES: Maybe close the door? I'm sorry. 

They're still having a problem in the back. They can't hear. 

Maybe you could come up to the front. Those in the 

back who can't hear, do you want to come up to the front? No? 

You're okay? 

Okay, sorry. 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: The human immunodeficiency virus, as 

we know, is the etiologic agent for AIDS. We know that this 

virus basically grows in monocyte and lymphocyte,. but also in 

macrophage. The clinical manifestation of this disease wi 11 

range anywhere from asymptomatic infection up to the wasting 

syndrome characterized by opportunistic infection and dementia 

that we know as AIDS. 
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Even though the first case~ of AIDS were reported 

among homosexual males in 1981, the numbers of cases reported 
-- not only in the United States but also in the whole world -­

have been increasing to the range that we now call it the AIDS 

epidemic, starting in the 1980s. 

As of June 1, 1989 the World Health Organization 

reported an accumulative total of 157,191 cases of AIDS, and 

those were only from 149 countries that were reported. Of 

course, as we see, this is year-old data. This projection of 

the number of infected people is worldwide, and not everybody 

who is infected is going to show symptoms. That points out 

that between five million to ten million people were infected 

during the decade of 1980. What that means for the United 

States is that at least one million to two million people are 

infected, many of whom we don't recognize yet. 

The toll to our society of this problem is 

overwhelming. There is no discrimination among the people who 

are going to be infected, so it is affecting our children, our 

females, and affecting our ·households. Even more tragic is 

that about 80% to 90% of the cases reported now with AIDS are 

individuals at the peak of their reproductive potential. This 

gives us very little hope for the future of our nation unless 

we do some active intervention in terms of promoting education 

and intervention in this disease process. 

According to the Webster Dictionary, discrimination 

originates from the Latin word "dis," which means apart, . and 

the word "crimen, II which means verdict o 

to distinguish or make distinctions 

particular group. Society has a subtle 

To discriminate means 

in treatment to a 

way of discriminating 

against groups in terms of education, access to health care, 

and job opportunities. We can close our eyes and not look at 

what's happening around us because we are not affected. The 

sad consequence of this view is that it will always come back 

and hit us. Witness of that we can see through history, and if 
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we read Matthew 25:31-46, it describes when Jesus will exert 
judgment over all those who do not feed him, calm his thirst, 
shelter him, or support him in sickness when he was in need. 
What he meant by that was that if you don't do it to one of his 
beloved, you're not going to do it for him. 

As of April 31, 1990 (sic) the number of cumulative 
cases of AIDS reported to CDC were 132, 510 cases. For the 
State of New Jersey the number of cumulative cases as of May 
31, 1990 was 8951 cases. The counties of Essex, Hudson, 
Passaic, and Union carry most of the load for this State, but 
the numbers of cases identified in other states have been 
continuously increasing. New Jersey is the fifth state in the 
nation with the highest number of reported AIDS cases. 

Although this epidemic has affected mostly male 
individuals, the proportion of females has been drastically 
increasing over the past decade. Women now constitute 9% of 
the total population of AIDS cases. Based on the transmission 
category report to CDC for the State of New Jersey: 64% of the 
cases occurred among intravenous drug abusers; 29% of the women 
have contracted the disease through heterosexual contact; 4% 
happened to get infected secondary to transfusion or blood 
component use; and 3% are undetermined. 

The racial distribution for our State among women 
showed that 54% of the cases occur in black females, 34% in 
white, and 12% in Hispanics. These figures drastically differ 
from the national ones. In New Jersey we have the highest 
proportion ..of AIDS cases in women of · the nation. We also 
recognize that AIDS is the number one cause of mortality among 
childbearing age black women. 

This dramatic strain to our society contrasts sharply 
with our present provisions to educate, offer medical and 
psychological support, and assist this group of underprivileged 
ones. 
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The State of New Jersey has set up demonstration 
pediatric regional centers in five areas 
Jersey, New Brunswick, St. Joseph's, 
Hospital in Newark. Beth Israel 

of need, namely: New 
Camden, and University 
is now an affiliate 

institution to our program in University Hospital. Because of 
recognition on pediatric activists -- we can call it in a way 
-- they. recognize that early intervention in children can only 
be achieved by early intervention in their mothers. They have 
been able to open in some of these centers the capability to 
offer perinatal testing and HIV education and follow-up for 
some of the serving population. However, the only formal OB 
and pediatric link is at the University Hospital in Newark. 

At the present time probably only two centers in the 
whole State will be capable of offering some of the drug trials 
that are going to be investigational, including the ACTU 076 
for the women infected in our State. 

In the OB/GYN Department of University Hospital in 
Newark, we basically serve as the tertiary center for the whole 
area of Essex County, mostly for Newark, but we also get 
referrals from neighboring counties. We do about 2500 to 2700 
deliveries each year, and in an anonymous seroprevalence study 
done in 1988 we noticed that at least 4. 3% of our deliveries 
were positive for HIV infection. These were patients that not 
only have the ELISA but also have the western blot proof of 
it. This basically reflects one of the highest prevalence for 
the whole nation if you look at other seroprevalence studies 
done in similar populations. During the same study period, 
less than 1% of these cases were identified prenatally, because 
as I mentioned before, this was an anonymous seroprevalence 
study made in cord blood. 

Therefore, at that time our department adopted a 
policy that education, risk assessment, and the offering of HIV 
testing should be given to any woman receiving prenatal care in 
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our institution. This has been possible through support from 

the State Perinatal AIDS Prevention Project, and the NIH funded 

study of perinatal transmission. 

We have centered all our efforts in the adult pregnant 

population and basically only in the new patients that arrived 

at the clinic since January 1989. The benefits of such 

dramatic policy at present are even more crucial, because now 

we have effective support and intervention that we can offer to 

these mothers, that at the time we started this initiative, we 

didn't have. 

Our experience from September 1989 to April 1990, 

which is when we have more strongly documented cases, is that 

of 1170 new patients seen during that study period, only 56.5% 

of the women were able to be contacted. This basically was 

because of lack of resources because we don't have -- even 

though we have two grants working on it -- enough personnel to 

provide active people in the clinics everyday. 

Sixty-two percent of those patients agreed to be 

tested, which is one of the highest yields based on voluntary 

testing of people, and 4.3% were positive. One of the things 

that we learned from it is, not only that we can have a big 

turnaround on people who get tested and identified early 

prenatally, but also that we can provide education, which is 

even more important, so even those who have not agreed to be 

tested can reduce their risk factors and the risk and the 

exposure. Only 15% of HIV positive cases admitted substance 

abuse; therefore, the rest will belong -- most of them -- to 

heterosexual contacts. 

Although this is a dramatic improvement from our 

efforts in 1987, there is still a lot of work to do. We have 

not extended our efforts to the growing number of teenagers 

afflicted with this disorder. There is actually, to my 

knowledge, no data on how many teenagers we actually have going 

through our prenatal care system who are infected. We have not 
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touched the gynecologic group population with a consistent 
approach, so any woman who would come not necessarily with a 
sexually transmitted disease and be offered HIV testing but 
people who would come for other reasons to an OB/GYN clinic are 
not getting offered the tests on a really consistent basis. 

We have not contacted the other 43.5% of our prenatal 
population either. Even more depressing are the number of 
referrals of infected patients abandoned by their private 
physician once an HIV test has returned positive. Many of 
these women have never received notification or were not aware 
that they had been tested by the private physician. 

From October 1, 1989 to April 30, 1990, we had 621 
births at University Hospital, and of those 147, or 23% of 
those patients, had no prenatal care, so we have no knowledge 
either on how this disease is afflicting that population. 

When and how do we provide help for all these women in 
desperate need? I also want to add -- it's not in my notes -­
the fact that for the State of New Jersey, there is actually a 
limited number of centers that will offer care for pregnant 
women who are IV drug abusers. So, even though we counsel them 
and we tell them that they have to get off drugs, we have to 
provide them with some resources, and we don't have them. In 
Newark, there is no clinic that actually accepts pregnant women 
on trial for cocaine abuse. 

To summarize, even though we have improved our 
approach to the AIDS epidemic, God knows that we need a lot 
mo;re help from you and· the community to make a difference. 
University Hospital is only a sample of what's happening in 
Newark, in Essex County, in New Jersey, in the United States, 
and in the world. We can make a difference and stop the 
discrimination against availability of health care and support 
for women with HIV infection if we really want to, and maybe it 
will not be-- We won't have to wait for the judgment day, 
because unless we do something now, this epidemic is going to 

destroy us all as a nation. 
Thank you. 
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DR. VAN JONES: What sort of recommendation do you 

have for us whereby we could help in this area, a very 

frightening one, a very frightening future for all of us? As 

Commissioners, what would you recommend that we do to help 

provide for those things that you're talking about? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Every time we talk about prov1s1ons, 

people get frightened because they think costs, but definitely 

the new approach for HIV infection is to test the people that 

are infected early, in the period they are asymptomatic. So 

one of the first things that we have to do is really try 

actively to enroll people in the community, church, civic 

groups, women's groups, and any other entity that we need, even 

in terms of the educational system to our teenagers to provide 

them with education about how they can get infected, about how 

many women there are dying in our State from this disease, so 

that that will modify risk behavior. It cannot be a one-time 

issue. It's really going to have to be on a consistent basis 

or a periodic basis in order to be able to make a difference, 

because what happened to a lot of the women who I take care of 

is, they go there and after they do the test they don't even 

believe the reality of, "Yes, I'm positive." They believe 

that, "Well, I have two kids. I have many women in my house. 

Why does this happen to me now?" 

So, we definitely have to warn them that you can have 

sex, but you have to use protection whenever you have sex, 

because it's a consented act. 

The other· thing is, we have to actually establish 

perinatal regional centers the same way we did for pediatric 

and obstetric groups. Probably that will come through 

expansion of the pediatric ongoing groups that are active, but 

they have to open new centers in other areas. Those centers 

could provide for outpatient identification through testing and 

probably also follow-up, and many of the early symptoms could 

be handled on an outpatient basis. That could probably 
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minimize the number of people who come into the hospital 
needing critical care -- intensive care intervention -- which 
is more costly, and at that point we have very little to offer. 

There's a lot of new medications, as we all read in 
the press everyday and in the medical journals. For example, 
AZT, DDI, and all these other drugs can actually prevent the 
progression of the disease and make the life of these people 
more fruitful and actually more bearing to our society. 

I think that would be my greatest recommendation for 
the Commission; that we open our eyes before it's just too late. 

MS. FRANCIS: Could you clarify that? This is more of 
a medical question, but you're saying if people who are 
identified as HIV positive .• but who are still without symptoms, 
are put on a drug regimen at that point, then there is a fair 
amount of success in keeping that from turning into full-blown 
AIDS? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Okay. Basically what has happened is, 
during the last year, the middle of 1989, the first drug trial 
on AZT and the homosexual population -- basically male; I think 
_there was a 1 imi ted number of women, . I don't think they came to 
more than 20 cases in the whole nation -- actually proved that 
not only in AIDS cases but also in asymptomatic patients, AZT 
use could prevent progression of the disease. There have also, 
in the same trend, been other drug trials using DDI, and 
showing also that it is effective in some of the patients who 
cannot use either AZT or have side effects of AZT. 

There have been multiple other studies on the use of 
erythropoeitin, for example, to treat anemia and the use of 
pentamidine to prevent pneumocystis carinii. Most of all. 
this-- Not most, basically all of these trials have been on 
male population and only recently some of these trials have 
been extended to the pediatric groups. 

I'm one of the participants of one of the OB teams for 
the ACTU, where we are recommending that some of these drugs be 
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opened up to the women who are pregnant. Of course, as we 

know, it has caused a lot of controversy, because up to now we 

have said that we try to avoid medications during pregnancy 

because of the side effects. But when you think about the 

mortality the disease takes, and the fact that if the mother 

dies then there's no baby to take care of, then we have been 

reconsidering our position. There are a lot of groups 

nationwide -- I can quote you the group from Brooklyn, Howard 

Menkoff, and the group from -- Maryjo Sullivan, in Florida -­

who are actively using ACT and other drugs on· people who are 

identified as higher risks. 

MS. FRANCIS: Including pregnant women? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Including pregnant women. We're 

trying to establish that as a national policy, and we haven't 

been that successful yet. But there are certain things that we 

can do. For example, at University Hospital what we do, with 

the help of some of this grant and other patients, just through 

Medicaid, we do lymphocyte counts on all of these patients. On 

those who are considered at high risk, meaning that they have 

lower than a 300 helper cell count, we have offered them 

prophylaxis for some disease. For example, we offer them 

prophylaxis for hepatitis, which is one of the diseases that 

these people can get. We're working on a protocol for 

prophylaxis for TB using INH. We are trying to find a system 

to use AZT on some of these women. 

There are a lot of things that are still in debate, 

but they are coming. The reality is that unless we start 

moving and offering this to our pregnant women, it is really 

going to be dreadful -- what is going to happen. 

MS. FRANCIS: That leads me to the other question that 

I had: Looking back at your numbers -- this may be coincidence 

-- on the next-to-last page, your 1988 study at the University 

Hospital said that 4.3% of the deliveries were HIV positive, 

and your study the next year, or your experience from September 
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of '89 to '90 is that, of the patients who have been tested, 

4.3% of the mothers were positive. I mean, if you put those 

4. 3s together, does that mean that every HIV positive mother 

has an HIV positive baby? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: No. You cannot interpret it that 

way. Basically, of all the mothers who are HIV positive, 

only-- The baby initially is going to test positive 

immediately after birth, and you basically have to follow this 

baby up to 18 months to see if the baby develops its own 

response--

MS. FRANCIS: Oh, okay. 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: --because of the transfer of maternal 

antibodies into the baby. At that point in '87 where we found 

out that we had a 4.3% incidence, and we only identified less 

than 1%, we knew that there was a lot of work to do. Right 

now, we identify 4.3%, but as I show you in the numbers, we're 

only tes cing half of the population. So we probably have an 

even higher incidence of what we identified two years ago. The 

other issue is that a lot of these patients, as I mentioned, 

have been referred -- sort of like "acute" referrals -- from 

these private practitioners who found that these women were 

positive. We definitely are concentrating more positive cases 

in our institution than what you might generate from some of 

the public hospitals in that area, or private hospitals. 

MS. FRANCIS: Let me just, again, go out-- The 

question that .I would be interested in, would be that you are 

saying that some of the protocols, or some of the rules 

perhaps, that you're going by are that you can't give pregnant 

women certain drugs because of what it might do to the fetus, 

right? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Right. 

MS. FRANCIS: What prevents you from--

DR. BARDEGUEZ: It's more in terms of what drugs are 

going to be used on a research basis let's say 
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investigational basis -- and are given to this woman. I mean, 

there's no holdback at this point if a woman has low lymphocite 

counts. I can tell her, "Okay, there's no data on pregnancy. 

There's going to be a protocol opening in six months, but 

you're so sick that if you want it I can give it to you." I 

can get a consent form, stipulate that, have her sign it, and 

give it to her. 

MS. FRANCIS: So then you can go ahead? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Right. 

MS. FRANCIS: Okay, I just--

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Right, right. And then the other 

issue is that there are other things that you become aware of 

when you have this woman. For example-- I mean, I have 

learned a lot with this disease. A lot of times you see a 

patient who is walking around and looks healthy and you think, 

"Oh, there's no problem," because they are asymptomatic, 

right? But when you do immunologic studies, the immune system 

of this woman is really awful. So once we identify them, we 

keep a closer surveillance on them and on the baby. Years ago 

we were not doing that. 

Therefore, if they come with the first episode of a 

pneumonia, I'm going to hit this women with everything that I 

have, because I know she is not going to respond right away. 

MS. FRANCIS: Yeah. I asked the question in the 

context of other issues. I'm sure Jeanne Stellman this morning 

probably _talked about workplace hazards and so on where we 

choose to treat a woman, not thinking of her entirely, but 

thinking of the fetus also. Where do you strike that balance 

between saying she is the human being we are treating, not the 

potential development, you know, the life that is to come? So, 

I was wondering if, in fact, we were treating pregnant women 

differently because of the implications for the fetus? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: That is one of the issues that has 

come out in all these national meetings. I mean, it always 
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comes up. 
like INH 

The fact is that a lot of the data, even with drugs 
that have been long-standing and known in our 

community-- Most people didn't use it in pregnancy because 
they felt, well, pregnancy is a limited time period. It's only 
nine months. You can wait until postpartum and then use it. 
But the difference now is that those nine months you can have 
miliary TB because you have a low lymphocite count, and the 
disease progresses. 

So, it was not really based on bona fide data showing 
that that drug was detrimental to the pregnancy. Even on the 
registry that we have nowadays for AZT -- I don't have the 
exact numbers -- but there has been no consistency in terms of 
congenital anomalies produced by this drug. The rate, 
basically, is the same as the background rate of naturally 
occurring congenital anomaly, which is 2% to 3%. Okay? 

MS. FRANCIS: So, you can't even show that there is an 
effect. 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: There is an effect. And if you look 
at the case-- If I looked at it maybe six months ago, it was 
not consistent. Usually a drug that is g6ing to be teratogenic 
will give you cardiac anomalies all the time or limb anomalies 
all the time, and the cases that they presented were not 
consistent with the same preble L So. that is why a lot more 
groups have been advocating for women in terms of allowing them 
to be treated if they need to be. I think that the hardest 
part, again, for women, is that they don't learn, or they don't 
know how to be their own advocate. I mean, if we compare the 
massive campaign that has been going on for the gay group, and 
all the achievement that they have gotten from '81, when the 
first cases were being reported until now, it's dramatic-. 

I mean, they have been able to balance this; not any 
more increase in the number of homosexual cases. For women, we 
have increased from 5%, I think, in 1986, to 9% now. It will 
still be increasing, and that's only AIDS cases, and not even 

identifying the ones that are positive. 

119 



MS. FRANCIS: Again, I guess, in terms of what 

statutes would relate to that, do you have any specific 

suggestions? I mean, some of this is medical practice that 

happens within the medical profession, as opposed to other 

elements of this which would be dealt with by legislation. Can 

you address what legislative part of it would be helpful? 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: Well, I was reading in May -- sometime 

in May -- that there was going to be-- It was addressed to one 

of the committees in Washington, the fact that Medicaid should 

support more the management of AIDS patients, asymptomatic AIDS 

patients, so that's one of the issues that I think our State 

should put in the front line in supporting that bill whenever 

it comes up, so that all the hospitals that get a big burden of 

AIDS cases can be helped with a load of income, so we can get 

more personnel to take care of them. 

Again, I think that one of the most even though 

people don't want to hear it -- is education. I mean, we 

really need to-- I mean, I take care of pregnant women who are 

HIV infected, but there are so many out there that are not 

infected yet, and I would like to tell them, "Hey, don't do 

this, because otherwise you can get infected." At this time 

what is happening is, they don't think it's going to touch 

them. You know, that happened to that other patient who was a 

junkie, or that happened to that other patient who was messing 

around with people with drugs, is never going to happen to me. 

And the amount of patients that I have seen during the last 

year who actually just through sexual contact-- It ·is 

really depressing. I mean, you are there, you support them, 

but it's really hard to give them anything to, uplift their 

spirits. 

The other thing is that we actually -- except for bona 

fide voluntary help have very little in terms of 

psychological support and social support for this group of 

women. With many of them, the first reaction is, "How am I 
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going to tell my partner? He's going to kill me. How am I 

going to tell my partner? He's going to throw me out of the 

house. How am I going to leave my job? If I leave my job when 

I get sick-- because I'm the only one supporting my family and 

my four other kids?" So, resources for all those areas need to 

be provided. 

MS. FRANCIS: In general, probably that's true for 

both men and women-- I mean what you're saying -- both men and 

women patients with AIDS. Are there specific sex-based 

differences in any of what you said that--

DR. BARDEGUEZ: I think that women are more vulnerable 

than men in the sense that a lot of the relationships that we 

see among women are that they are the receivers. They want 

this husband or partner to love them. They completely depend 

upon them. They have no resources or no education, and when it 

comes to being honest to their partner and tell them their. 

results, the last that they think of is·, "Maybe I got it 

because of him." The. first thing that they think is, "He's 

going to hit me because I gave it to him." Okay? It's so 

dramatic because we don't know who gives it to whom. I mean, 

it doesn't matter which came first, the chicken or the egg. 

The fact is that--. The same way that we deal with infertility, 

"You' re a couple and you have to deal with it. " 

have not been able to effect the same mechanism 

disease. 

MS. FRANCIS: Thanks very much. 

DR. BARDEGUEZ: You're welcome. 

DR. VAN JONES: Okay. Thank you. 

Thank you for coming. 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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Lucile Barkness Pfleeger 210 Dickinson Road 
Glassboro, New Jersey 08028 

!est"imony - Jlearing _June 20, 1990 
Health 
Bew Jersey Commission on Sex Discrimination in the Statutes 

Why is a 68 year old retired public school music teacher concerned for 

reproductive health issues? 

Personal& Daughter, Daughter-in-law and three teenage granddaughters. 

Community In7olvementsa learned about accessibility of health care. 

1. Rousing Authoritt Commissioner (10 years) - concerned for the welfare of 
poor minority tenants -eenage pregnancies abounded and women were denied total 
reproductive health care because of medicaid funding restrictions. (Legal care 
which is available to affluent women.) 

2. President, Board, PASA (Shelter for Battered Women) for Gloucester County. 

(Learned that males who use physical force and mental and psychological abuse have 
a need to control and dominate women. ) 

Questions Are pregnant ~omen in shelters operated by Cetholic Charities 
presented ~th all options? Or, is Gag Rule applied? 

Concerns Proposed spousal and parental consent lawa give males more power 
to dominate and control women. 

3. Member, Board of Family Planning Services for Cumberland, Gloucester and 

Salem counties. 

Concerns: Governor Florio's proposed budget, being debated this weak, cuts 
Family Planning l'unds by $100,000. (Federal funds have been 
drastically out during the Reagan and Bush administrations - from 
$161 million in 1981 to $135.6 million in 1990. Need (rock bottom) 
$230 million in 1991. fo adequately serve the eligible population 
in 1992, taoo million is needed. !itle X needs to be reauthorised 
federally. 

Locally a on June 1-l, 1990 w "" forced to vote to out the •teen Parent 
.Advocacy Program" for Cumberland county where the rate of' births 
to teens is 2Q%. !he program taught pa. renting, and aimed to 
prevent second teen pregnancies. 

I· am oonoerned that the courts may make possible the reinstatement of the 

"Gag Rule" wnioh prevents the presenting of all options for pregnant teP.ns and 

adult female clients. 

J'amily Planning has few contraceptive options to present - there i~ a high 

percentage of failure of existing contraceptive methods. Research and development 

is needed for new methods. 

Jlost teens oome to Family Pla.uni:ng already pregnant. !here is a great need 
for early sex eduoation and Fmnily Planning services in sohool based clinics -
not possible nowbecause of' state regulations. 

-l. Former President, Legislative Chairt Reproductive Rights Chair and 
presently Co-Chair (~th Dr. Kathleen Ruben} of' Clinic Defense for the 
Alioe Paul-South Jersey Chapter of the Bational Organisation for Women. 
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Por several years I have volunteered on Saturday mornjngs to escort patients 

into the Cherry Hill Women's Center in Cherry Hill, N.J.. Originally, only two or 

three volunteers were needed to shield the young girls and women patients from the 

demonstrators walking on the sidewalk in front of the olinio. 

In 198~ there was an invasion of the clinic ~hen several persons, mostly males, 

forced their way into the clinic. Health Center employees suffered broken foot bones 

and broken ribs. The trespassers chained themselves to chairs and disrupted the 

operation of the clinic for several hours. 

In November of 1987 Randall Terry and "Operation Rescue• staged a trial siege. 

or blockade, at the CHWC in preparation for a ~eklong assault on Ne- York City clinics. 

It took several hours for the police to carry away the demonstrators. Since then 

the CHWC has had three major "hits" by Operation Rescue. 

As a result of these assaults on the CHWC and other health centers the defenders 

of clinics, under the leadership of BOW, have become organised. On each Saturday 

morning from 20 to 50 volunteers arrive at the CBWC at 5:30 a.m. and stay at least 

until lOaOO a.m. to escort patients. If we have a major n • hit we alert our phone 

tree, and extra emergency volunteers arrive on the scene to assist. Our volunteers 

include teenagers and senior citisens, both male and female, who volunteer for this 

service. 

the leaders of the blockades are always men. Women participate, but they are 

given orders which they must follow. Most of the leaders of both the blockades 

and the regular Saturday morning picketing are clergy. 

Por instance, two fundamentalist preachers routinely bring their youth groups 

(preteens and teens) to the CHWC on Saturday mornings to harass and a~~oy women, an 

early lesson in sexism. They risk the lives of these children as they purposely 

send them across the driveway as patients are making left turns, across two lanes 

of traffice, into the driveway of the Women's Center. I predict a terrible accident 

~11 happen because of this tactic. 

These clergy have been highly incensed when I have reminded them that clergy 

are one of the top four categories of men who beat their ~ves, and that their 

harassing of women patients expresses a need for them to dominate and control women. 

Catholic clergy and laypersons loudly recite their rosaries and vociferously 

aocuse both patients and defenders of being •Agents of Satan.• 
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Women's Health Centers provide routine gynecological health care ~ich includes 

pelvic examdnations, PAP tests, breast examinations, sexually transmitted diseases 

testing, contraceptive services, pregnancy testing, counseling services, laboratory 

services (RH factor, hemoglobin and hematocrit, etc.) as well as first and second 

trimester abortion procedures under local or general anesthesia. 

Young girls and ..amen seeking these gynecological services must enter the clinic 

While assaulted by ugly posters and barraged by men with bullhorns who harangue and 

harass them. 

Women scheduled for abortions have been required to fast and are frequently 

feeling weak and queasy. On the days When the clinic is under siege women are forced 

to wait outside in their automobiles, sometimes for several hours, for the police to 

clear the blockade. Some become distraught, and starr and volunteers attempt to 

comfort them. 

Some women are in the second day of a two-day process (laminaria) and must 

receive attention immediately or they can suffer severe adverse effects. On the 

days the clinic is blockaded these woman must be sent immediately to another facility 

several miles away. 

In August of 1989, while giving instructions to one of these ~men, a trespasser, 

who was harassing the patient, reported to the police that I had "touched" her. A 

policeman threatened to arrest me even though I was wearing a clinic escort sign 

and was assisting patients at the request of the CBRC. !he trespasser was violating 

the law by being on the property. 

During ~he April 29, 1989 blockade attempt our clinic escorts were able to hold 

the door and ~re able to assist all patients in reaching the door even though the 

trespa~sers pushed, shoved and kicked the patients, our volunteers and the police. 

During the invasion I was knocked to the ground, and later, When I was crushed against 

the door, I felt panic and understood how it was possible fo~ those soccer fans to be 

killed. Some patients were thoroughly terrorised. 

I lett the CBWC at 11100 a.m., called the New Jersey State Police to report 

that the situation at the CBWC was out of control, and asked for their assistance. 

(We had previously had a conference concerning the Clinic Blockades with a repre-. 
sentative of the State Police, at their request.) I was told later that State Police 

are not allowed to provide assistance unless requested to do so by the municipality. 
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We request this commdssion to investigate the possibility of revising this 

regulation. We question why, when blockades occur, one municipality ~hould be 

expected to assume the expenses of the police, courts and jails when Women's Health 

Centers serve women in all municipalities in all counties.in lar£e regions of our state. 

Presently, there is no uniform law enforcement of existing ordinances against 

blockades. Women are discouraged by officials from filing complaints. rhey are 

told that the chances of successful prosecution are slim. I feel that a state 

ordinance is needed which would require police to arrest those who invade clinic 

property, before they have the opportunity :to "seise" the door, and wonld require 

courts to levy and enforce strong penalties. 

We request this commission to investigate the possibility of drafting an 

ordinance which ~uld require "Operation Rescue" to notify the police as to the 

location of their proposed "blockade, • as was required by the police during their 

assaults in Bew York City. Much time, expertise and resources are wasted by the 

police and the volunteers who defend the clinics because of having to be constantly 

ready to respond to a blockade or siege. 

We request this commission to investigate the possibility of draft~ng state 

regulations ~ich ~uld prevent the harassment of Women's Health Center employees 

off the site and would prevent the targeted picketing of their homes. 

---------------------------------we request this commission to investigate the regulations ~ioh prevent 

licensed medical facilities trom advertising tree precnanoy testing services but 

which permit unlicensed non-medical church-sponsored "Crisis Pregnancy Centers" 

to advertise free pregnancy testing. These Centers have no medical personnAl on 

staff, and they do not adhere to "truth in advertising" regulations. Their sole 

purpose is to coerce young women to carry pregnancies to term, and they specialise 

in using scare tactics to accomplish their purpose. 

------------------------------------
In summation, I feel that the blockading of ~omen's Health Centers, thus 

denying women access to legal health oare, is discrimination again~t women. The 

First Amendment does not grant the right to be violent or intimidating in express-

ing one's opinions. 
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Women are not offered equal aoeess to medical facilities and basic health 

eare. Poor ·~men are denied medical care which is available for affluent women. 

In addition to opposing abortion, most or those, especially the males, who 

lay siege to women's health centers also oppose birth control and sterilisation. 

Yet, they do not harass or prevent men from obtaining vasectomies nor intimidate 

them ~en they seek routine urological health care. 

There is no segment of our sooiety, other than women, ~ich is denied access 

to health care and/or harassed while seeking health care which is their right. 

Respectfully submitted, 
'..{) . /l L 1 .~/ . ~. . 

':;,/.l..v-_d_<. //TJ .:.Ill 'It<. ).GJ ~j-pu...tc .:_. \ 
Lucile Harkness Pfleege# a 



Senator Wynona M Lipnan, Cllair 

10 Adams ct. 
Marlton, N.J. 08053 
June 20, 1990 

N.J. Corrmission oo Sex Discrimination in the statutes 
142 W. state Street 
CN 095 
Trenton, N.J. 08625 
Dear Senator Lipnan, 

My testimony concerns the need for a state law \\hich w:>Uld guarantee 
women the right of equal access to medical care. A IOOdified version of a 
Maryland statute (see attached), it "WOuld carry a nanda.tory fine of $500 
for the first offense and $1000 for the second offense and/or a term of 
imprisornnent of up to 90 days for obstructing a person's passage to or fran 
a medical facility. Passage of this law would be the first step in redressing 
the damaging effects of discriminatory municipal law enforcement that has 
cornnonly l'x.dl the response to violent de:nonstrations at N.J. health care 
facilities that offer abortion services. 

'!here are nany a:mplex reasons for this discrimination. IDeal officials 
may argue that protestors are protected under the 1st Amendment. Anti­
choice protestors who demonstrate at the clinics are, according to this 
argument, simply exercising the right of free speech as guaranteed by the 
Constitution, and rrust be allowed to do so. This seems reasonable until 
one actually visits a clinic \\hen it is under siege by Operation Rescue. 
'!he violent nature of the demonstration becanes cbvious--200 individuals 
(mostly l'IEil) trespass a1 clinic property, blockade the door, and assault 
escorts, patients, staff, and P"tysicians. 

In light of this activity, the Supreme Cburt has indicated that the 
blocking of a clinic door is not a protected form of free speech. It 
upheld an injuncti,on against this behavior that is in force in Georgia, and 
let a similar injunction stand in New York. '!he N.Y. case calls for fines 
in excess of $100,000 for each offender and authorized collection through 
liens on incane and bank accounts. It found that the blocking of clinic 
doors was not a acceptable form of ccmnunication in a democratic society, 
and that the civil rights of women were being violated. '!he court canpared 
these women's rights to those of blacks who attempted to gain access to 
segregated establishments in the early days of the civil rights rcovement. 
Federal marshals were assigned to escort blacks into these buildings be­
cause of the volatile nature of the situation. 

'Ihese volatile conditions affect all New Jersey women who seek gyne­
cological or abortion services at local women's health care facilities. 
I have had first hand experience with the violence that has been focused 
on women who attempt to enter these clinics. As Coordinator of the South 
Jersey Clinic Defense Task Force, I have helped to organize teams of es­
corts to help women into the clinics. Most of my "WOrk has been done at the 
Cherry Hill Women's Center, but I have also conducted training sessions 
for teams in other parts of New Jersey, and have spoken with clinic adminis­
trators. The story is pretty must the same--one or two groups of individuals 
travel from clinic to clinic tc disrupt service. 

It doesn't rra.tter whether or not the wanan is young or old, whether 
she's the doctor or the patient, or .,.~ether :she .i:s -there as- a.-volunteer to help 
the clients, she is a target for violence, harassment, and verbal abuse. 
We can't even imagine this happening to men on a routine basis--if priests 
or bishops ~e knocked down every time they tried to enter their church, we'd 
see quite a different response. Because the women involved are young and 
most likely without money or influence, its easy to see them as victims. 
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'The impact on these wcmen is devastating. One ~ who was nine months 
pregnant was recently surrounded by anti-choice individuals who tried 
to keep her from entering her doctor's office in Willingboro for vital 
prenatal care. They asked her repeatedly not to kill her baby. During 
other Operation Rescue attacks, individuals who are there to provide safe 
passage for clients are often pushed against clinic doors or walls by 
crowds of over 200 individuals in their attempt to blockade clinic doors. 
I have been caught in that crush and have been kicked, ell:xJwed, and nearly 
choked. During these incidents, a clinic administrator was taken by the 
hair and thrown to the ground, a doctor was surrounded and knocked done 
after emerging fran his car where he had been trapped for over 30 minutes; 
a nurse was punched in the face. I've seen patients pushed to the ground 
and surrounded by the angry mob, while another was lifted. to the top of 
a car to escape--they were extremely distraught and openly sobbing. 

2 

I've been knocked. down by one individual who goes from clinic to clinic and knocks 
down escorts in order to videotape the patients and their car licenses for 
future harassment. People have suffered. broken toes, car accidents, and 
bruised. ribs. One women whom I helped was afraid to walk to the bathroom 
at the nearby gas station. She had been sitting in the hot sun for 
several hours without food or drink as medically required. and she wasn't 
feeling too well. She had to get into the clinic and have her procedure 
done that day because she had a laminaria in place to dialate the cervix. 
If left unattended, she risked infection and possibly death from complications. 
On our way to the gas station she told me a story about her friend who 
wanted to abort so badly that she drank bleach. I assured her that she would 
not be fac~ with that decision because she would eventually get into the 
clinic if she could make it. After six hours of extreme duress, she finally 
did get in. (See attached photocopies--chairperson has several originals.) 

It is vital that women have access to local clinics for routine gyneco­
logical services, prenatal care, and abortion services. 97% of all abortions 
are performed in local non-profit and private clinics. Without these clinics, 
women would not have access to safe and legal abortion, irrespective of the 
laws safeguarding that right in principle--because they would not be able to 
afford hospital procedures. Only 13% of all abortions are perfonned in hospi­
tals , in part because of the high cost of $1000 to $1600 per procedure. 
This low percentage also reflects the fact that most abortions are performed 
before 1 5 weeks gestation ( 9 5. 8%) and do not require a high level of medical 
technology. While hospitals may accept Medicaid patients, clinics must meet 
special requirements to do so. Four such clinics exist in New Jersey and 
have been targets of anti-choice activity. Since all of these clinics play a key 
role in assuring that women have access to safe, legal, and affordable 
abortion and gynecological services, they have been repeatedly attacked by 
Operation Rescue with the ultimate goal of putting them out of business. 

Recently, the u.s. Supreme Court determined that Operation Rescue was 
involved in a conspiracy t~ close these clinics permanently, and found that 
the clinic that brought the case to court was entitled. to triple damages 
under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations (RIOO) Act. 
However, most Operation Rescue members have already transferred their assets 
and make it impossible to recover legal fees, which were in excess of $150,000 
in this case. Operation Rescue wears down individual clinic owners by 
involving them in lengthy and costly law suits, by harassing staff and physi­
cians at their homes, at the clinics, and even in public places such as 
restaurants, making normal life seem impossible for those involved. 
In addition, demonstrations create noise, traffic hazards, and unsafe 
conditions for those who live in· the neighborhood. Even though most 
individuals in the community support the clinic involved, they still 
yearn for peace and tranquillity. This has instigated a groundswell of 
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of support for laws such as the one I am asking you to support today. 
I..Dca.l officials have also expressed frustration over this continued 

disruption in the carmuni ties. Each time that the Olerry Hill wanen' s Center 
is attacked by ~ation Rescue, it costs over $6000 in costs that are 
primarily police overtime pay. The perception that this rooney and effort 
is largely wasted because nothing is being done to deter the behavior and 
change the situation has led to a reduction of police intervention in some 
camrunities. Police c::cmplain that they break their backs and risk injury 
to themselves time and time again and nothing ever happens to the individuals 
who are breaking the law. '!heir cases take years to be heard and when 
they finally are heard, the offenders get another warning and are asked to 
pay yet another token fine. The high cost and low police incentive due to 
uneven judicial enforcement may account for insufficient police protection 
at sane New Jersey clinics. However a I!Dre insidious explanation of mtb. 
the lack of adequate police protection and inconsistent judicial action sto.lld 
1:e seriaEI.y a::ntid:!ta:i. It involves the tendency to view the issue as an ideolo­
gical one rather than one concerned with the rra.intenance of law and order for 
the conm:m good. The escorts, clinic staff, and patients are seen as fanning 
one anny or team, and the ~ation Rescue trespassers are seen as fanning an 
opposing team. These two annies are using the local clinic, according to this 
view, as a battleground where the battle over whether it is "right" or ''wrong" 
to have an abortion will be fooght. Police, judges, and town council members 
are free to base their actions on their own personal beliefs on the issue of 
abortion and equal rights for~, and root for the team of their choice. 
Since the clinic then becanes a war zone, the normal laws that apply are 
suspended. 

Individuals who are assaulted during this time are told not to 
bot.her- tci_f±le ~es- because Operation Rescue members routinely file 
countercharges, and the judge, who hears both of them as part of a "deronstration" 
group being tried, throws the case out of court. ~ation Rescue members 
are allowed to trespass on clinic property for several hours at sane clinics 
before police action is taken. '!he current laws on the books which prohibit 
trespass and assault leave enough to the discretion of local police and 
officials to render them inadequate to mandate non-discriminatory law enforce­
ment in carmunities with wanen' s health care facilities. Even though sane 
progress has been made in camruni ties such as Cherry Hill which has passed 
an ordinance which prohibits blocking access to and egress fran a health care 
facility, and in other carmunities where injunctions have been obtained, 
enforcement is still uneven and inadequate. In many carmunities, Operation 
Rescue offenders are still given token fines and repeated warnings. In Olerry 
Hill, police protection has increased and offenders have been given relatively 
serious fines, with the risk of a suspended driver's license or jail term for 
non-payment. Under the ordinance, police can take direct action to rerove 
individuals who block clinic door without a complaint filed by clinic personnel. 
Police file the charges and testify in court, saving the clinic time and rooney. 
However, offenders have yet to be sentenced under the new ordinance, apparently 
because of the description of 'inedical health facility'' and its applicability 
to clinics such as the Olerry Hill wanen' s Center. This has becane another 
excuse to continually debate the issue and postpone the enforcement of the 
ordinance. 

The changes in Olerry Hill are the result of extensive lobbying which 
is a continuing process. It requires an incredible ai!Dunt of energy and 
perserverance. Even if it .were possible to I!Dunt this campaign in every 
carmuni ty, it would take years to accomplish what 'I.Ould be accomplished 
by the enactment of the state law which I am proposing. I..Dca.l response 
changes with the change in personnel and policy, and since pei:-sonal bias 
plays such a prar.inent role in this arena, the solution to this problem 
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must not be left to local officials or ordinances. These ordinances 
do not bring the full range of legal remedies to bear in each case, nor 
can council members, police, or judges be expected to safeguard the civil 
rights of women at the clinics. 

4 

In conclusion, inadequate police protection and inconsistent judicial 
enforcement have denied wcmen equal protection under the law. 'Ihese 
practices are discriminatory insofar as they fail to protect the civil 
rights of women who attempt to gain access to the medical facility of their 
choice. I am a wanan aiOOng many who has been injured while trying to gain 
access to the <llerry Hill Wanen 's Center for myself as escort, as well as 
for the patient who I was assisting. I feel that the state of New Jersey 
has the obligation to protect women like myself who may find themselves 
at a local women's health care facility for whatever reason. Women should 
be able to stand in front of any private business in New Jersey without 
fear of J:x:x;ti.ly hann. And yet it is a frightening experience to stand in 
front of a clinic before dawn, perhaps knowing that anti-choice demonstrators 
are converging on the clinic and that they will soon be attacking. The 
worse part of it is knowing that there may be periods of time during the 
siege when no laws are in force to protect you, and no police officer is there 
who would care to. 

We desperately need this law to remove the legal imnunity now enjoyed 
by Operation Rescue members in various camnmities, and to provide impetus 
to local governments to clear protestors from private clinic property with 
all due speed, to arrest and charge all individuals who have trepassed 
on clinic property, impeded access to the clinic, or assaulted warnen, and 
to prosecute them to the fullest extent of the law. 

Sincerely, 

I_ / f/.'-~- I·:. 
Dr. Kathleen Ruben, 

Coordinator, S .J. NOV Clinic 
Defense Task FOrce 
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Women in cars or attempting to enter the 
center were harassed by men with cameras 
who were trespassing on private property 
to take photos of patients, cars, and 
license plates. 

April 29, 1989 Cherry Hill Women's Center 

Approximately ;u;o people blocked the 
doors. All of the staff members are female 
and could not get in to work. Approxi­
mately 30 women were scheduled for either 
abortions, check-ups or ultrasound exams 
that morning and they could not get in. 
CHWC provides free pregnancy tests to 
women, and anyone needing this service 

also denied entr . 



the other. 

1 ~.~ A patient with a towel over her head to 
'-'1•''11! 1 hide from t 1 

rte cameras is escorted by staff 
after she was unable to get to the door. 
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This is the first page of the document you were viewing in the FULL format. 
To see a preceding or succeeding code section, press the PREV DOC (.PD) or 
NEXT DOC (.ND) key. To return to your LEXIS search results, transmit B. 
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MICHIE'S ANNOTATED CODE OF MARYLAND; Copyright (c) 1957-1989 
by The Michie Company, 
All rights reserved. 

ARTICLE 27. CRIMES AND PUNISHMENTS. 

I CRIMES AND PUNISHMENTS 

TRESPASS 

Md. Ann. Code art. 27, @ 577B 

@ 577B. Interference with access to or egress from a medical facility. 

(a) Definition. -- (1) In this section, the following words have the meanings 
indicated. 

(2) "Action" does not include speech. 

Press <ESC> for Local Help CD 

Md. Ann. Code art. 27, @ 577B =B= 

(3) (i) "Medical facilityn means: 

1. A facility as defined under @ 10-101 (e) of the Health-General Article; or 

2. A health care facility as defined under @ 19-101 (e) of the Health-General 
Article. 

(ii) "Medical facility" includes an agency, clinic, or office operated under 
the direction of the local health officer or the regulatory authority of the 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene. · 

(4) "Person" does not include: 

(i) The chief executive officer of the medical facility; 

(ii) A designee of the chief executive officer of the medical facility; 

(iii) An agent of the medical facility; or 

(iv) A law enforcement of4icer. 

Press <ESC> for Local Help 

Md. Ann. Code art. 27, @ 577B 11 )C 

CD 
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(b) Prohibited act. -- A person may not act alone, or in concert with others, 
and with the intent to prevent an individual from entering or exiting a medical 

LEXIS! NEXIS! LEXIS~ NEXIS! LEXIS! NEXIS' 
Services of Mead Data Central, Inc. 



facility by physically: 

(1) Detaining the individual; or 

(2) Obstructing, impeding, or hindering the individual's passage. 

(c) Construction. -- This section may not be interpreted to prohibit any 
picketing assembly in connection with a labor dispute as defined in Article 100, 
@ 74 of the Code. 

(d) Penalties. -- A person who violates this section is guilty of a 
misdemeanor and on conviction is subject to a fine of not more than $ 1,000 or 
imprisonment for not more than 90 days or both. (1989, ch. 807.) 

NOTES: 

Editor's Note. --Section 2, ch. 807, Acts 1989, provides that the act shall 
take effect July 1, 1989. 

Press <ESC> for Local Help 
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TESTIMONY AT THE COMMISSION ON SEX DISCRIMINATION IN THE STATUTES 
PUBLIC HEARING ON HEALTH 
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 20, 1990 

COMMUNICATIONS WORKERS OF AMERICA, LOCAL 1031 

My name is Amy Bahruth and I'm a staff representative for 

the Communications· Workers of America, Local 1031. I would like 

to thank you for this opportunity to present testimony about the 

health hazards of VDT use. Local 1031 represents state workers 

at the nine state colleges and the Department of Higher Education 

central offices •. Local 1031 primarily represents women clerical 

workers, so the health and safety problems associated with 

computers is very real to our members. 

Over the past few years, computers have become the norm in 

state offices, virtually replacing the typewriter. In fact, with 

row upon row of computer terminals, many state offices now look 

like computer assembly-line operations. However, even though 

clerical support staff need -to learn new skills to be able to use 

the new technology introduced, the States position is that the 

computer has merely replaced the typewriter and made clerical 

j cbs easier. So, clerical j cbs, especially data entry j cbs, 

remain under-paid and under-valued. 
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More and more of our members spend their entire day, or a 

good portion of it, sitting in front of a VDT screen punching in 

data at a high stroke rate or producing reports and other 

documents. Some departments in state service go to the extreme of 

disciplining workers if they don't make their quota of strokes in 

a given hour. Other departments offer bonus incentives to 

workers who go above and beyond the required stroke rate, which 

inspires most workers because they need to compensate for the low 

salaries. 

Various health problems have been associated with the use of 
~ 

VDTs, including visual problems; muscle and joint problem; 

repetitive motion injuries, such as carpal tunnel syndrome, and 

tendonitis; and job stress. In addition, questions have been 

raised about reproductive risks and about the effects of low-

frequency radiation. 

The most common complaint from VDT operators are of visual 

problems. Prolonged attention to visual detail with limited eye 

movement in a restricted visual field can cause eyestrain and 

other problems. Tasks which require an operator to look back and 

forth from screen to text can produce visual strain. This is 

especially true if the display has light letters on a dark field, 

which is the reverse of print on most documents. In addition, 

eyestrain is caused by too much light in the visual field of the 

operator and by refections on the screen. Symptoms of visual 

problems include itchy eyes, burning sensations, eye strain, 

headaches, blurred or double vision, and changes in vision 

prescriptions. Severe eye discomfort may not go away within a 



short period of time following work and may even be present at 

the start of the next day's shift. Data suggests that some types 

of VDT work produce greater levels of visual complaints than 

traditional office work, because of the special visual demands of 

VDT work. 

Muscle and joint problems are also a major concern for VDT 

operators. Because the body is designed for movement, a fixed 

position is more tiring than moderate movement. When the body is 

still, circulation is slowed and as a result fewer nutrients are 

delivered to the muscles, and fewer wastes are removed from the 

muscles, blood vessels and spinal discs. The result can be 

muscular pain and, in some cases, injury. When workstations are 

poorly designed, which is the case in most State offices, posture 

is poor and strains are placed on particular groups of muscles. 

We are already seeing indications of a severe health problem in 

our members as many VDT operators suffer from stiff neck and 

shoulders; shoulder pain; back pain; hand cramps; swollen muscles 

and joints; sore wrists, pain down their arms; loss of strength 

in their hands and arms; and loss of feeling in their fingers. 

Many of these symptoms are early warning signs of repetitive 

motion injuries, also known as cumulative trauma disorders. 

These injuries are associated with three occupational conditions: 

awkward postures of the wrist or shoulders, excessive manual 

force, and high rates of manual repetition. Specifically, carpal 

tunnel syndrome (CTS), which is becoming a common problem with 

VDT operators, seems to emerge from repetitiveness of the task 

more often than from force. Simply defined, CTS is when the 



nerve that runs down the forearm to the hand to allow finger 

movement is squeezed or pinched as it passes under the wrist into 

the hand. The tendons for flexing the fingers, the median nerve 

and blood vessels pass through the carpal tunnel and if any of 

the tendon sheaths become swollen in the cramped carpal tunnel, 

the median nerve may be pinched. This pressure on the median 

nerve is what creates the numerous symptoms I mentioned before. 

With the number of VDT's used in the workplace expected to 

grow in the 1990's to over 80 million, the number of workers 

adversely affected by CTS and other health problems will 

certainly mushroom. We are already seeing the impact of this new 

technology from the statistics of occupational illnesses and 

injuries compiled by the Bureau of Labor Statistics. The latest 

report indicates that workplace injuries caused by repetitive 

motion have increased sharply and experts called the rise ·of 

computer technology a major factor. The report says repetitive 

motion disorders accounted for 48 percent of all workplace 

illnesses last year, up from 38 percent in 1987 and just 18 

percent in 1981. 

CWA has surveyed its membership about repetitive motion 

injuries in the public sector in NJ and the preliminary results 

are frightening. Testimony will be presented as to specific 

examples, but suffice it to say that state workers are getting 

injured because of their job at an alarming rate. 

Many job stresses often associated with VDT work have also 

been identified. Psychological stress can worsen the effects of 

physical stresses, by causing muscles to tense more, or by 
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leading to increased headaches and fatigue. These stresses 

include excessive workload or work pace, machine monitoring, not 

enough job control, or minimal decision-making, job insecurity, 

and lack of social supports. 

Finally, concerns about reproductive risk have been raised 

by several clusters of miscarriages and birth defects among VDT 

operators. A study conducted at the Kaiser-Permanente Medical 

care Program in Oakland, California in 1988 concluded that women 

who used VDTs for more than 20 hours each week in the first three 

months of pregnancy suffered almost twice as many miscarriages as 

women doing other types of office work. Three possible causes of 

potential reproductive problems have been suggested: radiation, 

psychological stress and awkward work postures. 

Several countries recognize the importance of providing a 

healthful work environment for VDT operators and have mandated 

ordinances governing such things as workstation design, lighting, 

vision care and breaks. In the United States, nine states have 

VDT ordinances, guidelines, or executive orders, and Suffolk 

County in New York state has a legally binding regulation. In 

NJ, the Department of Health has developed-the most comprehensive 

guidelines in the country, which cover work environment, such as 

lighting, glare, and noise; VDT design; VDT workstation 

equipment, including specifications of chairs and tables; vision 

care requirements; job design considerations; and training for 

both operators and supervisors. These guidelines are meant to be 

a preventative measure and the NJDOH believes that successful 

implementation of the guidelines will help avoid the health 
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problems associated with poor VDT working conditions as well as 

increase operator satisfaction and productivity. However, the 

guidelines are just that they are not enforceable as a 

standard by PEOSHA. 

currently, CWA is working on getting the NJ Department of 

Labor to promulgate these guidelines into an enforceable 

standard. In addition, CWA is working with legislators in 

developing a VDT bill which would include the provisions in the 

guidelines, which Vince Trivelli, CWAs legislative and political 

coordinator will discuss in more detail. 

Thank you again for hearing this testimony. 
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ISorne Who Use VDT's 
Miscarried, Study Says 

By LAWRENCE K. ALTMAN 
Wom~n who use-d \'ideo dis;:by lcr· 

min~ls for more th~~ 20 hc~rs e~ch 
wrt:k in the firsl thrr.c munth~ o! prrg­
n~r:cy suflered almost twice as mJny 
anJscnrrinces as women do1;.g other 
types of oflace work, according to :1 new 
studv. 

1 he auahors ol the studv, research· 
ers :11 the K:~iser·Permancnte Medical 
Care l'rogrnm In Oakland, Calif., s~id 
the lindin~:s did not necessarily mean 
that the termminals themselves had 
caused the mi~carriaJ!es and that such 
unmeasured factors 3S job-rclaled 
stres~ and poor working conditions 
could also h01ve been responsible. . 

The study, showrng more a st:Jtistlcal 
th3n a c:!u5al correlation, Involved al· 
most I ,600 pregnant women. The re· 
se~rchers round lhat he~vy users of 
VDT's were more likely to h:Jve chll· 
dren with birth defects, but the In· 
cre:~se was not statistically srgnilicant, 
the resc:~rchcrs said. 

Termln:~ls long a Target 
Some scientists and org3nizations of 

ofrice workers have speculllted about 
Jinks or YDT use tc miscllrriages or 
birlh derects. But these findings are the 
first epidemiological evidence based 
on subst:~ntlal numbers ol pre~nant 
YOT operarors to show a statistically 
significant Increase of miscarnages 
amon~: those who use the termmals 
more than 20 hours a week. 

The rcsc~rchcrs, whose lindin~s ap­
pe:~r in the June issue ol The American 
Journ:~J ol lndustri:~l Medicine, s:Jid 
!hat l:~rger, more el:~borate studies 
were needed. 

Since J 9i9, news orj!anlzations have 
rcpiJrtcd se\'er:~l sm:1ll clusters ol m1s· 
cnrri:~gcs and birth defects :~mons 
YDToper:Jtors In the United Sllltes and 
C:1n:1da. However, there are disputes 
:~bout their me:~nlng. Some scienusls 
re~~rd the cases as clues to a more 
serious problem, while others consider 
them statistical quirks. 

1 he lew studies that h:~ve been com· 
pleted h~ve resulted in equivocal lind· 
Jngs. Others are underway. 

15 Million Terminals In Use 

and chicks have shnwn such elrects. 
The Natinnal Institute of Ocrur.a· 

lienal Safety and llcallh has 5ald that 
VlJT"s do not enut unsafe levels of clCC· 
tromagnetic radiation. Critics counter, 
however, that any additional radiation 
imposes additional risk. TI1e instllute, 
whose :~cronym is Niosh. has identified 
clusters of miscarri:~ges and other 
complications or pregn:~ncy among 
VDT users but no c:1use and eflect rela­
tionship has been established. 

Mrs. Goldhaber said that when she 
heard accounts or the VDT problems, 
she was "surpnsed to lind that there 
was very little published In medical 
journals and no orgamzed epidemiolog­
Ical studv." 

Dr. Michele Marcus, who Is studying 
the possible hazards or video display 
terminals :It the Mt. Sinal School or 
Medicine, said the earlier, lnconclush·e 
stuJies were designed In ways that led 
them to underestimate any link be· 
tween YDT use and complications In 
pregnancy. 

Dr. Marcus and Dr. Philip J. landri· 
gan, a professor or environmental 
medicine at ML Sinal, termed the 
Kaiser study good and credible. "This 
is an Important area that needs to be 
pursued in detail," Dr. Landrigan said. 

A Question 'We Cannot Answer' 
Members or the Kai5er team said 

they did not consider U1eir flndings 
definitive because the studv wa~ not 
designed to d~termine the cause or the 
miscarria!!eS. Mrs. Goldhaber said: 
"We cannot answer the question of how 
this is happening - whether the In· 
creased rise that we round was rel:~ted 
to the computer itsell, or to rhe work· 
place, or stress In the workplace such 
as from sealing discomrort, or even 
maybe some soclo~conomic diller· 
ences between those who use comput· 
ers a lot and those who do not use 
them," 

It is possible, the researchers said, 
that "recall bias" might have Jed 
women who h:1d mlscarri:Jges to over· 
estimate the time they spent at terml· 
nals. Dut Mrs. Goldhnher said the rc· 
se01rchcrs discounted this possibility 

About IS million vo·rs arc in use In bee:~ use there had been no such bias In 
the United States, and about 3 million reporting Insecticide exposure. 
more are added annually, accordin~ to Some key answers may emerge from 
VDT News, an Jndustrv newsletter. a study that Dr. Landrigan and Dr. 
About half the estlm:sted 10 million M:srcus have begun with the support ol 
people who use the machines on the job the March or Dimes. 
are women of child-bearing age. . Dr. Landrigan and Dr. Marcus said 

The Kaiser rindings grew out of a th:Jt they were seeking a grant from 
study tliat was originlllly meant to the. National Institutes or Health -to 
determine the ellects on pregnant study 8,000 women who work In olrices, 
women ol pesticides used to combat di\•ided cqu:~lly among those who use 

· Mediterr:Jnean fruit flies in Calilornia video display terminals and those who 
i In 1981 :1nd 1982. The researchers, do noL 
' Marilyn K. Goldhaber, Michael R. The Mt. Sin:st researchers plan to 

Polen and Dr. Robert A. Hlau. sur· I measure emissinns or Ionizing and 
veyed 1,583 pregnant women who at· lelectromagnelic r:sdintlon I rom the 
tended thrPe Kaaser-Perman~n.te ob· machines the women use, and study 
stetracs and gynecology clanacs an the confi~uratinn of their desks, ch:slrs 
northern Cal:fnrna:s. and the YDT's· their use of YDT's· and 

~"heir study lnund incre~scd ri~ks ul other !actors such as smoking and use 
mascarrlage In bath the Iars! and sec· ol lllcohol. Also, the researchers plan to 
and trimesters of pregnancy lor all use questionnaires and measuring de­
women who worked wuh vrdeo drspl:~y vices to determine the effects of stress. 
termln_:~ls lor more thnn 20 hours a Further, the ML Sinal researchers 
week, an comp:~rrson Wllh. non_workanf! rtnn to usc a very sensitive urine tests 
won1rn. No stntr~tac:~lly srgnlhcnnt an·jto determine exactly when pregnnncy 
cre:1~e WAS lmmd lnr women who h:Jd occurs. Preliminary woa k using this 
u~ed the terrrun~ls less than 20 hours n technique lndic:ue' th:Jtlndrpcndent or 
week, the rese:1rchcrs snld.. . YDT u~e about one·third ol nil prcgnnn· 

Tile rese:~rchr.rs :~l~o reported an an· cies end spont:meously Dr. l:!ndriJ:an 
crense or about 40 percent rn btrth de· <ntd ' 
lects :1mong the chil~rcn of prccn:~nt 'Tl;c proposed study will comp:~re the 
women who used VUT s more lh:ln lrve rntes of naiscnrrin~;e and other prob­
huurs. 3 wet'k. Out the rese:Jrchcrs sard lems :1rnnng the two groups. "The 
~h:lt fnnhng w:1s not stnllstlcnlly srgnal· problem Is thnt prcgn:1ncy i~ such a 
tcnnt. romnaon event and pregnancy loss Is so 

· Sllme experu h:~ve su~:r.estrd th:~t common th:1t the clusters could be due 
I Jow-J~,·el electrorn:~.:nctic r:~dintrnn to chance alone :~nd there Is no way to 

I horn VDT's m:J)' be :~hie to ~Iter or di~· di~ent~n~:Je them except to do a proper 
rupt cellul~r akvelopmcnt. Accnrdinr, "Jiad.,nuolngic study," Or. L~ndrig:~n 
tn VOT New~. exprrrrnenu wnh mrcc said . 
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rcc.Jl!c:d SD~~lf::-:g mere th.:1:1 2: :-:::1rs 
a wcc-k at thc:r termmals m t!':e f1rst 
three mo~t.'ls of pregnancy were al­
most tv.-1ce as likely to have ex::-cn. 
ence<.l a m1scarnage as w0~~::~g 
women who d1d no: usc terrnm~l;. 

Video Terminals and Health: Tiic study re1gnacd . srr.o~Ce!""i~g 
concerns about the poss1ble a.dver:e 

A Reawakening of Concern eCfccts of the terminals on n~::13n 
reproduction. Several smaller s:~c:es 
and mvest1!Zat1ons of clusters cf r.-:•s· 
carnages or birth defects h~ci previ­
ously found hints that terminals could 
adversely affect the outcome of preg­
n_anctes but th1s study provided the 
f1rst s1gmflc:Int evidence. 

By PHILIP M. BOFFEY 
~1::11 'o TlM: Nt-w 'ron. Tun" 

WASHI:-:GT0:-.1, June 15 - After 
years or relative quiet, the possible 
health ellects or video display terml· 
n:1ls ha\·e agam become a pubhc issue, 
fueled by a new scientific study and a 
new Jaw on Long Island. These appear 

· ag:1mst an unsettled scenufic backdrop 
in wh1ch some d:1ngers :1re discounted 
but others arc still open to question. 

The latest research raises new fears 
that the terminals might be linked to 
miscarriages or birth defects in preg· 
nant women, but the findings are only 
preliminary and suggestive, according 
to the researchers. 

The evidence on eyestrain is more 
conclusive, experts say. The consensus· 
of authontative scientific groups is 
that terminals do not ruin the eyes per­
manently by causing .c<ltaracts or 
other physiological damage, but they 
can cause eye irritation, fatigue and 

. headaches in workers who spend long 
hours starmg <1t their machines. 

Paradoxically, the danger most 
feared by many workers, the radiation 
emitted by the machines, appears to be 
the least likely source of problems, ac­
cording to experts who have studied 
the evidence. 

Experts caution 
that the birth data 
are preliminary. 

c:ans and Gynecologists concluded in 
1954 th:l! the radiation emi!led by ter­
mmals was "insufficient to cause 
spontaneous abortions and birth de­
fects," and the American Medical As­
sociation's Council on Scientific AC­
f::irs concluded in 1986 th<lt "no as­
sociation has been found" between 
radiation from VDT's and reponed 
spontaneous abortions, birth defects, 
cataracts or other injur1es_. 

'A Red Warning Flag• 
Dr. H::~rry Jonas, a former presi· 

dent of the obstetrici:ms' group who 
is now an A.M.A. official, said today 
that these positions remain in force 
but that the new study has raised "a 
red warning flag" that more studies 
are needed to ev<llu:~te poss1ble 
reproductive haz<lrds. Me:~nwhile, he 
sa1d, there is sun no firm scientific 
evidence that termih<lls are :1 haz:~rd 
to pregnancy. • 

The N;Jtlonal Institute of Occupa­
tion:~! Safety and He:llth is conductmg 
a m:~jor epldemlologic::~l study th::1t 
m::1y cl::~rify w·hether VDT's are as­
sociated wnh misc:~rriages. 

Meanwhile, the agency's latest 
posllion remams what it was in 1984, 
a spo~:e~woman sa1d today, namely 
that VIdeo tcrmm:~ls arc not :1 source 
of d:~ngerous r:ldl:ltlon. th:lt there 1s 

The v1deo display terminals, which 
look much like televisio:l screens at· 
tached to a keyboard, are rapidly re­
placing typewriters and other oHice 
machines 111 many businesses, ra1smg 

- . 
sporadic fears that. like any new tech­
nology, they may in:roduce unexpected 
healt.': pro~lems af:er prolonged use. 

But the scientists acknowle:!oed 
that their findings might result fr~m 
factors m the work place that are un­
related to the terminals. Thev called 
for further large-scale epidemiologi­
cal studies to determine whether a 
reproducth·~ health problem exists. 

uf:Inlyn K. Goldhaber. chief author 
of the study, said the findmgs sur­
prised the researchers because there 
IS no biological mechanism postu­
lated to explain how the termmals 
could cause miscarriages. She said 
the results "could be entirely due·• to 

Indeed. the term:nals have become 
increasmgly pervasive in such indus­
tnP.s as a1rlines, insurance and news­
papers. 

Although virtually every expert 
group that has rev1ewed the evidence 
in recent years has largely dis­
counted the ris~:s of major or perma­
nent health damage, a fresh wave of 
concern rippled L':rough the work 
force thiS month after two unrelated 
events, one scientific and the other 
politicaL 

• a tendency by women who suf:ered 
m1sc01rriages to overestimate the 
t1me they spent at VDT's as a possi­
ble explanatton of their misfortune 
al.though the study found no such bias 
"':lth respect to exposure to pesti­
Cides. 

The scientific event was a new 
study, the most extensive yet con­
ducted. which found a statistical cor· 
relation between miscarriages m 
working women and long hours of 
VDT use. The study was conducted by 
researchers at the Korthern Califor­
nia Ka1ser-Permanente Medical Care 
Proeram who interviewed almost 
1,600 pregnant women two and a half 
years alter their pregnancieS and 
.asked them to recall what exposure 
thev had to video terminals, pesu-
cides or oth,er _pote=:ti~l ha~r~s. ___ _ 

Medical Groups' Conclusions 
She said that if the correlation her 

study found was real, her "best 
guess" was that the miscarriages 

·were not caused by any radiation 
from VDT's, largely because the 
amounts of radiation emitted are "so 
tiny." 

. . More likely, she said, the misc.ar­
nages would be related to discomfort 
In the seating or work arrangement 
at the VDT, or to stress related to the 
monotony or pressure of VDT work. 

"some evidence" that thev can cause 
physical or emotional stre"ss, and that 
effects on reproduction cannot be 
ruled out although no physiological 
mechamsm is ·available to explain 
such an eft eeL 

Televisions use the same sort of 
cathode ray tube as VDT's, experts 
say, and thus would subject people 
who sit close to them to some of the 
same kinds of radiation. But concern 
over televisions has died down in re­
cent years, mdustry observers say. . 

The chief concern o'·er television 
sets, discovered in the 1960's, was 
leakage of X-rays, a form of ionizing 
radiation that is deemed haz:~rdous 
because it c:m disrupt L'le molecules 
in the body. But design changes man· 
dated by Congress eliminated that 
concern, and field surveys have con­
sistentlv shown that both televisions 
and VDT's emu far less ionizmg 
radiation than is considered danger­
ous under existing standards. 

Cathode ray tubes also emit non­
ionizing electromagnetiC radiation, 
which some labor:ltory studies have 
suggested might pose a biological 
haz01rd but most expert groups have 
largely discounted as a risk. Dr. Louis 
Slesin, editor of the newsletter VDT 
News, sa1d poss1ble hazards of non· 
ionizing radiation "are not a live 
Issue" with respect to televisions, 
p::lrtly bec:Iuse few people sit withm 
two feet of a televiSion and the radia­
tion decays very rap1dly beyond that. 

The second factor 1gmung concern 
over VDT's this month was :1 law 
passed Tuesday by the Suffolk County 
Legislature requmng compames to 
subs1d1ze :~nnual eye examm:~uons 
for VDT workers and eyeglasses or 

I 

The American College of Obstetri-

contact lenses if needed because of 
working on terminalS: · · . 

The Jaw was not based on. concerns 
about radiation emissions or misc<lr· 
r1ages, according to its backers, but 
rather on studies that detected such 
ailments as eyestrain, stiff necks and 
crippling hand and wrist pains among 
"''orkers who put in long hours at ter­
minals. 

The American Academy of Oph~ 
thalmology today reiterated its posi­
tion th~t "there is no convincing 
sc1ent1flc evidence that VDT's are 
hazardous to the eyes." The levels of 
rad1at1on emitted, the academv said 
"are well below those required ui 
produce cataracts or other eye dam­
age even after a lifetime of expc; 
sure." 

But the academy said VDT'S could 
~ associated with eye irritation, fa­
tigue.. headaches, and difficulty in 
tocusmg. Such complaints it said 
"can be remedied by either 'ch:mging 
elements m the work station design 
or providing proper gl<lsses for the 
~ser." Although eyestrain is annoy­
mg. the ::IC:Idemy said "it is not an in· 
d!C<ltion th<1t use of the eyes must be 
d1scontmued to avoid permanent 
dam01ge." 

· A committee of experts convened 
by the National Academv of Sciences 
concluded in 1963 that· "the symp­
toms of ocubr discomfort and difti­
culty with VISion reported by some 
workers who use terminals appear to 
be simii:Ir to symptoms reported by 
people performmg other near-v•sual 
ta~ks," such as rcadm;; under d1ff1· 
cult conditions. 





CAUSE POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS 

Neck Ache/Shoulder Pain 

* Position of screen 

Wrist/Arm Pain 

* Position of keyboard 
(too steep or high) 

* ~iltable screen 

* Proper chair giving 
good support 

* Rest breaks 
* Exercise program 

* Detachable keyboard 
* Proper palm support 

Back Ache/ Leg Fatigue 

* Position of chair & table 
(tall people get leg cramps 
if chair too low; short 
people's legs dangle,· puts 
pressure on thighs if chair 
too high) 

Stress 

* Work pace ~oo fast; 
Electronic monitoring; 
Harassing supervisor 

* Adjustable chair 
.and table; good 
back support in chair 

* Redesign job 

Reproductive Hazards 

* Radiation from terminal 

Skin Rashes 

* PCB inhalation from 
insulation coating on 
some VOT transformers & 
capacitors 

* Manufacturer install 
metal shielding; 
periodic radiation 
monitoring 

* Repair/replace 
machine 



CAUSES & SOLUTIONS TO SOME VDT HEALTH PROBLEMS 

CAUSE POSSIBLE SOLUTIONS 

Visual Problems 

* Glare from overhead 
lights 

* Glare from sunlight 

* Glare from light 
bouncing off smooth 
surfaces: walls, furniture, 
paper 

* Color of characters too harsh; 
characters on screen distorted 

* Sitting too close to machine; 
inappropriate eyeglasses 

* Install indirect 
lighting; change 
cool fluorescent to 
warm; overhead dimmer 

* Use windows shades, 
blinds; keep away from 
window 

* Paint wall flat 
finish; use matte 
finish; desk lamp for 
some kinds of work 

* May need new terminal; 
periodic servicing 

* Should sit 18-20" 
from terminal; May 
need glasses reground. 
Most ground for 10-12" 
distances 



VISUAL 
PROBLEMS 

Most common: 

Itchy eyes 

Burning sensation 

Eye strain 

Headaches 

VDT HEALTH PROBLEMS 

Needing different glasses 

Less common: 

Blurred vision 

Double vision 

Changes in color perception 

Cataracts 

STRESS SYMPTOMS 

General fatigue 

Irritability 

Nervousness 

OTHER 

Skin rash 

Fainting 

MUSCLE & JOINT 
PROBLEMS 

Most common: 

Stiff neck/shoulders 

Shoulder pain 

Back pain 

Hand cramps 

Swollen muscles/ 
joints 

Le-ss Common: 

Sore wrists 

Pain down arm 

Loss of strength 
in hands/arms 

Loss of feel­
ing in fingers 

REPRODUCTIVE 
PROBLEMS 

Scattered reports: 

Miscarriage 

Birth defects 

Spontaneous 
abortion 
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Peopt• *· work with video display terminals (vdta) have 
complained for years about: 

• Eye frritation 
, Headaches and vision disturbances 
, Back, neck, shoulder, arm, wrist, hand, and f1ngar problama 
• Streaa fr~ work ovtrload, insufficient brtaka 

and monitoring 

These health problems can become quit• aevtra, even 
debil1tat1ng, 1f proper precaution• art not taken to 1mprovt the 
vdt work environment. 

In November, 1989, the NJ Capt. of Health issued the MOSt 
cC~~~Dreoens1ve guht.Hnu on vdt UN in the United states aver 
issued by a state government. Tha guidtl1nta come after many . 
months of pushing from·a coalition of public sector unions in New 
Jersey, including CWA LOCALS 1031, 1032, 1033, 1034, 1037, 1031. 

Aa a rtsult, tans of thousands of public sector CWA members 
in New Jersey working in state 1nd county a;tnc1tt could benefit 
from these gu1del1n••· Tht NJ Oapt. of Health views these 
gu1delinea as a prelude to .a PEOSHA standard on vdts. Although 
these guidelines do not yet have the force of law, nevertheless, 
they offer employers detailed inatructiona on how to provide a· 
healthy vdt workplace. 

Here aro the high&ghts of the guideiinoa: 

'VDT FURHITURE 

VDT EQUIPMENT 

a Chaira-- adjustable fer he1ght and tilt 

,~••~T..Olea- adjustable for height 
. '; . .-/-~ 

a Aeca .. or1ea-- adJustable copy holders, 
foot rests, & palm or wr1at 

· rests 

a Keyboards-- detachable from mon1tar 

a Hon1tors-- t11tabla 

MQRK EHVIAONMENT • Lighting-- designed to reduct glare 

VlilQH CARE 

REST BREAKS 

a tlo1at-- acoustic covers for impact printer• 

a Heat-- vdt exhaust d1re~ted away from uaers 

a &ye •xama every 2 years, more often 1f 
symptoms occur (for vdt operators 
who work 10 hrs. or more per week on vdts) 

a 15 m1nutea aftar 2 hours of work on the 
machine• (for vdt operators who spend 
10 hrs, or mcro.per week working on vdta) 

a discretionar~ breaks of at least 1 minute 
each as needa~ (for vdt operators who spend 
10 hrs. or mora per week working on vdta) 
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TRAINING 

f. no mo,.. tnart!4 hours a day should be spent 
working on a vdt (for vdt operators who 
usaimacl11nes 10 hrs. or more per week) 

a vdt operators should have input on work 
station d~s1gn, job design, and workload 

a el•~tron1c mon1tor1ng "d1!lcouraged" 

a supervisor training in awareness of the 
health eff9cts of vdts and the impact of poorly 
designed, stressful work on productivity. 

a vdt operator tra1n1ng given on work time 
(for operators who work 10 hrs, or more 
per week on the mach1nes) 

tra1n1ng includes "hands-on" pract1c• 1n how to 
adjust vdts, hairs t. tables; eye and body 
relaxation exercises. 

refresher course every 2 years, 

What's missing from the NJ VOT Guidelines? 

The guidelines are simply guidelines. 
enforceable by law. 

They're not 

The gu1delfnas do not 1nclude any provisions regarding 
radiation. The HJ Health Oept. plant to 1ssua separate gu1del1nes 
on radtatfon, pending the outcome of mora reaearch on reproductive 
r1sks of vdt use. 

However, prudent employers c3n take steps now to prevent 
radiation exposure by doing the following: 

1) keep vdts at least 3; 1nches from the s1daa or backs of 
any neighboring vdts & provide glare f11tera for vdt 
screen& · 

or, alternatively, 

2) purchase vdts wh1ch have b•en daeigned with little or 
no radiation am1aaion 

3) provide altirnate wor~ for pregnant vdt operators on 
re~uest, 11 step 1 or 2 c~nnot be taken 

~""llt'·· ...... ~··~.l ;-! 

COMMUNICATIONS 
WORKERS 

. j!l\:i{~·~. · -·-··... . I ~~~ •I 

I .t':»oo- 0 I 

•t 

84 Culver Road 
Monmouth Junction, NJ 08852 

(201) 274-2171 

OF 
AMERICA 

LOCAL 1031 



Ergonomics in the Office 

6;;;;;----, 

OFnONALFOOTRE~ 
FIVE PRONGED (or other stallle design) SASE 

ADJUSTABLE WHILE SEA TEO 

Properly designed chair and workstation 

PRIMARY VIEWING AREA 
Between a' 60' belOw 

the nonzontal a1 
ooerator eye level 

)7a' 

FOOTREST FOR 
SMALL USERS 

Minomum Heogm 
:z- (5cm.l 

SEAT HEIGHT 
ADJUSTMENT 

RANGE 
·16-20.5-

(ol0.6-52.07cm.l 

s-epMnted f.-o~n VDT Health an.d Safety, pgs. 49 and 5L 

,27X 



COMMISSION ON SEX DISCRIMINATION IN THE STATUS STATE OF N.J. 

PUBLIC HEARING : JUNE 20, 1990 

FROM : ARLENE D. BARDEGUEZ, M.D. 

ASSISTANT PROFESSOR 

DEPARTMENT OF OBSTETRICS AND GYNECOLOGY 

UMDNJ-NEW JERSEY MEDICAL SCHOOL 

The human immune deficiency virus (HIV) is the etiologic agent 

for the acquired immune deficiency syndrome .(AIDS) . 

This retrovirus gro~ths in monocytes, macrophages and lympho­

cytes preferentially. The clinical manifestation of this disease 

range from asymptomatic cases to a wasting syndrome characterized 

by opportunistic infections and dementia (AIDS). The first case 

of AIDS was described in 1981, but since then this disease has 

reach epidemiologic proportions. As of June 1, 1989, the World 

Health Organization (WHO) reported an accumulative total of 157,191 

AIDS cases from 149 countries. Their projections of the number of 

infected people worldwide with the HIV virus during the 1980's was 

between 5 and 10 million. Recent projection for the USA revealed 

that approximately 1-2 million people are actually infected. 

The toll to our society is overwhelming because this disease 

have no discrimination of the individual it would infected. 

Children, men and women are dying every day as a consequence of HIV 

infection. Even more tragic to our society it the fact that 90% 

or more of affected individuals are on their peak of reproductive­

potential leaving us with little hope for our future as a nation. 

Unless we actively design and implement new strategies for early 



identification and support of infected individuals to improve the 

quality of their life and productivity and prevention of new cases 

by mass education of our community. 

According to the Webster Dictionary, discrimination originates 

from the latin work dis - which means apart and the work crimen -

which means verdict. To discriminate means to distinguish or make 

distinctions in treatment to a particular group. Society have a 

subtle way of discriminating against groups in terms of education, 

access to health care and job opportunities. We can close our eyes 

and not look of what·' s happening around us because we are not 

affected. The sad consequence of this view is that it will always 

hit us back. Witness to this effect are abundant in history and 

Matthews 25:31-46 describes how Jesus will exert judgement over all 

those that did not feed him , calm his thirst, shelter him or 

support him in sickness when he was in need. 

If the unrighteous ones asked him when did this happen. He 

would respond "Because you did not do it for one of my beloved, you 

did not do it to me." 

As of April 31, 1990, the number of cumulative cases of AIDS 

reported to CDC was 132,510. For the State of New Jersey the 

number of cumulative cases reported on May 31, 1990 was 8, 951. 

The countries of Essex (2,.899), Hudson (1,484), Passaic (672) and 

Union (663) carries most of the load for this State but the numbers 

of cases identified in other countries has been continuously 

increasing. New Jersey is the fifth State in the nation with the 

highest number of reported AIDS cases ( 6. 7%) . Although this 

epidemic has affected mos~ly male individuals the proportion of 



females cases has been drastically increasing over the past decade. 

Women constitutes 9% of the total population of AIDS cases. Based 

on the transmission category report to CDC for the State of New 

Jersey 64% of cases occurred among intravenous drug abusers, 29% 

on heterosexuals, 4% are secondary to transfusion or blood 

component and 3% are undetermined. The racial distribution for our 

State showed 54% of cases are among blacks, 34% in Whites and 12% 

in Hispanics. These figures drastically differs from national 

ones. In New Jersey we have the higher proportion of AIDS cases 

in women of the-nation, and AIDS is #1 cause of mortality among 

childbearing age black women (88% cases occurred between ages of 

20-49 yjo). 

This dramatic strain to our society contrast sharply with out 

present provisions to educated, offered medical and psychological 

support and assist economically these group of under privileges 

ones. 

The State of New Jersey have set up demonstration Pediatric 

Regional Care Centers in 5 areas of need, namely, Jersey City, New 

Brunswick, St. Joseph, Camden and University Hospital in Newark, 

Beth Israel is an affiliate Institution to this last program. 

Because recognition by the pediatric group that early intervention 

on children requires early intervention in mothers many of these 

centers have capability to offer perinatal testing for HIV 

education and follow up for the serving population. However, the 

only formal OB link between Ped-Ob is at Newark University 

Hospital. 

At the present time probably only two centers in the State 



will have the capability of offering investigational therapy to 

those mothers in need once the ACTU 076 or any other protocol get 

instituted. (This protocol will provide AZT to pregnant women with 

HIV infection during 3rd trimester and intrapartum) . 

The Ob/Gyn Department of University Hospital in Newark provide 

care for Newark and serves as tertiary referral center for Essex 

County and other neighboring counties. There are approximately 

2,500 to 2,700 deliveries every year. An anonymous seroprevalence 

study in 1988 revealed that 4.3% of our deliveries were positive 

for HIV infection. During the same study time frame less then 1% 

of the cases were identified prenatally. Therefore our department 

adopted a policy of education, risk assessment and offering HIV 

testing for any women receiving prenatal care in our Institution 

in 1989. This has been possible through support from the State 

perinatal AIDS prevention project and the NIH funded study on 

perinatal transmission. We have centered over all new patients 

seen in the adult prenatal clinic. The benefits bf such policy is 

more dramatic at present where effective support and intervention 

can and should be given to asymptomatic HIV individual. 

our experience from September, 1989 to April, 1990 is as 

follows. Of 1,170 new patients seen during study period 56.5% were 

contacted. . ( 662) , 62.6% of those patients agreed to be tested 

(415) and 4.3% (18) were positive. Only 15% of HIV positive cases 

admit to substance use. Although this is a dramatic improvement 

from our efforts in 1987 there is still a lot of work to do. We 

have not extended our efforts to the growing number of teenagers 

afflicted with this disorder, we have not touch the gynecologic 

Jl~ 



population with a consistent approach, we have not contact the 

other 43.5% of our prenatal population. Even more depressive are 

the number of referrals of infected patients abandon by their 

private physician, once on HIV test have return as positive. Many 

of these women never receive education and were not aware that 

their physician was testing them for HIV. 

From October 1, 1989 to April 30, 1990 we had 621 births in 

University Hospital 147 of those patients _had no prenatal care 

(23%). When and how do we provide help for all these women on 

desperate need? 

We have improve our approach for the AIDS epidemic, but God 

we need so much more help from you, the community to make a dif­

ference. 

University Hospital is only a sample of what's happening in 

Newark, Essex County, New Jersey, USA and the World. We can make 

a difference and stop the discrimination against availability of 

health care and support for women with HIV infection, if we want 

to and maybe we will not wait for the judgement day, because unless 

we do something now this epidemic will destroy us all as nation. 
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CWA Local 1033 represents over 7000 State Workers in the Trenton area 

who work for approximately ten departments. 

Our Local represents one of the largest groups of VIDEO DISPLAY TERMINAL 

OPERATORS - over 600 employed by the Division of Motor Vehicles and the 

Taxation Division. Of these, over 90% are women. 

At the Division of Motor Vehicles, operators continuously input infor-

mation to process licenses, registrations and suspensions. Many of these 

operators are simultaneously fielding telephone inquiries from the public 

while also inputing data. They are secretly monitored by management which 

contributes to their stress. 

At the Division of Taxation, operators keypunch tax returns and checks 

all day and are on a quota system which requires a minimum of 8,500 keystrokes 

each hour. 

We recently conducted a survey of Taxation VDT Operators of which 250 

were returned to our Local. The responses revealed the following symptoms: 

89% experience regular nPck or back pain 

79% experience regular arm or shoulder pain 

76% experience hand or wrist pain 

85% experience vision problems such as headaches, 

blurred vision, watering and itchy eyes 



Over the years, Union representatives have attempted to correct these 

glaring health problems with Taxation management. Even though research has 

shown that more frequent breaks, proper lighting, adjustable tabies and chairs, 

anti-glare screens and footrests are remedies to this health hazard, Taxation 

management has been unwilling to spend money to prevent the adverse health 

affects on their employees. 

We wonder whether this situation would continue for so long if these 

operators were primarily men. 

The short term cost of these standards is nothing compared to the 

State's expenses involving lost time and medical bills resulting from these 

symptoms. There are several Taxation employees who have suffered permanent 

damage to their hands and wrists as a result of prolonged VDT operation. 

Employers must be held to a uniform standard for VDT Operators, and 

there should be strict government enforcement of these standards if we are 

serious about protecting the health of millions of American women. 

Michael Lohman 

L~e.& 
Heal~h and Safety Coordinator · 
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